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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

| am pleased to present the business review and prospect of Redco
Healthy Living Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“Reporting Period”).

RESULTS

In 2021, the Group recorded revenue of RMB354.3 million,
representing a year-on-year growth of 59.9%. Profit and total
comprehensive income for the year was RMB40.5 million. Profit and
total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company
was RMB32.5 million. As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate
gross floor area (“GFA’) under management reached 15.8 million
sg.m., representing a year-on-year growth of 17.5%. The aggregate
contracted GFA reached 24.5 million square meter(s) (“sq.m.).,
representing a year-on-year growth of 21.9%.
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CHAIRMAN S STATEMENT
EERE

The Group upholds prudent financial strategies and a diversified
business layout, various costs were well controlled and the key
financial indicators were healthy and safe, and the features of
value-added services were outstanding and widely recognised
by the market, the Group's ranking of China's Top 100 Property
Management Companies in the industry rose to 40th as well.

2021 REVIEW

In 2021, challenges and opportunities coexist in the property
management industry under the violet circumstance brought by the
fluctuations of the real estate industry. After thousands of twists and
turns, however, success can only be achieved through hard work,
companies with excellent property management fight for difficulties
and bravely face with challenges. In line with the industry situation,
the Group adheres to the development logic based on quality service,
deepens cultivation of value-added service, integrates technology
and healthcare business, focuses on regional layout, continuously
improves its comprehensive competitiveness and firmly moves
forward.

The Group relies on “Lifestyle + healthcare® dual butler service
system to strengthen basic community services. The Group deepens
cultivation of value-added service and create better life services for
our customers through professionalism and dedication. At the same
time, we empowered our business with technology and continued to
improve our operational efficiency and service experience through
means of digitalisation and intelligence. The Group's ability to
innovate on its own continues to improve. Our subsidiary, Shenzhen
Zhongtian Yunlian Technology Development Co., Ltd. was certified as
a national High and New Technology Enterprise.
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2022 OUTLOOK

Be well-grounded and speak up moderately. The Group provides
customers with not only the physical space, but also a kind of
innovative lifestyle. The Group is committed to becoming a warm
creator of a high-quality healthy lifestyle, adhering to the value
concept of “striving for a healthy urban life”, with “lifestyle +
healthcare” dual butler service system to provide customers with
comprehensive high-quality products service and create a healthy
better life.

The Group will continue to focus on its own competitive advantages
and further reinforce the company s market position in economically
developed regions, and through organic growth, strategic
acquisitions and cooperation with third parties to further expand our
project portfolio. At the same time, continue to provide high-quality
“lifestyle + healthcare” dual butler service and improve brand value
and customer experience, further develop IT business and upgrade
the Group’s own IT platform, maximize cost effectiveness and
enhance our service quality.

In the future, the industry will move towards a stage of high quality
development. The Group will also keep up with the development of
the industry, forge ahead without forgetting the original intention.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Our development is inseparable from the trust and support of
all shareholders, investors, partners, properties owners and the
community. | would like to express my gratitude and respect for the
contributions of the members of the Board, the management of the
Company and all staff members of the Group. In the context of fierce
competition, we will forge ahead without forgetting the original
intention. In the future, the Company will continue to strive for
development and creating maximum value in return for your support.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREmADH

MARKET REVIEW

2021 is the year that variable challenges and unprecedented
opportunities coexist in the property management industry. While
the nature and underlying development principles of industry
remains unchanged and the background of policies evolving, the
concentration of the industry is increasing. After a year of grinding
time, the industry pays much more attention on service quality and
brand influence. Other than deepen combination of basic business
and smart living technology, the industry is developing diversified
value-added services with distinctive features at the same time. We
will strengthen our competitiveness in the market and achieve long-
term and stable growth in the future, only provided that we need to
maintain our advanced business strategy and continue to expand our
urban services.

IMPACT OF COVID-19

The outbreak of respiratory illness caused by the novel coronavirus
(i.e., COVID-19) began in early 2020 and continues to spread globally.
During the pandemic, neither our business has been significantly
affected, nor have our major suppliers.

While the COVID-19 pandemic may expose property management
companies to a number of risks to their operations, it also brings
certain opportunities. Customers have put forward new requirements
for life scenarios such as community control, property services, and
health management services. The Company seizes such opportunities
and is committed to providing customers with better and more
professional services, through which further trust can be secured
from customers.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Company is a property management service provider with
a leading position in Jiangxi Province and a service network
strategically covering core regions such as the Yangtze River Delta
Region, the Greater Bay Area, the Bohai Rim Region and the Central
China Region. The Company was listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
31 March 2022 (“Listing Date”). We will keep up with the industry
trend, implement the development strategy of the Company through
scientific research and judgement, so as to achieve steady growth in
business performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In terms of overall strength, our ranking has risen from 48th in 2020
to 40th in 2021 by China Index Academy. As of 31 December 2021, we
had a total of 97 projects under management with an aggregate GFA
under management of 15.8 million sq.m., and had been contracted
to manage 137 projects with an aggregate contracted GFA of 24.5
million sq.m. located in 28 cities across 11 provinces, municipalities
and autonomous regions in China.

The Company actively expand the scale of property management. As
of 31 December 2021, we had an aggregate GFA under management
of 15.8 million sq.m., increasing approximately 17.5% year-on-year,
and an aggregate contracted GFA of 24.5 million sqg.m., increasing
approximately 21.9% year-on-year.

By virtue of the Group s strategic business relationship with the
Redco Properties Group Limited (“Redco Properties’ and together
with its subsidiaries but excluding the Group, the “Redco Group”)
(stock code: 1622), as of 31 December 2021, the Company were
contracted to manage 81 property projects developed by Redco
Group, consisting of 51 projects under management with an
aggregate GFA under management of 9.2 million sq.m. and 30
contracted but undelivered projects with an aggregate contracted
GFA of 5.7 million sg.m..

Meanwhile, the Group’ s GFA under management from independent
third party property developers grew steadily under its good
service quality and market reputation. As of 31 December 2021,
GFA under management from independent third party property
developers accounted for approximately 41.1% of the total GFA under
management.

We are committed to providing high-quality and specialized property
management services to meet the needs of diverse customer groups.
In addition to our property management services, we endeavor to
continuously expand our value-added services and improve services
quality. In particular, we have established a “lifestyle + healthcare’
dual butler system, which provides comprehensive services to our
customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREmADH

As a lifestyle butler, we provide our customers with well-rounded
property management services and value-added services. In addition
to the standard property management services, such as cleaning,
security, greening and public area maintenance services, services of
the Company extend to the pre-sale and pre-delivery stages.

As a healthcare butler, we provide community healthcare services
under Yearning Healthcare (16#3#82) brand. Combining the Al health
management box (AIfZEE&TF) and environment monitoring systems
installed in residential communities to provide healthcare advice to
the residents in real time as well as to achieve service from online
and offline. We aim to provide integrated healthcare services which
integrate medical, healthcare and commercial services and meet the
needs of customers of different age groups.

The Company possess advanced technology among our peers in
the property management industry, which we believe allows us
to consolidate our competitiveness and reduce operating costs
procedures through upgrade the information technology system.
We also provide strong technical support in the establishment of
our information technology platforms for property management
services and value-added services, and also have solid experience
in the products research and development, platform operation
and maintenance services utilizing various relevant technologies,
such as digitalization technology and Internet of Things. We have
implemented various systems to enhance the experience of property
owners and residents as well as to enhance the efficiency of our
business operations.

On 23 December 2021, Shenzhen Zhongtian Yunlian Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhongtian Yunlian’), a subsidiary of the
Company, was certified as a national High and New Technology
Enterprise. We will endeavor to enhance capability of independent
innovation and keep improving customer experience through
digitalization and intellectualization.

In 2021, the steady development and outstanding comprehensive
strength of the Group has been widely recognised in the industry
and abroad. We have won numerous awards during the Reporting
Period, and our reputation has grown significantly. The Company was
awarded Outstanding Operating Property Management Companies
in China - Healthy Life Service, and our two managed projects, Redco
Future Town and Redco Tianyue Fu were both awarded the “2021
Five Stars Property Management Services Community’, by China
Index Academy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The revenue of the Group derives from three business segments:
(i) property management services; (ii) value-added services to non-
property owners; and (iii) community value-added services in the
PRC. The revenue of the Group increased by approximately 59.9%
from approximately RMB221.6 million in 2020 to approximately
RMB354.3 million in 2021.

The following table sets forth the details of the Group s revenue by
business segments for the years indicated:

BEEwEAR

#3501 R
W zs

AEBWTFEETEN=EEZEDE0: (i)
MESERTE; () FEXEFIRERE &
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TEHNARBE221.6 T & T N4 59.9%
EIET—FMNARE35438ET o
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Year ended 31 December
BE+_A=1+—HILEFE

2021 2020 Changes
RMB' 000 %  RMB 000 %  RMB 000 %
AEBFRT AEBFT AEBFT
Property management services MEERRS 202,099 57.0 135954 61.4 66,145 48.7
Value-added services to FETRERS
non-property owners 93,239 26.3 61,210 216 32,029 523
Community value-added services &2 {ERS 58,989 16.7 24,446 11.0 34,543 1413
354,327 100.0 221,610 100.0 132,717 59.9
Property management services W EIEIRTE

Revenue from property management services increased by
approximately 48.7% from approximately RMB136.0 million in 2020
to approximately RMB202.1 million in 2021, primarily because the
Group acquired Wuhu Senlin Property Management Co., Ltd (“Wuhu
Senlin”) on 31 December 2020, which added total gross floor area
(“GFA”) under management of approximately 4.5 million sq.m. to the
existing GFA under management, and being a 51%-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Wuhu Senlin’s revenue during the year ended 31
December 2021 was consolidated with the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREmADH

Revenue from value-added services to non-property owners increased
by approximately 52.3% from approximately RMB61.2 million in 2020
to approximately RMB93.2 million in 2021, primarily because of (i) the
information technology service revenue contributed by Zhongtian
Yunlian since the Group’s acquisition, which was completed in
December 2020, and (ii) the increase in revenue generated from pre-
sale management services due to the increase in pre-sales activities
for properties developed by Redco Properties.

Revenue from community value-added services increased by
approximately 141.3% from approximately RMB24.4 million in 2020
to approximately RMB59.0 million in 2021, primarily due to (i) the
the community healthcare service revenue contributed by Weiye
International Investments Company Limited (“Weiye”) since the
Group' s acquisition, which was completed in December 2020; and (ii)
an increase in revenue from common area management services in
view of the acquisition of Wuhu Senlin whose revenue during the year
ended 31 December 2021 was consolidated with the Group.

The cost of services primarily consists of (i) employee benefit
expenses; (ii) greening and cleaning expenses; (iii) maintenance
expenses; (iv) utility and security charges; and (v) other expenses such
as depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortization of
intangible asset.

Cost of services increased by approximately 64.7% from
approximately RMB144.8 million in 2020 to approximately RMB238.6
million in 2021, primarily due to (i) an increase in the employee
benefit expenses as a result of the increase in the number of
employees driven by the business expansion and the acquisition of
Wuhu Senlin and (ii) an increase in greening and cleaning expenses
and outsourcing expenses as a result of the continued business
expansion of the Group.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The following table sets forth the details of the Group’ s gross profit
and gross profit margin by types of services for the years indicated:

BEEwEAR

EFREFE

TR FEREERRFRE DI
ZEMNREMNERFE

Year ended 31 December
HE+_B=+—HLEE

2021 2020
ZEZ-F “RTEF
Gross profit Gross profit Gross profit Gross profit
e margin el margin
RMB' 000 ESIES RMB' 000 ESilES
AEBFR % ARBFT %
Property management services ¥J% E2HRE 50,060 24.8 38,212 28.3
Value-added services to FETRERS
non-property owners 40,021 42.9 27,341 44.7
Community value-added HEEERE
services 25,688 43.6 11,249 46.0
115,769 32.7 76,802 34.7

v

The gross profit of the Group increased by approximately 50.8% from
approximately RMB76.8 million in 2020 to approximately RMB115.8
million in 2021, which was mainly due to the increase in revenue of
the Group as a result of increase in business scale. The gross profit
margin decreased from 34.7% in 2020 to 32.7% in 2021 due to the
reasons as indicated below:

Property management services

The gross profit margin for property management services decreased
from 28.3% in 2020 to 24.8% in 2021, primarily due to the increase
in proportion of revenue derived from properties developed by
independent third parties for the year ended 31 December 2021
which had a lower gross profit margin. Such increase in proportion
of revenue from properties developed by independent third parties
was primarily due to the acquisition of Wuhu Senlin which added 25
properties developed by independent third parties under the Group’ s
management. The projects of Wuhu Senlin had relatively lower
property management fees, as such projects were more concentrated
in lower-tier cities as compared with projects developed by Redco
Properties and some of its projects were government resettlement
houses and the average property management fees were typically at
a low level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREmADH

The gross profit margin for value-added services to non-property
owners decreased from 44.7% in 2020 to 42.9% in 2021, as the Group
received one-off exemption of approximately RMB3.4 million from
making a portion of social insurance contributions during the year
ended 31 December 2020 pursuant to local governments supportive
policies in response to the COVID-19 outbreak. No such exemptions
was received by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The gross profit margin for community value-added services slightly
decreased from 46.0% in 2020 to 43.6% in 2021 primarily because of
an increase in labor costs.

Other gains, net

The other gains increased from approximately RMB3.5 million in 2020
to approximately RMB4.0 million in 2021 primarily due to the increase
in government grants received in 2021.

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses increased to RMB3.9 million in
2021 from RMB2.1 million in 2020, primarily due to the increase in
employee benefit expenses relating to sales and marketing activities
as a result of continuous business expansion of the Group.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 175.8% from approximately
RMB19.9 million in 2020 to RMB54.8 million in 2021, primarily due to
an increase in administrative staff costs as a result of the business
expansion and the acquisition of Wuhu Senlin and the listing
expenses amounted to approximately RMB13.8 million incurred in
2021.

Net provision for impairment losses of financial assets

The net provision for impairment loss of financial assets increased
from approximately RMB1.4 million in 2020 to approximately RMB3.5
million in 2021 due to the increase in trade receivables as a result of
the increase in revenue from property management services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance income

Finance income increased from approximately RMB0.2 million in
2020 to approximately RMBO0.3 million in 2021, which represented the
interest income from bank deposits.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased from nil in 2020 to approximately RMBO.7
million in 2021, primarily due to increase in interest expenses for the
bank borrowings and consideration payables of Wuhu Senlin.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses increased to approximately RMB19.1 million in
2021 from approximately RMB13.9 million in 2020, primarily due to
the increased taxable profit as a result of business expansion of the
Group.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the profit and total comprehensive
income for the year decreased from approximately RMB44.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB40.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The profit and total comprehensive income attributable to owners
of the Company for the year decreased from approximately RMB39.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB32.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Intangible assets

The intangible assets of the Group mainly comprise property
management contracts, customer relationship and goodwill resulted
from the acquisition of Wuhu Senlin, Zhongtian Yunlian and Weiye.
In December 2020. The intangible assets of the Group decreased
from approximately RMB50.1 million as at 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB48.4 million as at 31 December 2021 mainly due to
the amortization of customer relationship and property management
contracts during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREmADH

Property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment of the Group increased
from approximately RMB25.2 million as at 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB56.2 million as at 31 December 2021, mainly due
to the purchases of an office and car parking space in Hong Kong
during the year.

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

Trade receivables mainly arise from provision of property
management services, value-added services to non-property owners
and community value-added services.

Trade receivables of the Group, net of allowance for impairment,
increased from approximately RMB90.6 million as at 31 December
2020 to RMB129.4 million as at 31 December 2021, primarily because
of the increase in the project under management under the property
management service segment of the Group and expansion of
business.

Other receivables mainly consist of deposits, payments made on
behalf of property owners and prepaid listing expenses.

Other receivables and prepayments, net of allowance for impairment
increased from approximately RMB18.3 million as at 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB21.4 million as at 31 December 2021
mainly due to the prepaid listing expenses during the year.

Trade payables

Trade payables increased from approximately RMB9.8 million as at 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB18.5 million as at 31 December
2021, primarily due to the increase in expenses paid to suppliers as a
result of the increase in GFA under management during the year.

Accruals and other payables

Accruals and other payables (including those recorded as current
liabilities and non-current liabilities) decreased from approximately
RMB64.8 million as at 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB57.1
million as at 31 December 2021, primarily because of the settlement
of certain consideration in relation to the Group’ s acquisition of
Wuhu Senlin made in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Contract liabilities primarily consist of advances of property
management fees and other service fees. Contract liabilities
increased from approximately RMB61.9 million as at 31 December
2020 to RMB76.3 million as at 31 December 2021, primarily due to
the increase in the number of properties managed by the Group as a
result of overall business growth.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, the lease liabilities amounted to
nil and RMB3.9 million, respectively.

Borrowings represented the bank borrowings granted to the Group.
Borrowings increased from approximately RMB4.6 million as at 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB10.2 million as at 31 December
2021 because the Group entered into a mortgage loan agreement
with the bank for the purpose of purchasing an office and a car
parking space in Hong Kong in December 2021. The bank borrowing
as at 31 December 2020 was denominated in RMB and with effective
interest rate of 6.09% per annum. The bank borrowing as at 31
December 2021 was denominated in HKD and charged with interest
rate of 1-month HIBOR plus 1.3% per annum.

As at 31 December 2021, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB123.7 million. As at 31 December
2020, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB137.3 million. Decrease in cash and cash
equivalent was due to (i) the settlement of the cash consideration for
acquisition of Wuhu Senlin of approximately RMB16.2 million during
the year ended 31 December 2021; and (ii) the repayment of the bank
borrowing of approximately RMB4.6 million during the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Group maintained a sound financial position. As at 31 December
2021, the Group s net current assets amounted to approximately
RMB60.3 million while the Group s net current assets amounted to
approximately RMB52.5 million as at 31 December 2020. As at 31
December 2021, the Group’ s current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was approximately 1.3 while the Group’ s current ratio was
approximately 1.2 as at 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREmADH

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the total interest bearing
borrowings divided by the total equity. Gearing ratio was 3.8% as at
31 December 2020 and 6.3% as at 31 December 2021, such change
was mainly due to the addition of bank borrowings of approximately
RMB10.2 million as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements,
as at 31 December 2020 and 2021, the Group did not have other
material capital commitments.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

Saved as disclosed below, none of the Group’ s assets were pledged
as at 31 December 2020 and 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group' s bank borrowing was secured by
the pledge of properties provided by a director of a subsidiary. Such
bank borrowing was fully repaid during the year ended 31 December
2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’ s bank borrowing was secured
by the pledge of certain properties with a carrying amount of
approximately RMB26.8 million and guaranteed by the Company.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies to ensure the liquidity requirements from
daily operation as well as capital expenditures are met. The Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity positions, while surplus cash
will be invested appropriately with the consideration of the credit
risks, liquidity risks and market risks of the financial instruments.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the transactions
settled in RMB. The Group generates RMB from sales in the PRC to
meet its liabilities denominated in RMB. Other than certain bank
balances and bank borrowing, the Group s assets and liabilities are
primarily denominated in RMB. Therefore, the Group’ s assets and
liabilities, and transactions arising from its operations primarily are
not exposed it to material foreign exchange risk. The Group does not
hedge its exposure to the foreign currencies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2021, except for bank balance and bank borrowing
at variable interest rate, the Group do not have other significant
interest-bearing assets or liabilities. The interest rates of bank
balance and bank borrowing are not expected to change significantly,
and the relevant interest rate risk is considered immaterial.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

The Group had no significant investment during the year ended 31
December 2021.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group had no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31 December
2021.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no plan for any material
investments or capital assets.

OUTLOOK

Be well-grounded and speak up moderately. Redco Healthy Living
provides for customers not only a physical space, but also a kind of
innovative lifestyle. The Group is committed to becoming a warm
creator of a high-quality healthy lifestyle, adhering to the value
concept of “striving to become a person that lives with healthy urban
life”, with “life + health” dual housekeeping service system to provide
customers with comprehensive high-quality products service and
create a healthy better life.

The Group will continue to focus on its own competitive advantages
and further consolidated the company market position in
economically developed regions, and through organic growth,
strategic acquisitions and cooperation with third parties to further
expand our project portfolio. At the same time, continue to provide
high-quality “life + health” dual butler service and improve brand
value and customer experience, further develop IT business and
upgrade the Group s own IT platform, maximize cost effectiveness
and enhance our service quality.

In the future, the industry will move towards a stage of high quality
development. Redco Healthy Living will also keep up with the
development of the industry, forge ahead without forgetting the
original intention.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREHREEE

DIRECTORS

e o

Mr. Huang Ruogqing (E& & )(“Mr. Huang’), aged 53, was appointed
as a director of the Company (the “Director(s)’) on 10 February 2021
and was re-designated as a non-executive Director and appointed
as the chairman of the board of Directors (the “Board”) on 1 June
2021, where he is primarily responsible for providing guidance and
formulation of strategies for the overall development of the Group.
Mr. Huang is also one of the controlling shareholders of the Company.
Mr. Huang is the father of Ms. Huang Yangi, an executive Director. He

is also the uncle of Ms. Wong Yin Man, an executive Director.

Mr. Huang has over 30 years of experience in the real estate industry
in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group, from August 1990 to May 1994,
Mr. Huang worked as an architecture designer, assistant architect
and project manager successively in Quanzhou Construction Design
Institute (RINTEEEERETBT), an institution primarily engaged in building
design, where he was primarily responsible for building design,
geological survey and prospecting. Mr. Huang joined Redco Group in
May 1994 and has been an executive director and president of Redco
Properties since January 2014. Mr. Huang is also currently a director
of certain subsidiaries of Redco Properties.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Huang was appointed as a visiting professor at Jiangxi University
of Finance and Economics (ZIFERMAEAZE) from November 2015 to
November 2018 and a visiting professor at School of Architecture &
Urban Planning, Shenzhen University (GRYIK SR E I HREI M) in
the PRC in September 2020.

Mr. Huang has received multiple awards in recognition of his
experience in the real estate industry. He was named as one of the
“CIHAF new leaders of the China' s real estate industry” (CIHAF #[E
EiEHEEAY) by China International Real Estate & Architectural
Technology Fair (BRI E#ESEERITEES) in 2015, the “2015
Boao fashion icon of the China’ s real estate industry” (12520155
HhE R EAY) by Organizing Committee of 2015 Bo ao Real. Estate
Forum (IBZEEMERIBAEZE) in August 2015, the “2019 China Top
10 CEOs of the listed real estate companies” (2019 FEEHE EHAE]
+ A%k CEO) by China Index Academy (R EIFEFAZTPT) in May 2019
and the “2020 China Influential Figure in Real Estate Industry of the
Year’” (2020 FEIFEFEIMEAY)) by the Guandian Index Academy
(BREAIEENFAZERR) in August 2020.

Mr. Huang obtained a bachelor s degree in architecture from Huagiao
University (¥45A2) in the PRC in July 1990.

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Chengyong (FE&EB) (“Mr. Tang’), aged 58, was appointed
as a Director on 10 February 2021 and was re-designated as an
executive Director on 1 June 2021. Mr. Tang joined the Group as the
president of UG Property Management Co., Ltd (“UG Management”)
in April 2008 and is primarily responsible for supervising the overall
management and operations of the Group. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESREREER

Mr. Tang has over 28 years of experience in the real estate industry
in the PRC. From 1993 to 2001, Mr. Tang worked for Jiangsu
Province Supply and Marketing Cooperative (Group) Company (7T
BRIt (52 ®) 422 8]), a company primarily engaged in property
development, with his last position as the deputy general manager
and the deputy head of the department of economic development,
where he was primarily responsible for real estate projects. In August
2001 Mr. Tang joined the Redco Group as a general manager of
Yantai Redco Development Co., Ltd. ((BE&HSEBEEARAT), a real
estate development company indirectly owned by Redco Properties,
where he was primarily responsible for the daily operations of the
company. From May 2006 to February 2012, Mr. Tang was successively
appointed as the general manager of Jiangxi Man Wo Property
Development Co., Ltd. CIFEEMEMEMEZEBRAF), Jiangxi Redco
Property Development Co., Ltd. CIFEIBEMEREARAE), Redco
Development (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd. (1= &% (7I178) BE A& ), Shandong
Redco Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (WIS EMERZEERELR
B]) and the vice president of Redco (China) Real Estate Co., Ltd. (/155
() #EBRAT), where he was primarily responsible for the daily
operations of the companies and overseeing real estate projects.
Since October 2013, Mr. Tang has been serving as a director of Redco
Properties and was re-designated as an executive director in January
2014.

Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor s degree in engineering from Shenyang
Institute of Architectural Engineering (CEZRETIZZEM) in the PRC
in July 1986.

Ms. Wong Yin Man (&E#E) (“Ms. Wong), aged 30, was appointed
as a Director on 10 February 2021 and was re-designated as an
executive Director on 1 June 2021. She is primarily responsible for the
operational management and development of the Group. Ms. Wong
joined the Group as an assistant to the president of UG Management
in September 2015. Ms. Wong is the niece of Mr. Huang, a controlling
shareholder of the Company a non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Board.

Ms. Wong obtained a bachelor s degree in urban planning from
Peking University (36 A2) in the PRC in July 2015.
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Ms. Huang Yanqi (E#&H) (“Ms. Huang’), aged 26, was appointed as
a Director on 10 February 2021 and was re-designated as an executive
Director on 1 June 2021. She is primarily responsible for the brand
management and formulation and implementation of business
strategies of the Group. Ms. Huang joined the Group as an assistant
to the president of Shenzhen Redco Kang an Health Management
Co., Ltd. (RYNNBELZRBEEEEIRAHR), a subsidiary of the Group
engaged in the provision of healthcare services, in May 2018. Ms.
Huang is the daughter of Mr. Huang, a controlling shareholder of the

Company, non-executive Director and the chairman of the Board.

Ms. Huang obtained a bachelor s degree in environment and interior design
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Hong Kong in September
2018 and a master s degree in food design and innovation from Scuola
Politecnica di Design (KB L2£5251520%) in Italy in December 2019.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Yu Leung (2I££) (“Mr. Lau’), aged 69, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 14 March 2022 and he is
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of the Group.

Mr. Lau has over 25 years of experience in corporate governance.
Mr. Lau found the Group of Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited
(KEEFEIZERABIREAST) in 1993, and since October 2015, Mr. Lau
has been serving as an executive director and the chairman of the
board of Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited (k2 &% ®EIER SR
‘A8]), a waterborne trade and freight service providers in the PRC
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1549), where he is primarily responsible for the overall
strategic planning, development, decision making on important
matters, important investment strategies and management of senior
executives.
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Mr. Lau also serves in a number of positions in various organizations
and associations in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lau serves as a
member of the 13th National Committee of the Chinese Peoplée s
Political Consultative Conference as well as the 9th, 10th and 11th
Fujian Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’ s Political
Consultative Conference (FEIARBUAHE &) (“Fujian CPPCC),
and a member of the Standing Committee of the 11th Fujian CPPCC.
In April 2008, Mr. Lau was appointed as the permanent honorary
president of The Fukienese Association Limited (HBREBHEE
FRA8]). In August 2009, Mr. Lau was appointed as the permanent
honorary president of Hong Kong Quanzhou Clans United Association
(BEBRMNTEREMLEE). In March 2011, Mr. Lau was appointed as the
permanent honorary president of Hong Kong Quanzhou Associations
Limited (EB R MNBE M AR A F). In March 2013, Mr. Lau was
appointed as the vice-president of Association of Hong Kong
Quanzhou Charity Promotion Limited (EBRMEBESRELSERA
B]). In November 2013, Mr. Lau was appointed as the vice-chairman
of Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations Limited (B #EEEtLE
BEAERAT). In April 2014, Mr. Lau was appointed as the president
of Hong Kong CPPCC of Fujian Association Limited (fB2EB&HIHZE
B EGARRE).

Mr. Lau received a medal of honour (2&)%) from the Hong Kong
Government in July 2011. In 2016, Mr. Lau was awarded the title of
“Excellent builder of non-public economy of Fujian Province (f&#
BIERNBHIRBEEFERE) from the Peoplé s Government of Fujian
Province.

Mr. Sze Irons (5E5R1E) (“Mr. Sz€”), B.B.S., J.P., aged 60, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 14 March 2022 and he is
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of the Group.

Since March 1984, Mr. Sze has been serving as a executive director
of Hang Tung Resources Holding Limited, a private company in
Hong Kong principally engaged in property investment, import
and export trading, provision of management services and shares
investment, where he has been primarily responsible for the day-to-
day management of the business operations and the overall strategic
planning of the company.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR

ZEETREBRTEAZERBERIGE
EERAL - IRERETPERARBGHE
EEF 3ELHNEEEEE - PRIARK
AHEERFIE FIOEKREILER
rZEE((BERIG)ZE > WERERE
BifFE IIEEBEEEEE8 - RZFT)N
FHA AEERZEABTERERAL S
BRARKEZEGER -NITTAEN
A AEEREZEAEBRMNTEMES
KEZEGR - NR_Z—F=A" 2%
TEZERABTERMNAMEERAFXE
REGE -N_Z2—=F=F" 2%kEE
ZEABTEBRMNEERERERRLFE
FE-RIZB—Z=ZF+—R8 2kEES
ERERBREMEAMSARARRERE -
RIZ—NFNA > EEEEZER/ER
EERHMEEMETERATGR -

BRER —_TE——F L AEFBEFRER
REPE - N -T—RF B REERR
BARBBETEESIFLAFIEEES
BREW

MSRIRALE (THEEE ) HEAEE X
FaEt 60 RS- "F=F+mH
EZEARMANBILIFACTES RES
MAERSEREEREBUIER -

B—NN\MNF=RBiE’ Mt —BEEE—
BEBMARFEBEREEARAT
(E2REYERE - BEHOES -~ RIHE
EBRBERRORE)RITES  TB2E8
ZABNHEEGKEEERBRERER
£



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEE
In addition, Mr. Sze currently holds directorships in the following  IE4h > MEEBRIN T EHATEMETE
listed companies: £
L
Principal Place of listing Period of
Name of company business and stock code Position service
YNSIEZY FEER it BE R B AR KSR 75 BRF5HEAR
Jianzhong Construction Construction Main Board of the Independent February
Development Limited firm Stock Exchange non-executive 2020 to
(stock code: 0589) director present
BRERERBRAT BEAT B3P AR B IFNTES TETEF
(B&fA X5% : 0589) —_RAES
Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited  Leisure food Main Board of the Independent December
retailer Stock Exchange non-executive 2018 to
(stock code: 2360) director present
Em360EZERBRAT HHERZTER B3P AR BIIFNTES “EB-N\F
(AR LS © 2360) +ZRES
ST International Holdings Functional Growth Enterprise Independent April 2018
Company Limited knitted fabrics Market of the non-exccutive to present
supplier Stock Exchange director
(stock code: 8521)
BHERZERBRAT ThEEME St E A2 P GEM BIUIFNTES —N\F
HIER (B 1X5% © 8521) mAES
Chevalier International Property Main Board of the Independent November
Holdings Limited Developerin Stock Exchange non-executive 2016 to
Hong Kong (stock code: 0025) director present
HIBRERARAE BBYFERERD BT P AR BIIFRITES —E—RF
(B 1X5% © 0025) —l— BES
Continental Holdings Limited Jewellery Main Board of the Independent October
retailer Stock Exchange non-executive 2008 to
(stock code: 0513) director present
BEMHREEERRAT HETER BT P ER B IFNTES —EEN\EF
(B X5% © 0513) +AES

v

Mr. Sze was appointed as a non-executive director of two companies
listed on the Stock Exchange, including, (i) China Weaving Materials
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3778), a company principally engaged
in the manufacturing of yarn products, from May 2011 to June 2019;
and (ii) Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 761) since
February 2017. The trading in the shares of Bel Global Resources
Holdings Limited had been suspended since 4 July 2011 and the
listing of the shares was cancelled by the Stock Exchange with effect

from 24 August 2018.
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Mr. Sze obtained his bachelor s degree in science from the University
of Wisconsin-La Crosse in the United States in May 1985. He was
the deputy director of the Population, Resources and Environment
Committee of the National Committee (2BEHHZEE — AOERIEE
ZEgg|E1E), a member of the Beijing Committee of the Chinese
People s Political Consultative Conference (RFEIA BRECARE &It =
MEEEEHZEE) and a member of the HKSAR Labour Advisory Board
during the period from 2021 to 2022. He is currently the permanent
honorary president of the Chinese Manufacturers Association of
Hong Kong and has been a member of the HKSAR Election Committee
since 2006. Mr. Sze was appointed as the Justices of the Peace and
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (#i5#2%) by the Government of
the HKSAR in 2011 and 2015, respectively.

Mr. Chow Ming Sang (FBA%) (“Mr. Chow”), aged 49, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 14 March 2022 and he is
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of the Group.

Mr. Chow has over 27 years of experience in accounting, corporate
financial management and corporate governance. From January
2007 to September 2018, he served as an advisory partner of Ernst &
Young (China) Advisory Limited (Z7k (B ) (EZ£:EHBR AR ), where
he was primarily responsible for managing the risk advisory sub-
service lin€ s strategic growth and development in various regions
of the PRC. From September 2018 to June 2019, he served as the
general manager of risk & control department of Tahoe Group (&R
EERMAERAT), a property developer in the PRC, whose shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000732), where
he was primarily responsible for risk management of the company.
Since July 2019, Mr. Chow has been serving as a director and the
general manager of Beijing Xinshi Anye Management Consulting Co.,
Ltd. (IEREELZEEELZHBNERALT), where he has been primarily
responsible for strategic planning and the overall management
consulting of the company.
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In addition, Mr. Chow currently holds the following directorships in 45N > BARE BRI NI L AT EEN

the following listed companies: TESR
L
Principal Place of listing and Period of
Name of company business stock code Position service
LR
YNSIEZY FEEH B AR SR B3 BRF5HAR
Teamway International Investment Main Board of the Independent June 2019 to
Group Holdings Limited holding Stock Exchange non-executive present
company (stock code: 1239) director
Teamway International KEZERAF B3P AR BIUIFEHITEE ZT—NF
Group Holdings Limited (B sk & 1239) NAES
China Rundong Auto Group Automobiles Main Board of the Independent December
Limited dealer Stock Exchange non-executive 2020 to
(stock code: 1365) director present
FEERAEEEFRAR AEAETHE B A2 PR AR BIFRITEE v—vﬂz
(B&AAHSE & 1365) =
China Modern Dairy Holdings Ltd. Production Main Board of the Independent July 2021
and sale of Stock Exchange non-executive  to present
raw milk (stock code: 1117) director
PRI EERBIRAE FERHERY B2 PR AR BIFRITEE T —F
(BAAHSR & 1117) TtAES

v

From 2014 to 2016, Mr. Chow was the Committee Member of The BE_E—NEE_Z—RF BEEAF
Internal Controls General Standards Committee of The Ministry of EBE AEBIEFIRELZEEEE - KB
Finance (PRC) (FEIMEEIANEIEFIIEEZEEZEZE). He is currently giARmE L FERESHIESE -
serving as a supervisor of Shenzhen Youth Development Foundation

(RNBBELFERES).

Mr. Chow obtained his bachelor s degree in accounting from the BEENR—NNAET—AEIEEERE
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology (& # Rl & K 2) REGHBLEM - FE_TT=F+—
in Hong Kong in November 1995. He has been a Certified Internal B ATMAEEE > TE-E—
Auditor (5 P9 2828 5t ) since November 2003 and received the FHAESYTEFESREESEHENE
Certification of Fund Practice Qualification (E&MEBIREE) from EWHEERBE - FWEAATBGAR
the Asset Management Association of China (FEIZFKRERTFN - GABHFLADISHAMAEEREE -

&) in April 2019. He is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants (&g EJrEﬂi’&%‘) and the

Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (455F AR EsHEI AT ).
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Mr. Jiang Yue (Z38) (“Mr. Jiang’), aged 50, joined the Group as
the chairman of UG Management in June 2020 and was appointed
as the general manager of the property management department
of the Group in April 2021. He is primarily responsible for overall
management of our property management business.

Mr. Jiang has over 19 years of experience in the real estate industry
in the PRC. From April 2002 to June 2015, he worked in China
Evergrande Group (FEINEAER) (formerly known as Evergrande Real
Estate Group Limited (1BAMEEBEBIRAF)), a property developer
in the PRC whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3333), with his last position as the chairman
of Chengdu Branch of the group, where he was primarily responsible
for the overall management and operation. From July 2015 to March
2019, he served as the vice president of Guangzhou Aoyuan Property
Services Company Limited (EMNREEMERZEBR 2 E), where he
was primarily responsible for the management of the daily operation
of the property management services business and the commercial
operational services business. From December 2018 to January 2020,
he served as a general manager of the property affairs department of
Fujian Zhonggeng Property Management Co., Ltd. Shanghai Branch
(BEREATEMEEEBRAB LEHDRA), a property developer in the
PRC where he was primarily responsible for supervising the overall
management and business operations.

Mr. Jiang has received multiple awards in recognition of his
experience in the real estate industry. He was named as one of
the “Top Ten Outstanding Professional Managers of Guangdong
Province” (ERE+AFELIZELIEAN) by The Professional Managers
Association of Guangdong (EEREMBMELIZARGE) in 2015. He was
also honored as “2015-2016 Guangdong Province Top 10 Property
Management Elite” (2015- 2016 FEEBR SN ERFTEE+EAY)
by China Enterprise News Network (FRFEl =2 # I 4), Asia Pacific
Economic Times (ZE A& R #R+t) and Guangdong Academy of Social
Sciences Enterprise Research Institute (BRE L ER BRI
Ffr) in July 2016 and “2014 — 2016 Outstanding Elite in Guangdong
Property Management Industry’ (EEREYEEIETE20145-20164F
#EH AYD) by Guangdong Property Management Industry Institute (&
BEYEEEITERE) in September 2016.
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Mr. Jiang obtained his master s degree in business management from
Asia Metropolitan University (EEli3™MAE2) in Malaysia in December
2017. He obtained his National Property Management Manager
Certificate (ZEYMXE B P X KEFEIEE) from the Personnel
Education Department of the Housing and Real Estate Department
of the Ministry of Construction (B&RIMETEEMEZET]) in February
2002 and has been a certified property manager (¥ 2 &2 80) as
certified by the Ministry of Personnel (FFZE AN RHEMBEANERMILE
fRBE2EF)) and Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development (42
ARHEMEFEMIHAFELER) in December 2013.

Ms. Lin Mei (# #8) (“Ms. Lin”), aged 51, joined the Group as the
general manager of UG Management in April 2008 and was appointed
as the deputy general manager of the property management
department of the Group in April 2021. She is primarily responsible for
daily operation management of the property management business.

Ms. Lin has over 20 years of experience in the real estate industry in
the PRC. From March 1995 to August 2002, she served as a project
manager in Xiamen Lianfa Group Property Management Co., Ltd. (&
FIBEE (£ E ) WEIRFFERAT), a property developer in the PRC and
a subsidiary of Xiamen C&D Inc. ([EFIEER(DERAT ), whose shares
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600153),
where she was primarily responsible for overseeing the property
management business of the company.

Ms. Lin was recognised as the March 8th Red-Banner Pacesetter (=/\
41583 ) by the Women' s Federation of Zhifu District, Yantai City (/&
ETZRBFREAESE) in 2013 and 2016. She was also awarded the
title of “Outstanding Member of the Peoplée s Political Consultative
Conference” (BFHIHZEE) by Yantai Zhifu District Committee (I
BEEHTZREZEZET) in January 2019 and received the “Love
Dedication Award” (E\EFREE) released by Federation of Industry
and Commerce of Zhifu District of Yantai City (E&HZRETIH*
BtEE) in June 2020. In 2021, Ms. Lin was elected as a member of
The 19th Committee of Chinese National People’ s Congress of Zhifu
District, Yantai City (EEMZREF+NLEARKETAGHLE).

Ms. Lin obtained her bachelor s degree in economics and management
from Xiamen University (EF9AZ2) in the PRC in December 2000 and
completed the “Senior Economic Management for President Leadership
Workshop” in Tsinghua University (;BZA2) in the PRC in April 2010.
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Mr. Xiang Guoxiang (MRE##) (“Mr. Xiang”), aged 38, joined the Group
as the general manager of the information technology department
of UG Management in July 2016 and was appointed as the general
manager of the IT department of the Group in April 2021. He is
primarily responsible for overall operation management of the
information technology services.

From August 2006 to May 2011, Mr. Xiang served as a project manager
of Shenzhen Etomorrow Technology Development Co., Ltd. (% 3
M ARRARRRZEERBIRAF), a company engaged in the sales and
development of software, where he was primarily responsible for
software project management. From June 2012 to December 2015, he
served as the process IT deputy director of Coastal Realty Investment
(China) Limited (JA/BHIERE (FRE) BFRAT), a subsidiary of Coastal
Greenland Limited (BB EBEXRKEBIEAF), a property developer
in the PRC whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1124), where he was primarily responsible for
building the information system.

Mr. Xiang obtained his bachelor s degree in food science and
engineering from Hubei Minzu University (#JEEEAZ) (formerly
known as Hubei Institute for Nationalities (G#15 R%EZ2F3)) in the PRC
in June 2006 and his master s degree in business administration from
Sun Yat-sen University (FALLIARE?) in the PRC in June 2020. Mr. Xiang
successfully completed the Training Certificate Program in Project
Management Body of Knowledge with Shenzhen Talent Collection
Consulting Co., Ltd. in September 2013.
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Mr. Hui Chunyu (E&F) (“Mr. Hui’), aged 40, joined the Group as
a general manager of finance department in December 2013. He
is primarily responsible for finance and accounting matters of the
Group.

Mr. Hui has over 17 years of experience in the real estate industry in
the PRC. From June 2004 to July 2007, he served as an accounting
in Shanghai Jinming Investment Group Co., Ltd. ( E/B&RREER
BIRAT]), a property developer in the PRC, where he was primarily
responsible for accounting and financial analysis. From October
2007 to October 2013, he successively served as an accountant in
Shenzhen Fantasia Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. CRIIFTEBEME
E£BAMRAF) (formerly known as Shenzhen Fantasia Investment
Development Co., Ltd. CFRIITTERFRREERBMRAE) and a senior
financial management specialist in Fantasia Group (China) Company
Limited (TEEE B (FE)B R AF), both being the subsidiaries
of Fantasia Holdings Group Co., Limited (TEF EZEKRE@ER A
B]), a property developer in the PRC whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1777), where he was
primarily responsible for financial forecast, auditing and financial
analysis.

Mr. Hui obtained his bachelor' s degree in accounting from Tongji
University (BI/E A2 ) in the PRC in July 2004. He has been certified
as an intermediate accountant (AR & 5TET) by Human Resource and
Social Security Department of Guangdong Province (BE&EANER
M ZREEE) in January 2014,
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Mr. Mu Yuansong (2i&#2) (“Mr. Mu”), aged 37, joined the Group as
the general manager of the internal control and legal department in
August 2020. He is primarily responsible for regulatory compliance
and internal control of the Group. Mr. Mu was appointed as one of our
joint company secretaries on 1 June 2021.

From August 2011 to February 2013, Mr. Mu served as an associate at
Jiangsu Jinyi Law Firm (CLEk& % EBMEFPT), where he was primarily
responsible for providing legal services to clients. From April 2013
to January 2020, he served as the general manager of the capital
securities department of Wuzhou International Holdings Limited
(ANBEIREIER AR /AT), formerly known as Wuzhou International
Development Limited (FMEIFRZEEBBRAE]), a property developer
in the PRC whose shares were listed in the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1369), where he was primarily responsible for
legal, compliance and regulatory matters and financial matters. From
March 2020 to June 2020, he served as the department head of the
legal department of Anhui Hengtai Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(ZHAEREHMERZBREERE), a property developer in the PRC,
where he was primarily responsible for managing legal matters of the
company.

Mr. Mu obtained his bachelor s degree in English from Baicheng
Normal University (B IEMEZ262) in the PRC in July 2008 and his
master s degree in law in Soochow University (BR/NAZ) in the PRC in
June 2011. Mr. Mu passed the fundamentals of securities market
examination (& MHIBERAMZ ) issued by the Securities Association
of China (FEI:EHEWE) in September 2012 and was qualified as
a lawyer issued by the Jiangsu Provincial Department of Justice (I
& EIEREE) in November 2012. He also obtained the certificate of
Secretary of the Board (EEgWEEKEE) issued by the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange in July 2014, completed a training course for senior
managers of listed companies ( F T ABSHREERABIEIIFE) with the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange in August 2016, completed an examination
in the basic knowledge of securities and investment funds (5855%
EESEBAHZER) issued by the Asset Management Association of
China (FEIEHREESEWE) in September 2018 and obtained the
qualification to act as a futures practitioner (HAGE#RZEAEERK) in
November 2018.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR

BEMEE(TBRE)) 375w 2T
TENBMALER * EERNBDER KA
HEREE TR2AEAEERESRK
RERIEE c BEER B —F/<B—H
EZEABFNBEATDMEZ — -

R _E——FEN\BE_ZE—=F_"_F" 1
HERTIHESZEMBHBFANEBA
TEEERNRFRREEERB RIE
—=FNRAE_Z_TF—H’ BHEER
NEBRZERBRAS FIRBANEERERE
RN (REMYZERZER > ERMOIRE
RFETEM L™ (BRMDATE - 1369)) BEAE
KB FEEELE  6RKEE
EEURMBEEE RIBE-ZF=-AFE
TECTEXRA BEILEHAERE/
ERZEEREEAE (FENYERER)
EENIEE TESEETEZATE
BER o

BEER T N\FL AETRER B
HLEFM|FRBFELBARN T ——F
NEBEGEMNRMNASREFEZSBRLE
fil e BEER _E—_FHABBHTEH
BEEHGHENB ST HERNAZTH
R ZE—"F+— BRI E RARES
AIAEERRE - IR _ZT—NFELA
ERNEBSXZBEENEFTENEER
BE R AFN\BREHRYIFEFR
SHRLTHASSREEASEINE KT
E-N\FNABBHTEESFREESX
WMEHENESFKEESERNBE AR
RIZE-—N\F+—-—RBEHREREAEER
1% o



The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 10 February
2021 as an exempted company with limited liability under the laws
of the Cayman Islands. The Company s ordinary shares with nominal
value of HKS0.1 each (the “Shares’) were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 31 March 2022 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group primarily provides diversified services through three
business lines, namely, property management services, value-
added services to non-property owners and community value-
added services. The activities of the subsidiaries of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 82 and 83 of this
annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (for the year ended 31 December 2020:
Nil).

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)’) has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
Shareholders to be its goal.

The declaration and payment of dividend is subject to the results
of operations, working capital and cash position, future business
and earnings, capital requirement, among other things, and will be
at the sole discretion of the Board, subject to the approval of the
Shareholders (if applicable).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group s results, assets and liabilities for the last
four financial years are set out on page 212 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following list is a summary of certain principal risks and
uncertainties faced by the Group. Such factors are not exhaustive and
therefore other risks and uncertainties may also exist.

changes in China s economic conditions in general and the real
estate market and property management industry in particular;

changes in disposable personal income in the PRC;
changes in government policies and regulations;

changes in the supply of and demand for property management
services, value-added services to non-property owners and
community value-added services;

the ability to generate sufficient liquidity internally and obtain
external financing;

the ability to select and work with suitable and reliable
subcontractors and suppliers;

the ability to adapt to new markets where the Group has no
prior experience and in particular, whether the Group can adapt
to the administrative, regulatory, cultural and tax environments
in such markets;

the ability to leverage our brand name and to compete
successfully in new markets, particularly against the incumbent
players in such markets who might have more resources and
experience than the Group; and

the ability to improve administrative, technical, operational and
financial infrastructure.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
there was no material breach of, or non-compliance with, applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group primarily provides property management services and
green living solutions in China and is subject to laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group has complied with relevant laws and
regulations in its business operation. Details of such are set out in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to be published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.
redcohealthy.com) pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 31 March 2022
and issued 50,000,000 new Shares at HKS4.1 each under the Global
Offering (as defined in the prospectus of the Company dated 22
March 2022, the “Prospectus’).

After deducting the underwriting fees and commissions and other
estimated expenses payable by the Company in connection with the
Global Offering, as the over-allotment option is not exercised, the net
proceeds of the Global Offering are estimated to be approximately
HKS$155.6 million (the “Net Proceeds’).

As at the date of this annual report, the Net Proceeds has not been
applied and utilised. The Directors are not aware of any material
change to the planned use of the Net Proceeds as at the date of
this annual report. It is expected that the Group will utilise the Net
Proceeds in the manner consistent with the purposes as stated in the
section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus
as follows:

- approximately 55.0% will be used to pursue selective strategic
investment and acquisition opportunities to further expand
business scale and geographic coverage and broaden the
Company s service offerings;

- approximately 15.0% will be used to upgrade information
technology infrastructure and promote smart community
management;

- approximately 10.0% will be used to improve the services
as the lifestyle butler to improve customers experience and
satisfaction;
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- approximately 10.0% will be used to expand community
healthcare services as the healthcare butler; and

- approximately 10.0% will be used for general business purpose
and working capital.

For the expected timeline of the intended use of proceeds, please
refer to the implementation plan as set out in the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The unutilised
net proceeds are held by way of bank deposits with licensed banks in
Hong Kong or the PRC.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP' S STAKEHOLDERS
Workplace Quality

The Group believes that the directors, senior management and
employees of the Group are instrumental to the success of the Group
and that their industry knowledge and understanding of the market
will enable the Group to maintain the competitiveness in the market.

The Group provides on the-job training and development
opportunities to enhance its employees career progression. Through
different trainings, staff s professional knowledge in corporate
operations, occupational and management skills are enhanced. The
Group also organised staff-friendly activities for employees, such as
annual dinner, to promote staff relationship.

The Group provides a safe, effective and congenial working
environment. Adequate arrangements, trainings and guidelines are
implemented to ensure the working environment is healthy and
safe. The Group provided health and safety communications for
employees to present the relevant information and raise awareness
of occupational health and safety issues.

The Group values the health and well-being of its staff. In order to
provide employees with health coverage, its employees are entitled
to medical insurance benefits.
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Relationships with the Group' s other stakeholders

The Group aims at delivering constantly high standards of quality in
the products to its customers in order to stay competitive.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its financial institutions
and/or customers.

During day-to-day operation and management, the Company
maintained constant communication with the suppliers and
subcontractors to understand their opinions and requirements and
responded actively in order to reinforce business partnerships.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’ s sales to its five
largest customers accounted for 33.4% (2020: 32.3%) of the Group’s
total revenue and our single largest customer, being Redco Group
and its associates and joint ventures, accounted for 32.4% (2020:
30.5%) of the Group’ s total revenue.

Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for 4.3% (2020: 8.7%) of the Group s total
purchases and our single largest supplier accounted for 1.0% (2020:
2.5%) of the Group’ s total purchases.

During the Reporting Period, saved as disclosed in this annual
report, none of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had
any interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year ended 31
December 2021.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 86 of this
annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the distributable reserves of the Group
under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, consisted of
retained earnings amounted to approximately RMB120.9 million (as
at 31 December 2020: RMB89.9 million).

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2021
are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Non-executive Director

Mr. Huang Ruoqing (Chairman)

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Chengyong (President)
Ms. Wong Yin Man
Ms. Huang Yanqi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Ming Sang
Mr. Sze Irons
Mr. Lau Yu Leung
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In accordance with article 83(3) of the articles of association (the
“Articles of Association’), any Director appointed by the Board
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board will hold
office until the next following annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at an AGM at least once every three years. Any Director appointed by
the Board pursuant to article 83(3) shall not be taken into account
in determining which particular Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation in accordance with article 84(2) of the
Articles of Association.

Accordingly, all the existing Directors (namely Mr. Huang Ruoqing,
Mr. Tang Chengyong, Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ms. Huang Yangqi, Mr. Lau Yu
Leung, Mr. Sze Irons and Mr. Chow Ming Sang) will retire and, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election as Directors at the
forthcoming AGM to be held on 27 June 2022 (the “2022 AGM”).

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the 2022 AGM are set out in
the circular to the Shareholders dated 29 April 2022.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 20 to 32 of this annual report.

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
ESEHRS

REBEASERZMER (TMESEEMEA ) 5
83(3) % * BEFEHELUARIRRT =R
MAZFENEENEMELRAT TER
RAFAE((RREAFAE ) B BF
REBRRAE LEEEE -

BEBEEABERMAE ALK TBER
REFAEL EREEN=0Z—8F
(HEHAHILIF= (3)VEE BIUZE
FEERDR=Z0Z—HAB)FERE
BEFREVES=FRRRBERG L&H
ERME—R - ERFAHABZIZAEAIE 84(2)
HFRAEHERENEEEFTNEFTHUE
B ERRBABZIZMASE83(3) FE
EFEEHENESFITEREEENR °

At > 2EREEE BEEELE  BX
Bh4E EBRTY LT EFELL - EH
BE MRS RERESE) B
ST HEABHEHETHRERBEKX
g((ZTEZ“ERRBAFEART LHER
> BNAERITIERERETEE -

RN ZTE- " FRRAFAG LEEEE
GR=E e o N = B s e — S Y|
TN BBRRZIBRA o

ERKREREEE

AN EERERERENEER BRG]
MAFHRENENE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
2021 ERE

39




ry

40

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
ESEHRS

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a confirmation of independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-
executive Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be
independent during the period from the Listing Date and up to the
date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less than three months
notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from their respective date
of appointment, which may be terminated by not less than three
months notice in writing served by either party on the other.

The appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement and
rotation of Directors under the Articles of Association and the
applicable Listing Rules.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” contained in this annual report, none of the Directors
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Other than disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” and note 25 to the consolidated financial statements
in relation to related party transactions, no contract of significance
was entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the controlling shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2021 or subsisted at the end of
the year and up to the date of this annual report, and no contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was entered into during the year ended 31 December
2021 or subsisted at the end of the year and up to the date of this
annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed from the Reporting Period and up to the date
of this annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had 2,676 full-time employees as at 31 December 2021 (as
at 31 December 2020: 2,607). The total staff costs for the year ended
31 December 2021 were approximately RMB157.9 million. Employees
remuneration package includes salary, performance bonus and other
welfare subsidies. The remuneration of employees is determined in
accordance with the Group’s remuneration and welfare policies, the
employees positions, performance, company profitability, industry
level and market environment.

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing and making
recommendations to the Directors on the structure concerning
remuneration of the Directors and senior management, having regard
to the Group s operating results, individual performance of the
directors and senior management and comparable market practices.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals during the Reporting Period are set out in note 31 and
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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PENSION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group only operate defined contribution pension plans. In
accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the PRC based
employees of the Group participate in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organized by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the PRC under which the Group and the
PRC based employees are required to make monthly contributions
to these plans calculated as a percentage of the employees salaries.
Other than the monthly contributions, the Group has no further
obligation for the payment of retirement and other post-retirement
benefits of its employee.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had no forfeited
contribution available to reduce its contribution to the pension
schemes in future years.

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the
Company are set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHANGE TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF DIRECTORS

Saved as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report, since the date of the Prospectus,
there was no change to information which is required to be disclosed
and has been disclosed by Directors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e)
and (g) of rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at the Listing Date, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO”) which were recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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Interest in Shares and underlying Shares

(1)
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IR R ABRARR R B

Approximate
Percentage of

Long position/

Capacity/ Number of Shares/ Shareholding Short position/
Name of Director Nature of Interest Underlying Shares in the Company Lending pool
LA TE A E we e
EENZ B/ RmtE i3l P = S €= AR AAELARG
Mr. Huang Ruoqing  Interest in controlled 150,000,000 5% Long position
(“Mr. Huang") corporation
BEBRRE RELE D 150,000,000 75% wa
(THEBERED
Notes: Myst
(1)  Top Glory International Holdings Limited (“TGI") is wholly-owned (1) Top Glory International Holdings
by Redco Properties Holdings Limited (“Redco Holdings”), which Limited (TTGL1) 8 70 & h 2 #2 B2
in turn is wholly-owned by Redco Properties. Redco Properties BRAB (ThEER) 28%5
is owned as to approximately 3.16% by Times Properties mABERBDBHE - hEtE
Holdings Limited (“Times Properties”), which in turn are directly HEREXZERERAR(HA
wholly-owned by Mr. Huang. Redco Properties is owned as to BX)#EB3.16%  MmEREX
approximately 26.66% by the Times International Development HEEEREEEEZERS - 15
Company Limited (“Times International’), which in turn is wholly- HhEBFRERERERAS (TR
owned by Honour Family Holdings Limited (“Honour Family’). REIRR ) %5 % 26.66% * M EFAL
Honour Family is wholly-owned by UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited Bl % B Honour Family Holdings
(“UBS Trustees’) as trustee of the Honour Family Trust. Mr. Huang Limited (THonour Family)) %
is the settlor of Honour Family Trust, which is a discretionary trust & # A ° Honour Family 8 UBS
for the benefit of Mr. Huang and his family members. Mr. Wong Trustees (B.V.I.) Limited (TUBS
Yeuk Hung (“Mr. Wong’) is the brother of Mr. Huang and both Trustees,) (ff % Honour Family
Mr. Wong and Mr. Huang have agreed to act in concert with each BENREN) ZEREE - RES
other. By virtue of the SFO, each of Times International, Honour 5% &£ % Honour Family (= 5T 89 &l
Family, UBS Trustees, Redco Holdings, Redco Properties, Times TN MEZELRUEEBRER
Properties and Mr. Huang is deemed to be interested in the Shares HEREMEHZn ANZRIET -
in which TGl is interested. REURE(BRED)ARER
FEMBR > BREREESRE
HERRRIE—RITE o RixE
FERE B > BB ~ Honour
Family ~ UBS Trustees ~ 11 &
g~ EtE - BRREEREES
FEZBERGANRTCIHES R
AP REEE A o
(2)  The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the 2 FEREDEDREAABTR L

Company s total number of issued shares as at the Listing Date
(i.e. 200,000,000 Shares).

™A EE TR M AE G
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EFERE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE S INTERESTS AND SHORT EEREEITTHABRA AT S E B
POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF EERIRE ~ MERARG REEEDER
THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued) MR E (8)
(i) Interestin associated corporation of the Company (i) REAEEEEEF R
L 4
Approximate
percentage of
Number shareholding
Name of associated of shares in associated
Name of Director corporation Nature of interest interested  corporation
{GHEEEE R E
EENR HEBCEE RS HEEE FifEin 8B HEBNESL
Mr. Huang® Redco Properties Interest in controlled 1,059,086,000 29.82%
corporation
=EEFEREY e E R EEEGD 1,059,086,000 29.82%
Note: izt -

(1) Mr. Huang is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital
of Times International and Times Properties. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Huang is deemed to be interested in the shares of Redco
Properties in which Times International and Times Properties are
interested in.
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Save as disclosed above, as at the Listing Date, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have
any interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted any
right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or
any other body corporate or had exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at the Listing Date, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Approximate Long
Percentage of position/

46

Shareholding Short
Number of in the position/
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares Company Lending pool
RERDER #E/ %KE/
BB, U 515/ HmtE RiEE BAESt THELRGS
TGl Beneficial owner 150,000,000 75% Long position
TGl EalEEA 150,000,000 5% ¥E
Redco Holdings ™ Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
HEERY REEEEG 150,000,000 5% A
Redco Properties ¥ Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
HEtEY REEERER 150,000,000 5% B
Global Universe International Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
Holdings Limited
(“Global Universe”) @
RFEFZEREBRAT REEERER 150,000,000 5% B
(MRF )W
Global Investment International Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
Company Limited
(“Global Investment”) @
BRFRERRARAHE REEREEG 150,000,000 5% HA
(MRFIRE )Y
Mr. Wong W Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
BEED REEERER 150,000,000 5% B
Times International @ Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
B LEIRR @ REEEER 150,000,000 5% ¥E
Honour Family @ Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
Honour Family @ REEEEG 150,000,000 5% A
UBS Trustees ? Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
UBS Trustees® REEEER 150,000,000 5% WA
Times Properties @ Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
RREEQ REEEER 150,000,000 5% ¥E

v
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Approximate Long

Percentage of position/

Shareholding Short

Number of in the position/
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares Company Lending pool
RERDER BB/ %KE/

RRREE, U 515/ HmtE RHEE BAESt THELRG
Mr. Huang @ Interest in controlled corporation 150,000,000 75% Long position
BEEBLEY REEEER 150,000,000 5% F&
Ms. Sze Kai Fei @ Interest of spouse 150,000,000 75% Long position
HEEIFER L0 P BT 150,000,000 5% A
Ms. Fan Huili @ Interest of spouse 150,000,000 75% Long position
EERZLW finkEy: 150,000,000 5% B
Notes: Byat -

(1)

TGl is wholly-owned by Redco Holdings, which in turn is wholly-owned
by Redco Properties. Redco Properties is owned as to approximately
39.76% by Global Universe and 0.33% by Global Investment, which in
turn are directly wholly-owned by Mr. Wong. By virtue of the SFO, each
of Redco Holdings, Redco Properties, Global Universe and Mr. Wong is
deemed to be interested in the Shares in which TGl is interested.

Times International is wholly-owned by Honour Family. Honour Family
is wholly-owned by UBS Trustees as trustee of the Honour Family Trust.
Mr. Huang is the settlor of Honour Family Trust. Times Properties is
wholly-owned by Mr. Huang. Mr. Wong is the brother of Mr. Huang and
both Mr. Wong and Mr. Huang have agreed to act in concert with each
other. Each of Times International, Honour Family, UBS Trustees, Times
Properties and Mr. Huang is deemed to be interested in the Shares in
which TGl is interested.

Ms. Sze Kai Fei is the spouse of Mr. Wong. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Sze
Kai Fei is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Wong is
interested.

Ms. Fan Huili is the spouse of Mr. Huang. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Fan
Huili is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Mr. Huang.

The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company’ s
total number of issued shares as at the Listing Date (i.e. 200,000,000
Shares).
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Save as disclosed above, as at the Listing Date, the Directors were not
aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would be required, pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

There was no equity-linked agreement entered into by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Shares were not listed during the year ended 31 December 2021.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company s listed securities since the Listing
Date and up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Wong, Mr. Huang and Redco Properties (the “Undertaking
Controlling Shareholders’) has unconditionally and irrevocably
undertaken to the Company in the deed of non-competition dated
14 March 2022 (“Deed of Non-Competition”) that he/it will not, and
will procure his/its close associates (save for members of the Group)
not to, directly or indirectly conduct or be involved in any business
(other than our business) that directly or indirectly competes, or may
compete, with the business of the Company, being the provision
of property management services, value-added services to non-
property owners and value-added services to property owners and
residents (collectively referred to as the “Restricted Businesses’), or
hold shares or interest in any companies or business that compete
directly or indirectly with the business engaged by the Group, except
where the Undertaking Controlling Shareholders and their close
associates hold (i) less than 30% of the total issued share capital of
any company (whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange or any
other stock exchange); or (ii) less than 50% of interest of any private
company, which is engaged in any business that is or may be in
competition with any business engaged by any member of the Group
and they do not possess the right to control the board of directors
of such company. The above restrictions do not apply when the
Group engages in a new business that is not a Restricted Business
and at the time of commencement of such new business, any of the
Undertaking Controlling Shareholders had already been conducting
or been involved in, or otherwise been interested in, the relevant
business. For details of the Deed of Non-Competition, please refer to
the Prospectus.

The Company will make appropriate disclosure regarding the
compliance of the Deed of Non-Competition in its subsequent annual
report.
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DIRECTORS INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Since the Listing date and up to the date of this annual report, none
of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had
any interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Group since the Listing Date, which are subject to
the reporting and annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

On 14 March 2022, the Company entered into a property
management services framework agreement (the “Property
Management Services Framework Agreement’) with Redco
Properties, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
various property management and related services to Redco
Properties and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
including (i) preliminary planning and design consulting
services; (ii) sales offices and display units management
services; (iii) pre-deliver quality inspection and cleaning services:
(iv) property management services for unsold and vacant
properties of Redco Group; and (v) repairs and maintenance
services for properties used or owned by Redco Group, including
but not limited to properties delivered by Redco Group during
the warranty period of properties for a term commencing from
the Listing Date to 31 December 2023.

The annual service fees under the Property Management
Services Framework Agreement for each of the years ending 31
December 2022 and 2023 will not exceed RMB92.2 million and
RMB101.7 million, respectively.

On 14 March 2022, the Company entered into a carpark
sales agency services framework agreement (the “Carpark
Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement’) with Redco
Properties, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
carpark sales agency services to Redco Group, including but
not limited to acting as sales and leasing agent for carparks of
Redco Group for a term commencing from the Listing Date to 31
December 2023.
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The annual service fees under the Carpark Sales Agency Services
Framework Agreement for each of the years ending 31 December
2022 and 2023 will not exceed RMB12.4 million and RMB12.4
million, respectively.

On 14 March 2022, the Company entered into a healthcare
services framework agreement (the “Healthcare Services
Framework Agreement’) with Redco Properties, pursuant to
which the Group agreed to provide healthcare services to the
owners, occupants or residents of certain residential properties
developed by Redco Group, including but not limited to
healthcare consultancy, nutrition, health assessment and health
management services for a term commencing from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2023.

The annual service fees under the Healthcare Services
Framework Agreement for each of the years ending 31 December
2022 and 2023 will not exceed RMB22.8 million and RMB27.4
million, respectively.

On 14 March 2022, the Company entered into an information
technology framework agreement (the “Information
Technology Services Framework Agreement’) with Redco
Properties, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
information technology services to Redco Group, including but
not limited to the design and development of smart software
and hardware primarily applied in property development
for different projects developed by Redco Group for a term
commencing from the Listing Date to 31 December 2023.

The annual service fees under the Information Technology
Services Framework Agreement for each of the years ending 31
December 2022 and 2023 will not exceed RMB16 million and
RMB19.3 million, respectively.

Redco Properties is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
therefore is a connected person of the Company for the purpose of
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the above mentioned agreements constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the Company was listed on 31 March 2022, the aforementioned
continuing connected transactions only commenced on the Listing
Date. The Company will comply with the reporting and annual review
requirements in accordance with the Listing Rules in its subsequent
annual report.
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For details of the above continuing connected transactions,
please refer to the section headed “CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS SUBJECT TO THE REPORTING, ANNUAL REVIEW,
ANNOUNCEMENT, CIRCULAR AND INDEPENDENT SHAREHOLDERS
APPROVAL REQUIREMENTS” of the Prospectus.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As the Company was listed on 31 March 2022, none of the related
party transactions as disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2021.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the charitable and other donations
made by the Group amounted to RMB22,100.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company was not engaged
in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the Directors to
be pending or threatening against the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other officers of
the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of his duties in his office; be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets of the Company; provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud
or dishonesty.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in
respect of legal action against its Directors and officers.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance
for the year ended 31 December 2021, which provides appropriate
coverage for the Directors. The permitted indemnity provision was in
force during the year ended 31 December 2021 and remained in force
as at the date of this report for the benefit of the Directors.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The material subsequent events are disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on 31 March 2022.
From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, the
Group had no important events which needs to be disclosed.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) had,
together with the management and external auditor of the Company
(the “Auditor’), reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 55 to 71 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules since the
Listing Date and up to the date of this report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 22 June 2022 to Monday, 27 June 2022, both days
inclusive, in order to determine the eligibility of shareholders to
attend the 2022 AGM to be hold on Monday, 27 June 2022, during
which period no share transfers will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM, all completed transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company s Hong Kong share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
1712-1716, 17th Floor Hopewell Centre,183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 21 June
2022.
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the Auditor for the year
ended 31 December 2021. There was no change in Auditor for the
preceding three years. The accompanying financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers.

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer itself
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as Auditor will be proposed at the 2022
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Ruogqing
Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 April 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted and complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Cod¢€”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of corporate governance since the Listing Date.

The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee particular
aspects of the Company s affairs, the Board has established three
Board committees including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”’) and the Nomination
Committee (the “Nomination Committee’) (together, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and have acted in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect
of legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.
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Board Composition

As of the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Mr. Huang Ruoqing (Chairman)

Mr. Tang Chengyong (President)
Ms. Wong Yin Man
Ms. Huang Yanqi

Mr. Chow Ming Sang
Mr. Sze lrons
Mr. Lau Yu Leung

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The term of appointment of non-executive Directors are set out under
the section headed “Report of Directors - Directors Service Contracts
and Letters of Appointment” of this annual report.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date this annual report, the
Board has met at all times the requirements under rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has also complied with rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.
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Save as disclosed in the Directors biographies set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management’ in this annual report,
none of the Directors and senior management have any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship) with any other Directors, senior management, president
and chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as the
identity of the public companies or organisations and the time
involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments and any subsequent change to the Company in a
timely manner.
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Th Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
objective and approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Group
recognizes the benefits of having a diversified Board and sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of the Group s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Group seeks to achieve diversity of the
Board through the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge, education
background, gender, age and ethnicity. The Company will continue
to implement measures and steps to promote and enhance gender
diversity at all levels of the Group. The Company will select potential
Board candidates based on merit and his/her potential contribution
to the Board while taking into account the board diversity policy
and other factors. The Group will also take into consideration its
own business model and specific needs from time to time. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board comprises of seven members, including two female
Directors. The Directors have a balanced mix of experiences,
including property development, finance, auditing and accounting
experiences. They obtained degrees in various majors including but
without limitation to business administration, public administration,
economic and trading, corporate finance, language and social
science. Furthermore, the Board has a wide range of age, ranging
from 26 years old to 69 years old. The Company has taken and will
continue to take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels of the
Company, including but without limitation at the Board and senior
management levels. The Company has taken and will continue to
take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels of the Company,
including but without limitation at the Board and senior management
levels. Taking into account the Group s business model and specific
needs as well as the presence of two female Directors out of a total of
seven Board members, The Company considers that the composition
of the Board satisfies the board diversity policy.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring the diversity
of the Board members. The Nomination Committee reviews the board
diversity policy and its implementation from time to time to ensure
its implementation and monitor its continued effectiveness.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company s operations and businesses as well as his/her
responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.
The Company also arranges regular seminars to provide Directors
with updates on the latest development and changes in the Listing
Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time
to time. The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the
Company s performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company has from time to time updated
and provided written training materials relating to the roles, functions
and duties of a Director.

Before the Listing, a training session was provided to each of the
Directors with topics of legal and regulatory duties of directors and
the Listing Rules.

Chairman and President

The Chairman of the Board and the president of the Company are
currently two separate positions held by Mr. Huang and Mr. Tang
Chengyong, respectively, with clear distinction in responsibilities. The
Chairman of the Board is responsible for providing strategic advice
and guidance on the business development of the Group, while the
president is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group.
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Board Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers
are dispatched to the Directors or Board Committee members
at least three days before the meetings to ensure that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and are adequately prepared
for the meetings. When Directors or Board Committee members are
unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to the
Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the
joint company secretaries with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by
the Board and the Board Committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of
each Board meeting and Board Committee meeting are sent to the
Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date on
which the meeting is held. Minutes of the Board meetings are open
for inspection by Directors.

As the Company was just listed on 31 March 2022, the attendance
record of the Directors at Board meetings and general meetings will
be disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules in subsequent
annual reports of the Company.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiries of all the
Directors, each of the Directors has confirmed that he/she has
complied with the Model Code since the Listing Date and up to the
date of this report.

The Company has also adopted its own code of conduct regarding
employees securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the standard set out in the Model Code for the compliance by its
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Company in respect of their dealings in the
Company s securities.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company s expense and are
encouraged to access and to consult with the Company s senior
management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions
and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors which includes:

(a)

to review and monitor the Company s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

to develop and review the Company s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board
and report to the Board on matters;

to review the Company s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

to review and monitor the Company s compliance with the
Company s whistleblowing policy.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members and is chaired by
an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Chow Ming Sang, and
consists of another two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Sze
Irons and Mr. Lau Yu Leung.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

1.

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any issues related to its
resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards; and to discuss with the
external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations before the audit commences; and
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3. to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures, including the
adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company s accounting
and financial reporting function.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee members will be
disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules in subsequent annual
reports of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members and is chaired
by a non-executive Director, Mr. Huang Ruoging, and consists of two
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Sze lrons and Mr. Lau Yu
Leung.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company s
corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

3. to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors (in particular the chairperson and the chief executive
officer); and

5. to review the policy on board diversity policy and any
measurable objectives for implementing such board diversity
policy as may be adopted by the Board from time to time and to
review the progress on achieving the objectives.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRS

3. METARNMBHREFIE - NEPEE
IR R EREESEURBREZFE
ABREAN  BEART TG KM
BREBESENER  BTEER
KB HIIRRRERRREESRIRE °

BERZEENER BRI R
ABIMEIERIHER ©

BEZZEEHENLFELHEFERELT
MRARBER AN REFR o

RBEET

REZEEH=FMEMMN * WRIFRNIT
EXEEERLRETE HGEMBEEE
FINMBBILIFRITESHRIETRERE

BZZEENTERSERENATRE
1. EVSEFRSNEFIORE - AHK

AR (BIEREE - JH  EBRZ T
LEESE) * LR EABESEA
SIH0/A B TT SR B (E L By
BRI ;

2. YEREFECBERAEETESENA
T wkENERRREEALTRE
EFYREREZTGRHER |

3. STEBIIFRTESRELE

4. DEBFZAREMZEUKRER(L
HEIBRATHEH) It 8IRE
FERLEZR &

5 WNEFENEZTICHRKEAITH
EFEFREMNEFTLZTIEER
WEABERR UK ERZE
BIREE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
2021 ERE

63




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRS

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be
put to the Board for decision. The written terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. The attendance record of the
Nomination Committee members will be disclosed in accordance
with the Listing Rules in subsequent annual reports of the Company.

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process in relation to the selection,
appointment and re-appointment of the Directors and aims to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience, knowledge and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company s business.

The nomination policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

. Skills, experience and professional expertise - the candidate
should possess the skills, knowledge, experience, qualification
and professional expertise which are relevant to the operation
of the Group

. Diversity - The candidate should be considered with due regard
to the diversity perspectives set out in the Board diversity policy
of the Company

. Commitment - The candidate should be able to devote
sufficient time to attend the Board meetings and participate in
induction, training and other relevant activities

. Standing - the candidate must satisfy the Board and the
Stock Exchange that he/she has the character, experience and
integrity, and is able to demonstrate a standard of competence
commensurate with the relevant position as a Director of the
Company

. Independence - the candidate to be nominate as an
independent non-executive Directors must satisfy the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR

RELZEGTHHAE - K KEURAE
TRBRBEMYHZEBARENERE
HMEREAREEAN - RBEEGZEE
RINEBERESEUFERE - REEE
R E EREEE N AP R A A B L
FIHER - RREE TN E N HFEHE
SRE LTARAIRER AN AT REFR

EFERMERER BETHIFANDR
B ZEREEEENREEIRIER
EERFREFGRBUGERREBME
AU ~ #5BR ~ RIS R 2 TR ARG 1 o

REHRHIARFERREEANSE
MRHESGETERMBNEER ® 8FEF
FRICTIIRIA

c B ERERFENH-EEAR
BREXERZERBOKE A
o B  BRREENH

- ZRt-BEEEZREEAHRER
AEFEZTCHRTHEINZ T
RS

- AE-IEEAREERHANKEREZ2M
EFETRIT2MABENREM
GE|EabEEE)

c miT—IEREANAREEE KRB
EMREBHELEARTDEEN R
B ERkHE BEARFHE
Bl B EA RS

- BUM-BRIABUIFATES

IR A AR S LR8I 313
PRSI IR



Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members and is
chaired by an independent non-executive Director, Mr. Lau Yu Leung,
and consists of one executive Director, Mr. Tang Chengyong, and one
independent non-executive Director, Mr. Sze Irons.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include the
following:

1.

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’ s goals and objectives;

either: (i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management; or (ii) to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. This should include benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities, and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment in order to ensure that such
compensation is consistent with the contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct in order
to ensure they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members
will be disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules in subsequent
annual reports of the Company.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of the senior
management of the Company, whose biographies are set out on
pages 28 to 32 of this annual report, for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out below:

HFNEEENE LR E NP
ENCIEEN

HINEE SN ENHFETHSERELT
MRARBER AN B REFR o

EEREREEASHHMN
BE_ZE_—F+__B=+—HLEE"
ARBBREENE (HEEHNAFERE
28FE 32 8) RN EF BRI T ¢

[

Number of
Remuneration band (in HK dollar) individual
NS E (B o) A8
NIL - HK$1,000,000 4
£2 1,000,000 87T
HKS$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 —
1,000,001 &7t 1,500,000 7T
HKS$1,500,000 - HK$2,000,000 —
1,500,001 #75Z 2,000,000 BT
HKS$2,000,001 - HKS2,500,000 1

2,000,001 7% 2,500,000 7T

O

The remuneration of each Director and the chief executive are set out
in note 31 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no emolument was paid by
the Group to any Directors or any of the five highest paid individuals
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group as compensation for
loss of office.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING IN
RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 which give
a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and
of the Group’ s results and cash flows.
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The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group' s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditor s Report on pages 72
to 81 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Company s risk management and
internal control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness at least
annually. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure to achieve the business objectives of the Group and to
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board supervised
the management s design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems, and reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis; such review
covered all major control aspects of the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls.

The Group’ s risk management and internal control systems covered
each operation department, to ensure that the Group could
effectively manage the key factors that might affect the Group in
achieving its strategic objectives, such factors including events,
accidents or behaviors with a material impact on the Group's
reputation, assets, capital, profit or liquidity.
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The Company has established three layers structure for risk
management. In the risk governance structure, the first layer consists
of the business departments of project company and responsible
individuals, with the Group’ s business and functional centers serving
as the second layer and the internal audit team as the final layer.
The first layer bears risks and responsible for the direct responsibility
for risk management and it identifies, measures and controls the
risks in respective business fields and operating activities. The
second layer formulates rules and standards as business guidance
to subsidiaries/business units, and supervises their execution
to ensure that risk management takes place for the Group, with
continuous control of relevant work. The third layer is responsible for
monitoring, with an emphasis on providing independent monitoring
over the effectiveness of the Group’s risk solutions and measures by
combining the monitoring over the risk management and internal
control systems.

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the Group shall disclose to the public
any insider information as soon as possible after such information
comes to the attention of the Group, unless such information is
within the scope under any safe harbours provision in the Securities
and Futures Ordinance. The Group will ensure such information will
be kept confidential before it is fully announced to the public. If the
Group considers that the confidentiality required cannot be kept,
or such information may have leaked already, such information
will be disclosed to the public immediately. We also endeavour to
ensure that the information contained in the announcement shall
not be deceptive or misleading in all material aspects, and there are
no other material matters the omission of which would make the
information contained therein to be deceptive or misleading, such
that the insider information disclosed can be made available to the
public in an equal, timely and effective manner. In addition, if there is
any significant risk events, the related information will be disclosed to
appropriate authorities and personnel, so that appropriate decisions
and measures can be made and implemented by the Group to deal
with such risk events. Meanwhile, in order to further develop the risks
management culture of the enterprise, as well as to enhance the
risk awareness of our staff, the Group has already rolled out training
programs to enhance the risk awareness of our staff, so that we can
assure to maintain the balance between business expansion and risks
management in our operation.
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The Group’s internal audit team plays an important role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company. The team mainly
monitors and reviews the matters relating to the internal control
and compliance of the Company, and provides regular risk-oriented
internal audits for its branches and subsidiaries. The internal audits
cover project obtainment, procurement tendering, sales, financial
reporting and information security and so on. The internal audit
team reports to the Board once a year. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’'s risk management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee has received a report of risk management and internal
control prepared by the internal audit team, and has considered that
the risk management and internal control systems remain adequate
and effective throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 with no
material issues to be brought to the Board' s attention.

AUDITOR S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by
the Auditor to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021
was approximately as follows:
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Amount
Type of Services RMB’ 000

ot L]

BRF5LEEY (ANE¥FT)
Audit services 18
BEHAR
Non-audit services in relation to Listing 2,278
ARE L TRIIFE AR
Total 2,296
st

v

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Mu Yuansong (“Mr. Mu”), the joint company secretary of the
Company, is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters and ensuring that the Board policies and
procedures, as well as the applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.
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In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws,
the Company also engages Ms. Szeto Kar Yee Cynthia (“Ms. Szeto”),
a manager of TMF Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial service
provider), as the other joint company secretary to assist Mr. Mu to
discharge his duties as company secretary of the Company. The
primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Mu, the joint
company secretary of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, each of Mr. Mu and Ms. Szeto
has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’ s business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders
and investors to make the informed investment decisions.

The AGM of the Company provides opportunity for the Shareholders
to communicate directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the
Company and the chairmen of the Board Committees of the Company
will attend the AGMs to answer Shareholders questions. The Auditor
will also attend the AGMs to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship and communication between the Company and
the Shareholders and maintains a website of the Company at www.
redcohealthy.com, where up-to-date information on the Company s
business operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available
for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed for each issue at general meetings, including the
election of individual Directors.
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All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each general meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting forward
proposals

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to the Articles of Association,
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
requisition convene an extraordinary general meeting following the
procedures set out below.

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at
a general meeting of the Company according to the Articles of
Association. Any one or more member(s) holding as at date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or any one of the joint company secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about
the Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the
headquarters of the Company at 2nd Floor, Redco Building, Tower 5,
Qiaochengfang, Phase I, No. 4080 Qiaoxiang Road, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, PRC (email address: redcohealthy_ir@redco.cn).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted amended and restated memorandum and
articles of association on 14 March 2022, which has been effective
from the Listing Date. There was no change in the said memorandum
and articles of association since the Listing Date and up to the date
of this annual report.
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To the Shareholders of Redco Healthy Living Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Redco Healthy Living
Company Limited (the “Company’) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 82 to 211, comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

. the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code’), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Impairment assessment of trade receivables

Impairment assessment of goodwill
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FRE IR BMEEtMARIEREEEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables Our procedures in relation to the impairment

assessment of trade receivables included:

Refer to Notes 3.1, 4.4 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements. .

As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying amount of
trade receivables of the Group is RMB129,392,000,
including gross amount of RMB136,840,000 and loss
allowance of RMB7,448,000.

The Group applies the simplified approach under
HKFRS 9 to measure expected credit loss (“ECL”), which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the trade receivables.

We understood, evaluated and tested the
management's key internal control and
assessment process of impairment of trade
receivables, and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors, such as complexity
of models and subjectivity of significant
assumptions, estimates and data used;

We assessed the appropriateness of the
impairment assessment approach adopted by
management, including the appropriateness of
customers grouping, based on our understanding
of the Group’ s business and operations and
the credit risk characteristics of the relevant
customers;
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Impairment assessment of trade receivables -

(Continued)

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been

grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. e

Management assessed the ECL based on estimation
about risk of default and expected loss rates.
Management calculated the historical default rate
based on the past payment profile of debtors, including
historical settlement records in the observed period. The
expected lifetime loss is estimated based on internal

historical data with adjustment to reflect current *

conditions and forward-looking factors.

We focused on this area as the assessment made by
management involved the significant judgement and
estimates in the impairment assessment of trade
receivables.
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We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the
ageing analysis of trade receivables prepared by
management to supporting documents;

We assessed the historical default rate by
considering the payment profile of debtors and
tested the historical data used in the calculation
of the historical default rate, including settlement
records, on a sample basis, to supporting
documents;

We challenged and assessed, with assistance
from our internal expert, the reasonableness
of management s assessment on the forward-
looking factors based on our industry knowledge
and with reference to external data sources
including macro-economic data.

Based on the above, we found that the key judgements
and estimates made by management in the impairment
assessment of trade receivables were supported by
available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT

B EEmER S

L 4

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FRE IR BMEEtMARIEREEEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Refer to Notes 2.8, 13 and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group carried RMB24,232,000 goodwill on the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021,
which arose from the Group' s acquisitions of property
management and healthcare companies.

Goodwill is required to be assessed for impairment
at least annually. In performing the impairment
assessment, management compared the carrying
value of the cash generating unit (“CGU”) to which the
goodwill is allocated with its recoverable amount based
on value-in-use (“VIU”) calculations to determine if
any impairment provision was required. The VIU was
determined by applying discounted cash flow model on
pre-tax cash flow projections. Management has engaged
an independent external valuer to assist them in the
VIU calculation. Management concluded that there is
no impairment in respect of the Group s goodwill in
the current year based on the impairment assessment
performed.
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of goodwill included:

. We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity of models and
subjectivity of significant assumptions, estimates
and data used;

. We assessed management s identification of
CGU, allocations of assets and the methodologies
adopted by management with reference to
the requirements in the relevant accounting
standards;
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FRE IR BMEEtMARIEREEEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)

We focused on this area as the assessment made
by management involved significant estimates and

judgements. The key assumptions used in the VIU »

calculations are as follows:

- annual revenue growth rates;
= gross margins;

- long-term growth rates; and

- pre-tax discount rates.
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We assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent external valuer
engaged by management;

We involved our internal valuation experts to
assess the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies and the reasonableness
of discount rates used in determining the
recoverable amounts;

. We challenged the key assumptions and inputs
adopted in the cash flow projections based on
historical data, actual performance, industry data
as well as forward-looking data and assessed
whether there were indicators of management
bias in the selection of these assumptions
and inputs. For annual revenue growth rates,
gross margins and long-term growth rates, we
compared these assumptions with the relevant
historical data of CGUs and market data, where
applicable;

We reviewed sensitivity analyses prepared by
management on the key assumptions adopted in
the cash flow projections to evaluate the extent of
change in those assumptions would be required
for the goodwill to be impaired.

Based on the above, we found that the significant
management s judgements and the key assumptions
adopted in the goodwill impairment assessment were
supported by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’ s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’ s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR
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The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’ s internal control.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’ s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor' s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor s report is Mr. Chow Shiu Hay, Antonio.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 April 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FeEmR

For the year ended December 31 2021 #E —F _——#+_F=+—HILFEZ

L 4
Note 2021 2020
hE —E_—F TECEE
RMPB 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREF T
Revenue & 5 354,327 221,610
Cost of sales HEMAE 7 (238,558) (144,808)
Gross profit EF 115,769 76,802
Other gains, net HhWzm 358 6 3,954 3,465
Selling and marketing expenses HE MEHRAY 7 (3,933) (2,111)
Administrative expenses TR 7 (54,759) (19,858)
Net provision for impairment TREEREGERERLE
losses of financial assets 3.1&15 (3,487) (1,441)
Operating profit sy 57,544 56,857
Finance income MEUA 9 291 151
Finance costs EE={D%N 9 (709) =
Finance (costs)/income, net EELGCEIVEL VN (418) 151
Share of profits of investments DML T EA SRR
accounted for using the equity method BEHF e 2,145 913
Profit before income tax PRER1S IR AR S 211 57,921
Income tax expense Fri8inmE= 10 (19,138) (13,911)
Profit for the year FERiEF 40,133 44,010
Profit for the year attributable to: UTEBEEERNRT -
Owners of the Company KABHEB A 32,140 39,612
Non-controlling interests SRR T 7,993 4,398
40,133 44,010
Earnings per share attributable to AT R AL
owners of the Company SRR
Basic and diluted (expressed in BEARREE (UEK
RMB cents per share) AREDYIR) 11 21.43 26.41

(O

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEEENmR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE —&F ——#F+_F =+—HIFFEZ

L 2
2021 2020
ZB-—f  CECEF
RMB 000 RMB 000
AR¥EFT ARETT
Profit for the year FERiE - 40,133 44,010
Other comprehensive income Hith2EUzE
Item that may be reclassified to profit FIREEM D EERmNIER
or loss
- Currency translation differences — BB ER 372 13
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2HEINELEZE 40,505 44,023
Total comprehensive income UTEBREEEmINEEEE :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company EN/NEIEZZ SN 32,512 39,625
Non-controlling interests JESERS e R 7,993 4,398
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZHEUREEEE 40,505 44,023

O

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should AR & B T U 2R S B B 5 — BB
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

&
o

HEREEEARAT 2021 %S | 83



FEHERRAR

* CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2021 * —E _——F+_H=+—H

L 4
Note 2021 2020
B 5E —E-—% TETEE
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREF T
Assets BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Intangible assets mEEE 13 48,388 50,087
Property, plant and equipment M~ R 14 56,158 25,193
Investments accounted for R A ARG E
using the equity method 16 3,408 1,875
Deferred income tax assets FIEFRSINEZE 20 6,938 5,245
114,892 82,400
Current assets MENEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K EL R IE K
and prepayments SGENE 15 150,797 108,895
Amounts due from related parties e BE B 5 7R I8 25 - 18,696
Amounts due from FEUIEERS e 2 TR I8
non-controlling interests 25 — 13,821
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEBY 17 123,652 137,339
,,,,,, AR
Total assets HEE 389,341 361,151
Equity L
Equity attributable to TATER ANEEER
owners of the Company
Share capital %N 18 - =
Reserves i 19 129,827 94,907
129,827 94,907
Non-controlling interests JEVERG R 12(b) 32,407 25,189
Total equity “arE 162,234 120,096

(O

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HEEEAER
As at 31 December 2021 }* — & _——#+_H=+—H
[
Note 2021 2020
Ff5E T —F T E
RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARHEFIT
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities JERENEMR
Borrowings BN 22 — 4,150
Lease liabilities HEaRE 23 3,569 =
Other payables HAMFETFRIE 21 2,155 1,924
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFRSIR AR 20 7,212 8,740
12,936 14,814
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade payables B ENRIE 21 18,513 9,790
Accruals and other payables FETE A R HAME (T RRIE 21 54,895 62,923
Contract liabilities aHaE 5 76,327 61,937
Borrowings BN 22 10,231 400
Lease liabilities HEAR 23 366 —
Amounts due to related parties FE(S BE B /5 =R IE 25 33,695 67,370
Current income tax liabilities MENFTEMAasE 20,144 23,821
,,,,,, e ... 225241
Total liabilities wam/ 227,107 241,055
Total equity and liabilities EmkafiEE 389,341 361,151

(O

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 82 to 211 were approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 25 April 2022 and were signed on its eER__E2_—
WHUTEEAKREE .

behalf:

FE7&E Tang Chengyong
B Director

=#E Wong Yin Man
EZE Director
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’ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

86

mAEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z —F - —F+_F =+—HIFFE

L 4
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FARRERAAEG
Non-
Share Reserves controlling Total
capital (Note 19) Total interests equity
it
B (3£ 19) i IR EZEE
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
NS ARBTT AEBTR AEBTR AEBTR
LSBT R=F-—-%-A-H T gl g e A5
Profit for the year FREF - 32,140 32,140 7,993 40,133
Other comprehensive income: ~ Htt2EKA :
Currency translation BREES
differences - 312 3N - 312
Total comprehensive income FENZEBALE
for the year T L s s it
Transactions with owners: BB AR
Dividends RE - - - (1,185) (1,185)
Capital injection from non- RIS
controlling interests - - - 45 45
Change in ownership interests ~ TE#EHIRREHNERT
in subsidiaries without change ~ MHBATFAERZN
of control (Note 26.3(b)) 28 (F15E 26.3(b)) = 2408 2408 3 2,773
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—-F+ZA=+—H = 129,827 129,827 32,407 162,234
./
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BARREDE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE — & ——#F+_F =+—HIFFEZ

L 4
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FARRERE RS
Non-
Share Reserves controlling Total
capital (Note 19) Total interests equity
f#
A (PrzE19) wEt SRR RE et
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMEB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARETT AEETFT ARETT ARETT
As at 1 January 2020 RZZEZE5—A—H S 54,706 54,706 5,450 60,156
Profit for the year FRiafl - 39,612 39,612 4398 44,010
Other comprehensive income:  Efti2EMA
Currency translation ERREER
differences — 13 13 - 13
Total comprehensive EREEREEE
income for the year - 39,625 39,625 4398 44,023
Transactions with owners: BB AR
Non-controlling interest arising ~ WERDTUENEAE
from acquisitions and step FrigFER D
acquisition of subsidiaries - - - 15,242 15,242
Capital injection from non- FEREDTE
controlling interests - — - 795 795

Change in ownership interests in  FEFEFIREZENERT
subsidiaries without change of  RIBABFBEEEZN
control (Note 26.3(a)) 28 (I35 26.3(a)) - 576 576 (696) (120)

As at 31 December 2020 RZE_EF+°"A=+-H = 94,907 94,907 25,189 120,096

o

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be LIRS R R B BN 7R S AR MY MY S — O R
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mARERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #% —F _——#+_H =+1—HIFF/Z
L 4
Note 2021 2020
HiysE —FF ZTITF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETTT ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRESN
Net cash generated from operations KEMSRT TR 24(a) 60,777 46,602
Interest received B E 291 151
Income tax paid BEIFER (26,036) (6,496)
Net cash generated from operating activities REEBMERTPE 35,032 40,257
Cash flows from investing activities REEHRER
Additions of property, plant and equipment RENE  BER&E (4,944) (1,197)
Additions of intangible assets HERVEE (4,348) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENZE - BERZEMSTIE
plant and equipment 39 228
Net cash outflows in respect of HEWBABRE ML P
disposal of subsidiaries 27 (27) -
Cash acquired from acquisitions and step WEE R DR BB E A B PTiF
acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of RBe HRBEE™M
cash payment 26 (16,218) 6,281
Payments for investments in associates REMEARNR - (1,226)
Advances to related parties Bk (6,628) (65,708)
Repayment from related parties kBRI A RER 18,107 65,457
Advances to non-controlling interests [EEEAIT S (1,600) (2,500)
Repayment from non-controlling interests REIFERERNER 18,353 =
Repayments from joint ventures RESEARNER = 920
Dividends from a joint venture RESERENRE 612 -
Net cash generated from investing activities RELHEL RS 3,346 2,255

(O
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE — & ——#F+_F =+—HIFFEZ

FERERE

L 2
Note 2021 2020
BisE B it 32
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARBTR AREFT
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHHRER
Proceeds from capital injection from REFFERERNTEMSHNE
non-controlling interests 45 795
Repayment of bank borrowing BIERITER (4,550) -
Interest paid BFE (271) -
Principal elements of lease payments HEAHNEEEH (91) -
Advances from related parties 7R B R BB 17,836 4,767
Repayment to related parties BEREARNFIE (60,423) (347)
Listing expenses paid Bff EhBxX (3,774) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling AR AHRE (1,185) =
Net cash (used in)/generated from METEM (FTA) / EXREFB
financing activities (52,413) 5,215
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BeRESEEMRL) /
and cash equivalents 18N BEA (14,035) 47,727
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning FNRERFEZEY
of the year 137,339 89,615
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SMNEEF L FE 348 (3)
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of the year FRAERFEEEY 123,652 137,339
>
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in LR EIRE 2R AE AREMIM S — R

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Major non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, additions to certain
property, plant and equipment of the Company financed by a
borrowing and a related party were RMB26,772,000 (2020: Nil), which
the transactions were incurred directly from the bank and related

party to the vendor.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Redco Healthy Living Company Limited (the “Company’) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
10 February 2021. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. Pursuant
to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) in preparation for
the listing of the Company s shares on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main Board”)
which completed on 2 June 2021, the Company became
the holding company of the other companies comprising
the group. The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of property
management services, value-added services to non-property
owners, community value-added services, development and
maintenance services to the information technology (“IT”)
systems, healthcare management services and property agency
services in the Peopl€ s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The ultimate holding company of the Company is Redco
Properties Group Limited (“Redco Properties’) whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company s immediate
holding company is Top Glory International Holdings Ltd.
whose equity interests are wholly held by Redco Properties.
The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Mr. Wong Yeuk
Hung and Mr. Huang Ruoging (the “Controlling Shareholders’),
who are parties acting in concert and have been collectively
controlling the Group.

The Company s shares have been listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange since 31 March 2022.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years

presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

The consolidated financial statements of the Company

AR e MR

EAGEBUERE

MURAGEMBRREBNEIESS
BUREIIANT - BRIERERA &F
BERERERBIRMEINRMES
B o

FABGREYHBREDRES

has been prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS’) and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Charter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

BMBREER ((EBMBR
HER ) REBARFRL(F
BIEGIE6228) ZIRERER
o IREMBIRRUESLE A
EHRE o

BREBYBREENRRE
CHBFENAFLETEES
stalfd > MEBREEENER
A E B 5T ECR 1 L F B o
BRI KRB & KT H =z 8
FBRAEE BESH GRS
BRERLEEEZZ BRI
ZHEIRBENEES -

(a)

New standard, amendments to standards and annual
improvements that have been issued but are not effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group

Amendments to HKFRS 16

EBMHREERE 1658 (BFT )

Annual Improvements Project
FEERE

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKAS 16 and HKAS 37

EARMBREENE I
SRS ENE 16K
B ERFE 3T (BETX)

(a) EMEMEREKRENEINFK
R E G FERANBIATZE
Al ~ BRI ZAEETRFEX

i

Effective
for annual
periods beginning
on or after
RUTHRESZE
FYARYE SHEAR £ 3K
Covid-19-related Rent Concessions 1 April 2021

beyond 2021 (Amendments)
TR -FZBEM2019EREFH B
HRAE SRR (Bs]4) e —H
Annual Improvements to 1 January 2022

HKFRSs 2018-2020

BBMHREEN T N\FE TECF
“ECTFENFENE —A—H
Narrow-scope Amendments 1 January 2022
BREES] TETTF
—RB—H
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

BEAGEREE (8)

2.1 RREE(R)

New standard, amendments to standards and annual (a)
improvements that have been issued but are not effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

Revised Accounting Guideline 5

65158 558 (BET &)
Amendments to HKAS 1

SEGTEERE 158 (B5T4)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
EAGHHENF 1R EBYBRE
ZREHBREE 258 (B5TA)
Amendments to HKAS 8
SEGFTEERSE 85 (B5T4)
Amendments to HKAS 12

HEBEFTERE 1258 (B5TA)

HKFRS 17

BBMGREER B 1T5E
Amendments to HKFRS 17

BBV BIRELERE 17 5% (B5T40)
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

HB2ES 598 (2020)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

BEMBIRSERE 1058 K
BB GRS 2858 (B5T4)

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR

EEfp R LM ALK
LR FIE FERAAHIFT
R ~ R ZIEETRFE KX

1 (18)

Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations
HEZEFSHNEHEHE
Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
HEESEARBEIERE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies
B BRI

Definition of Accounting Estimates
A ER
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction
HEB—RXZELENEERABRRN
FIEFRIE
Insurance Contracts
REEEH
Amendments to HKFRS 17
EBMEIRE RS 17 58 (1B5T4)
Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
HBEHRENZT —ERAHZBEER
BEERNERER 22
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture
KREEFHREBE NN GE X BN
BELEIIFE

Effective

for annual
periods beginning
on or after
RUTHEBHZ%E
AR EHHAM £

1 January 2022

“E"F—A—H
1 January 2023

A
1 January 2023

—Z-=%—5—H
1 January 2023
- A
1 January 2023
—B=F—-A—H

1 January 2023

2 =F—F—H
1 January 2023
—E=F—AF—H

1 January 2023

—E=F—-A—H

To be determined

SH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

New standard, amendments to standards and annual
improvements that have been issued but are not effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Company in
the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 Income
Taxes so that it no longer applies to transactions that,
on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements, for leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to the
relevant assets and liabilities as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to relevant assets and liabilities
are assessed on a net basis.

Upon the application of the amendments, the
Group will recognise a deferred tax asset (to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability
for all deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with the right-of-use assets and the lease
liabilities.

AR e MR

2 EBAREHBEREIE (R

2.1
(a)

(b)

RREE (]

EEfp R LM ALK
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1 (18)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to

Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Continued)

The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with
early application permitted. As at 31 December 2021,
the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities which are subject to the amendments
amounted to RMB3,612,000 and RMB3,935,000,
respectively. The application of the amendments
is not expected to have significant impact on the
Group' s consolidated financial statements.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss, consolidated statements
of comprehensive income, consolidated statements
of changes in equity and consolidated balance sheets
respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Joint arrangement

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification
depends on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor, rather than the legal structure of the
joint arrangement. The Group only has joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost
in the consolidated balance sheet.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group' s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates and
joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’ s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(d)  Equity method (Continued)

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 16.

(e) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in consolidated
statements of comprehensive income are reclassified
to consolidated statements of profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified
or permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Continued)
(e)  Changes in ownership interests (Continued)

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in consolidated
statements of comprehensive income are reclassified
to consolidated statements of profit or loss where
appropriate.

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred;

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

. equity interests issued by the group;

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest' s proportionate share of the
acquired entity s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EATHEEREEGE)
(CONTINUED)

2.3 EBEHEE

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. The
excess of the:

. consideration transferred;

amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less
than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in consolidated statements of profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’ s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in consolidated statements of profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’ s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in consolidated
statements of profit or loss.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4

2.5

2.6

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividends exceed the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividends are declared or
if the carrying amount of the investments in the separate
financial statements exceed the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investe€ s net
assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM’). The CODM, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Directors that make strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements of each of the Group’ s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency’). The Company s functional
currency is RMB, and the consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company s and the Group' s presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss, within “finance costs”. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statements of profit or loss on a
net basis within “other gains, net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXEHBEHE (@)

(CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 2.7 ME - BERSE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated statements
of profit or loss during the reporting period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvement
HEMEEE

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
&b~ EY R

Motor vehicles

3to5years
3ESE
3to 10 years

ME -~ BB RRERELRE
AT E AR o EESE AN B IR UL
BZEREEREENMX -

EEUBRBARARREEF
mRPIBERALER > MZA
B BYBY A BE 3 B 5 3t 5t By
AlgR&IRE HREERME
StARIRE ERIRE B IS
ABUEEMWEE) - FAB
YEETIRNEMRBE DR ER
R AVAREE S 4R L FESTE - HAth
FRBEHERREREREE
ERREIE AREETmK ©

EZLU T AR EREHRNU
BEDECE M A (FNFRER AR
BE)E

Shorter of the lease term or useful lives
EEA eERER (UREEA%E)

B 3E104F

Buildings 20 years

1gF 205

Right-of-use assets Shorter of the lease term or useful lives

EREEE

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset' s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount.

These are included in consolidated statements of profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.8

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’ s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/
associate/joint venture at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of
associates/joint ventures is included in interests in
associates/joint ventures and is tested annually for
impairment as part of the overall balance. Goodwill
is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and
is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units (“CGUS”) that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at
the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the operating
segments.

Contracts and customer relationship

Contracts and customer relationship acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and
are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Management
estimated the useful life of customer relationship
based on their industry knowledge, experience and
judgement and took into account the historical
customers renewal pattern of the acquired subsidiary.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.8

Intangible assets (Continued)

(c)

Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Development costs that are directly attributable to
the design and testing of identifiable and unique
software products controlled by the group are
recognised as intangible assets where the following
criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software
so that it will be available for use

management intends to complete the software
and use or sell it

. there is an ability to use or sell the software

it can be demonstrated how the software will
generate probable future economic benefits

adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the software are available; and

the expenditure attributable to the software
during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as
part of the software include employee costs and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortised from the point at
which the asset is ready for use.

Acquired software licenses are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)

(d)  Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a finite
useful life using the straight-line method over the
following periods:

Customer relationship T years

F R I§:3
Property management contracts 3 -4 years
MEEEGH 3E4AFE
Service contracts 1-2years
R EH 1E24F
Computer software 5years
StEE3m 5%

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (CGUs). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets

(a)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss); and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in the consolidated statements
of profit or loss or the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model
in which the investment is held. For investments
in equity instruments, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in “other gains,
net’ together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are recognised in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive
income: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED

NERBREERRAR

2

EXE

sHBURELE (8)

2.10 EMEE(B)

(c)

512 (&)
BEHBIA
BH TANRES BEUR
RAEEEEEENERS

BRARBEENRERER
o AEBFEEH IR

DA=EtE

5

B A A I
Yéﬁﬁfﬁi/)ugﬁ'ﬁ
HENBEENRE
MBEAMETEZ R
BAM AZEE
E 1% 85 B AR 5t
B-ZEETMEE
NABWARBE
BRAE A ARE
WA o 42 IEFERT

ERERW = WE
BEEREBEERE
50 ° b 8 A BE 52 UK
mREBEETINIE
e B ER A o
BEEEREEERD
RMTERE 2 ) B

=
s ©

BN FEE A EAM
2EWE  HBU

BREHNREREN
%ﬁ%@mﬁﬁfzﬁ'ﬁ
FENEENRS
TEEANNAE
KB BREE
BAFESFAEM
2EWEIETE ° bR
718 o HE SR Y R (B
Wam S EsE ~ F B
N E N e
BRI BREES
BRGEEEaERN
HIER ©



2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)  Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and recognised in “other gains,
net’. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in “other gains,
net” and impairment losses are recognised in
“general and administrative expenses” in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss.

Fair value through profit of loss: Assets that do
not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income
are measured at fair value through profit of
loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit of loss is recognised in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and presented net
within “other gains, net” in the period in which it
arises.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)  Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to the consolidated
statements of profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss as
other income when the Group’ s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in “other gains, net” in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are
not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

(d) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(d)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For contract assets and trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts,
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. There
are also arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be set
off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
and other receivables with the objective of collecting
the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The description of the Group’ s impairment
policies is set out in Note 3.1.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand and deposits held at call with financial
institutions.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss as finance
costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.16 Borrowings and borrowing costs (Continued)

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.18 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated balance sheets.

Pension obligation

The Group only operate defined contribution pension
plans. In accordance with the rules and regulations
in the PRC, the PRC based employees of the Group
participate in various defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organized by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the PRC under which the
Group and the PRC based employees are required to
make monthly contributions to these plans calculated
as a percentage of the employees salaries. The
municipal and provincial governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired PRC based employees
payable under the plans described above. Other than
the monthly contributions, the Group has no further
obligation for the payment of retirement and other
post-retirement benefits of its employees.

The assets of these plans are held separately from
those of the Group in independently administrated
funds managed by the governments. The Group's
contributions to the defined contribution retirement
scheme are expensed as incurred.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled
to participate in various government-supervised
housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurance plan. The Group contributes on a monthly
basis to these funds based on certain percentages
of the salaries of the employees, subject to certain
ceiling. The Group's liability in respect of these
funds is limited to the contributions payable in each
year. Contributions to the housing funds, medical
insurances and other social insurances are expensed
as incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits at the
earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b)
when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring
that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the
payment of terminations benefits. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to present
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.19

2.20

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of
the goods or services to transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms and the laws that apply to contract
control of the goods and services may be transferred
overtime or point in time.

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due. If
the services rendered by the Group exceed the payment,
a contract asset is recognised. If the payments exceed the
services rendered, a contract liability is recognised.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Property management services

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered
as the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

The Group bills a fixed amount for services provided
on a monthly basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to invoice
and that corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed.

The Group received property management services
income where the Group acts as a principal and
is primary responsible for providing the property
management services to the property owners. The
Group entitles to revenue at the value of property
management services fee received or receivable and
recognises all related property management costs as
its cost of service.

Value-added services to non-property owners

Value-added services to non-property owners mainly
include pre-sale management services, preliminary
planning and design consultancy services, inspection,
cleaning, repair and maintenance services at the pre-
delivery stage. The Group agree the price for each
service with the customers upfront and issues bills
to the customers which varies based on the progress
billing schedule specified in the contracts. Revenue
is recognised when the value-added services are
rendered.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c)

(@)

Community value-added services

Community value-added services mainly include
(i) home-living services (including, among others,
delivery of daily necessities, housekeeping and
transportation services); (ii) intermediary services
(including, among others, operating clubhouses,
community communication channel, swimming
pools, sport facilities, playgrounds and amusement
centers) and (iii) property agency services (including,
among others, property brokerage for second-hand
properties and home renovation and decoration
services), revenue is recognised when the related
community value-added services are rendered.
Payment of the transaction is due immediately when
the community value-added services are rendered to
the customers.

Community healthcare services

Online medical services consist primarily of online
consultation services provided by the Al-assisted
in-house medical team of the Group. Revenue
from online medical services is recognised on a
gross basis as the Group is regarded as the primary
obligor as long as such services are provided by
its own employees since the Group has the ability
to determine the pricing of the services, nature
of services and is responsible for providing the
services by its employees. The Group offers service to
corporate customers, including their customers and
employees.

The Group charges corporate customers on an annual
basis at a fixed fee regardless of the usage of the
services and overall headcount or based on a fixed
fee per individual headcount per annum. The revenue
of the online medical service is recognised over a
period of time using the time-based method since the
Group has the stand-ready performance obligation on
a when-and-if-available basis to customers.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d)  Community healthcare services (Continued)

The Group also provides a range of diagnostic,
medical and surgical treatment services at the clinics.
Revenue from clinic services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the related services are
rendered and is recognised over a period of time
using the time- based method since the Group has

stand-ready performance obligation.

(e) IT and intelligent construction services

Software solution consulting, maintenance,
upgrading, training, installation, configuration and
other supporting services are provided mainly in
the form of fixed-price contracts. Revenue related
to software solution consulting, maintenance and
other supporting services are recognised over a
period of time using the time-based method since
the Group is obligated to provide the stand-ready
performance obligation on a when-and-if-available
basis to customers. Revenue related to installation
and configuration services are recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.
The Group provides information technology services

directly to end customers.

The Group provides cloud service to customers
through external cloud server vendors. The Group
purchases cloud services from external cloud service
vendors based on the customers requirements. The
external cloud service vendors are responsible for
the software development and performance of the
service. Therefore, the Group is the agent to the end
customers and recognises revenue on a net basis.

The Group also provides intelligent construction
services to property developer. Revenue from
individual contracts is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the percentage of work performed to

date as a percentage of total contract value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EADHEBEREEGE)

(CONTINUED)
2.21 BT #ERL

2.21 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statements of profit or loss
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2.22 Leases 222188

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payment to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.22 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined,
the lesse€ s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the
rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar
economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group entity, which does not have recent third
party financing; and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, country,
currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

any lease payments made at or before the payment
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

any initial direct costs; and

. restoration costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.22

2.23

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’ s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of office
premises and staff quarters are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in the consolidated statements
of profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less without a purchase option.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’ s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including
foreign currency risk and cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk). The Group s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. Risk management is
carried out by management of each individual entity within
the Group.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(a) Creditrisk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
its trade and other receivables, cash at banks,
amount due from related parties and non-controlling
interests.

The carrying amounts of cash at banks, trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties
and non-controlling interests represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

(i)

(i)

Cash deposit at banks

The Group expects that there is no significant
credit risk associated with cash deposits at
banks since they are substantially deposited at
state-owned banks and other medium or large-
size listed banks. Management does not expect
that there will be any significant losses from
non-performance by these counterparties.

Trade and other receivables

For trade and other receivables, the
management of the Group has monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverability of these
receivables at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’ s credit risk is significantly managed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information.

Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

. internal credit rating
. external credit rating

. actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the borrowers
ability to meet its obligations, including,
among others, the economic impact of the
unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic on the
operations of the Group

. actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of individual property
owner or the borrower

. significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the individual
property owner or the same borrower
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’ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(a)  Credit risk (Continued)

(if)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including
changes in the payment status of borrowers in

TREAMREE (8)
3.1 EREEEER (&)
(a) FEERE (&)

(i) BEHKEMEWR
5 (&)

BHEMATRERER
TAELEEXRE
8 BEERAR

the Group and changes in the operating results REBR T RARE
of the borrower. B8 RERANE
EHEEET) o
A summary of the assumptions underpinning the rEETBHEERE
Group' s expected credit loss model is as follows: KEANRIBE
LI
L 4
Basis for recognition
of expected credit
Category Group definition of category loss provision
Wl ERHHSENER BARPEEGRERNEE
Performing Customers have a low risk of 12 months expected losses.
default and a strong capacity to o
meet contractual cash flows Where th'e expected lifetime of
an asset is less than 12 months,
expected losses are measured at
its expected lifetime.
FE XEREMNEBREBEAEERESYS T EAMNTESEE -

Underperforming

Non-performing

B

REMBMBRAEE

Receivables for which there is a
significant increase in credit risk;
as significant increase in credit
risk is presumed if interest and/
or principal repayments are 30
days past due
RWRIENEERMREEEM; &
FMER/ ZASERBIHBIBI0
X EE~EERREEE N

Interest and/or principal
repayments are 90 days past due
FERK/HAEEREI 0K

WA ERE+ AR 2 ANE
EOEHERENEEAEER

=
EO

Lifetime expected losses.

EHITRRRSIE -

Lifetime expected losses.

SHITERARSIE o

v
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R aMBERRMEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 EREMRERE @)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 sMEMEZE (&)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) (a) 1EEREMR (&)
(i) Trade and other receivables (Continued) (i) BIZREMEUR
15 (&)
The Group accounts for its credit risk by RERIBIG K& E &
appropriately providing for expected credit HHREEBEEL
loss (ECL) on a timely basis. In calculating the HEBREREER

expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category of
receivables and adjusts for forward looking
information on macroeconomic factors.

Amounts due from related parties (trade and
non-trade nature)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
has assessed that the expected loss rate for
trade and other receivables from related
parties were low since the related parties have
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligation in the near term. The Group
assessed that the expected credit loss rate for
trade and receivables from the related parties
are immaterial and considered them to have a
low credit risk, and thus the loss allowance is
immaterial. Thus, no loss allowance provision
for trade and other receivables from related
parties were recognised during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

REAR- E5tE
BHEEBEERX
B> AEBERES
48 7l P& Wi R IR B9 R
EHEEXTRER
SRS PNEN SR
MERHEITRE -

FE Ui B gk 75 RRUE (&

ZRIFEZHE)

NZEZ—FRZ
BE_REF+ A
=+—H’*x&H
B EE S RkEAM
P L A Bk 75 SR IR Y
FREEBEEAE
& # R Bt 75 R I A
REHBBRITHESEGXN
RENEEMENR
REEND - AEEB
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eI IERRMIEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 EREMRERE @)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 £REREZE (&)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) (a) 1EEREMR (&)
(i) Trade and other receivables (Continued) (i) BIZREMEUR
5 (%)
Trade receivables B RWHRIE
The Group applies the simplified approach to REBKABBILZE
provide for expected credit losses prescribed MBEBUBREE
by HKFRS 9, which requires the use of the AIEIRIEEMTR
lifetime expected credit loss provision for trade HE 8B Es R
receivables. H HENEZE
WRIEE A F 4 A
NEHREEEEE
1o
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loss A TE T —FR T
allowance provision for the trade receivables ZE-_ZEHF+ A
due from third parties was determined as =+—B’> BKRE
follows. The expected credit losses below also =1 B 5 EIRIE
incorporated forward looking information. NEIEEERERS
EWT o T FEHR
EEEBIMAR
BB -
L
0-30 31-60 61-90  91-180 181-365  Over365
days days days days days days Total
0% IUE 61% 9% 181% 2
KPS 60K 90Kk 180% 365K 365% &t
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB' 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000  RMB 000
AEBTR ABETR ARETR ARETRT AREBTR ARETR ARETR
At31December202l RIBZ-F
+ZA=1+-H
Expected loss rate BiEE 0.5% 1.0% 2.2% 4.9% 9.9% 100%
Gross carrying amount  HRERE(E 25,988 5,651 5,706 16,337 17,758 4,580 76,020
Loss allowance BREE 119 57 128 806 1,758 4,580 7,448
At31December2020 HIZFZFE
+ZB=+-A
Expected loss rate jalii g 1.3% 2.9% 6.7% 15.4% 17.9% 100%
Gross carrying amount  4EREfE 17,597 4,466 4027 5,709 7,838 783 40,420
Loss allowance BEAE 21 130 269 877 1,401 783 3,681

o
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(a)  Creditrisk (Continued)

(if)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The expected credit loss rate for the provision
matrix is for trade receivables which are mainly
related to the property management services
business. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables. The
Group has identified the GDP and the credit card
delinquency ratio of the countries in which it
sells its services to be the most relevant factors,
and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates
based on expected changes in these factors
throughout the year.

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at
31 December 2021 and 2020 are disclosed in
Note 15.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

3 EFEERE

AR e MR
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FEMTHIRRMEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 EREMRERE @)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

3.1 EREEEER (&)

(a)  Credit risk (Continued) (a) 1EEREMR (&)
(i) Trade and other receivables (Continued) (i) BIZREMEUR
15 (&)
Other receivables HAthFEUWCRIE
Other receivables (excluding other receivables HAthFEWGRIE (R 8
from related parties) mainly included payments ERBRABANAE
made on behalf of property owners, deposits HEWIE) FE6
and others. BEAREIFUD
TR~ e REM
FRIE ©
The Group uses the expected credit loss model XEEFERERE
to determine the expected loss provision for BEEBERLETH
other receivables. 1t FE W R IE B9 TE ER
BiE s o
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group RZE_—Fk_
has assessed that there is no significant increase ETTEF+ A
of credit risk for other receivables since initial =+—H8’> x&H
recognition. Thus the Group used the 12 months B 5T fd EL 1 B IR
expected credit loss model to assess credit loss EHNEERRBEY
of other receivables (excluding other receivables P HESE LRI R B
from related parties). ARG HIE > &
EEFAI2ERE
HEEBEEEIY
ST H Ath FE U R I8
HNEEEE
L 4
Performing Total
ES “ast
RMPB 000 RMPB 000
AREBTT AREBTT
At 31 December 2021 N2 —F%+"“H=+—H
Gross carrying amount 4EEREE 13,023 13,023
Loss allowance B IRAE (92) (92)
Net carrying amount REEE 12,931 12,931
At 31 December 2020 RIE2ZEF+ZH=+—H
Gross carrying amount 4EERTEE 18,092 18,092
Loss allowance BREE (213) (213)
Net carrying amount IREEE 17,879 17,879

v
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R aMBERRMEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 SREARSE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 £REREZR (&)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) (a) 1EERf (4&)
(i) Trade and other receivables (Continued) (i) B 5 KkEMEW
15 (&)
Other receivables (Continued) HEEWEIE (48)
Movements on the provision for impairment for HAthFEWGRIE (R 8
other receivables (excluding prepayments) are EFRANRIR) R EE
as follows: HEHUT !
o
2021 2020
=B CECTF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREFT
As at 1 January w—A—H 213 35
(Reversal of)/provision BERSIE (BE]) BEHE
for impairment loss (121) 178
As at 31 December w+ZB=+—H 92 213
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R EMBIRRMIEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 EREMRERE @)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 EREREZE (@)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) (a) 1EERE (%)
(i) Amounts due from joint ventures and non- (i) EWREErERIE
controlling interests PR AR IE
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis NEERAEMEER
the expected credit losses associated with its HETEEERKRE
amounts due from joint ventures and non- EhERIEZERE
controlling interests carried at amortised cost T X TE A A A TR A
and adopted three-stage approach to assess EEEBE > M
the impairment. Those parties have a low risk of B2 31 BR 3 ER 4 =
default and a capacity to meet contractual cash ROE ST RE ©
flows. Besides, there is no significant increase FANLTELENON
of credit risk for the amounts due from for joint BEER> BBEAE
ventures and non-controlling interests since NmEBaHNRER
initial recognition. Thus the Group used the 12 Bt BOF
months expected credit loss model to assess BRERKEE R
credit loss of the provision for joint ventures and ERRIE K IR R
non-controlling interests. @ B 1E & B g i
RIBIE M o A&
EEFR+TZE@A
RIEEHEBRER
ettt a 8t ER
FFEREREEN
EEEGE -
L 4
Performing Total
ES #ast
RMB 000 RMB 000
ARBFT ARBFT
At 31 December 2021 RZE2_—%+”"H=+—H
Gross carrying amount HEBRTE(E = =
Loss allowance B1REERE = =
Net carrying amount SREDFE — —
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE_EF+"HA=+—8H
Gross carrying amount HEREE 13,980 13,980
Loss allowance EIRZE (159) (159)
Net carrying amount EREEE 13,821 13,821

(&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R aMBERRMEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 SREARSE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 £REREZR (&)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) (a) 1EERf (4&)
(iii) Amounts due from joint ventures and non- (i) EKREEPEKRIE
controlling interests (Continued) PRRG iR TR I (48)
Movement on the loss allowance provision for SErERIEER
provision for joint ventures and non-controlling T i B9 S 18 2 A 1
interests reconcile to the opening loss allowance EEHEZEBEED
for the provision as follows: FUBEEBEHER
ur
L 2
2021 2020
—E-—&F T EE
RMB' 000 RMB 000
AREBTT AREFIT
As at 1 January w—A—H 159 103
(Reversal of)/provisions BEEE (BE) B
for impairment loss (159) 56
As at 31 December n+ZB=+—~H — 159
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and
closely monitors its current and expected liquidity
requirements to maintain its rolling cash flow at a
level which is considered adequate by the Group
to finance the Group s operations and to maintain
sufficient cash to meet its business development
requirements.

Management has periodically prepared cash flow
projections and the Group has a number of alternative
plans to mitigate the potential impact on the Group’ s
business development and current operation, should
there be circumstances that the anticipated cash flow
may be affected by any unexpected changes in the
PRC economic conditions. The Company s directors
consider that the Group will be able to maintain
sufficient financial resources to meet its needs.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
and the earliest date the Group and the Company can
be required to pay.

Specifically, for borrowing which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the
bank's sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash
outflow based on the earliest period in which the
entity can be required to pay, that is if the lenders
were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 ERAREEGE)
3.1 EMEMBEZE (&)
(b) FEELER ()

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(b) L./‘qu/d/'ty risk (Continued)

Between Between
Within land 2and Over
On demand 1year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
BEX LER 12F 1558 BiR5F @t
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AEBTT  AEETR ARETR ARETm ARETRT ARETR
At 31 December 2021 S
+ZRA=+-H
Trade payables EENIE - 18,513 - - - 18,513
Accruals and other payables  FEstERREM
58 - 41,711 - - - 41,711
Accruals for listing expenses  EmBBIX AR ER - 3,631 - - - 3,631
Consideration payable EARE - - 2,703 - - 2,703
Amounts due to FfEkATE
related parties 33,695 - - - - 33,695
Borrowings fad 10,231 - - - - 10,231
Lease liabilities RE&R - 517 831 1,277 6,485 9,110
43,926 64,372 3,534 1,217 6485 119,59
At 31 December 2020 RIEZEE
+ZRA=t+-H
Trade payables BAENIE - 9,790 - - - 9,790
Accruals and other payables  FEStERREME
IRE - 34,400 - - - 34,400
Consideration payable EARE - 16,218 - 2703 - 18921
Amounts due to EfEsATE
related parties 67,370 - - - - 67,370
Borrowings (EE = 671 4,668 = = 5339
67,370 61,079 4,668 2,103 - 135,820
JJ
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eI IERRMIEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 SRRAMEE (8)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 £REREZE (&)
(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FEE TR ()
The table below analyses the borrowing with a TREIIIBEER R
repayment on demand clause based on agreed H i EIERET 8B AD
repayment schedules set out in the loan agreements. BB RN B2
The amounts include interest payments computed i o REEIERB ST
using contractual rates. KETEF BTN o
e
Between Between
Within 1and 2 and Over
1year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
15/ 1528 2E5F BBSE st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AEBTR ARBTR ARBTR AREBTRT ARETR
At 31 December 2021 RZE——
+-A=+—H 1,102 1,102 3,306 5,509 11,019
At 31 December 2020 RIZZEE
+ZB=1+-H = - = - .
J
(c)  Foreign exchange risk (c) SIEEGE
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial ERREERZHBEHER
transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are BEEBEUREREIER

denominated in a currency that is not the functional
currency of the relevant Group entity.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most
of the transactions settled in RMB. The Group
generates RMB from sales in the PRC to meet its
liabilities denominated in RMB. Other than certain
bank balances, the Group’ s assets and liabilities are
primarily denominated in RMB. Therefore, the Group’ s
assets and liabilities, and transactions arising from
its operations primarily do not expose it to material
foreign exchange risk. The Group does not hedge its
exposure to the foreign currencies.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financialrisk factors (Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk

Except for bank deposits at variable interest rate, the
Group has no other significant interest-bearing assets.
Management does not anticipate significant impact
to interest-bearing assets resulted from the changes
in interest rate because the interest rates of bank
deposits are not expected to change significantly.

The Group' s bank borrowing is at variable interest
rate (2020: fixed interest rate). The Group has not
hedged its fair value interest rate risk. The interest
rate and terms of repayments of borrowings are
disclosed in Note 22. The relevant interest rate risk is
considered immaterial.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt or to obtain bank and other borrowing.

The Group is required to comply with a number of
covenants under the terms of the major borrowing
facilities. They have been complied throughout the
reporting period based on directors assessment.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.3 Fairvalue estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets,
including cash at banks, trade and other receivables,
amounts due from related parties, amounts due from joint
ventures, amounts due from non-controlling interest and
the Group's financial liabilities, including trade payables,
accruals and other payables, borrowings, lease liabilities
and amounts due to related parties approximate their fair
values.

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

4.1 Currenttaxation and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in the PRC. Judgement
is required in determining the amount of the provision
for taxation and the timing of payment of the related
taxation. There are transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain (for example,
certain expenses such as entertainment and advertising
expenses may not be finally deductible) during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred taxation assets and taxation in the
periods in which such estimate is changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4  CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.2

4.3

4.4

Step acquisition

In a business combination achieved in stages, the Group
requires to re-measure its previously held equity interest
in acquired entity at its acquisition-date fair value and
recognise the resulting gain or loss, if any, in profit or loss.
The excess of consideration transferred, amount of any
non-controlling interest and fair value of previously held
equity interest over the fair values of net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. The fair value of the
equity interest was determined by using the discounted
cash flow approach and various key assumptions and
estimates, including revenue growth rate, discount rate
and terminal growth rate. These estimates and judgement
are based on the market condition and historical
performance of the investees.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8(a). Other assets that are subject to
depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances, including,
among others, the economic impact of the unprecedented
COVID-19 pandemic on the operations of the Group, indicate
that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes allowances on receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group used judgment in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past collection history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of trade and other receivables and impairment loss
expenses in the periods in which such estimate has been
changed. For details of the key assumptions and inputs
used, see Note 3.1(a) above.

AR e MR
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4.3

4.4
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AR S MR IIEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by CODM. The CODM, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors of the
Company.

The CODM has identified three reportable operating segments,
namely property management, healthcare services and others:

Property management

Wi Be 3 BRE AL

EEECREIEEERREZRN
WEBEELE DT - CHESATH
TEERTBREERRE DK
BRRHEEEDBIBIRE ©

FELERARECHH=E RS
KEDE  BMMEERE - BEIRBR
Hith :

Provision of property management services, provision of value-added

services to non-property owners and provision of community value-

added services

MEER REYEEIERT « IRHEIEE TIRERB MM BIBERTS

Healthcare services Provision of healthcare management services

FRER REEEEIERS

Others Development and maintenance of IT systems for property developers,
provision of other IT-related services and other miscellaneous services

Hith PR AR (YRR IT R4 IR EMIT AERIARTS K Hth 3 TR8AR
75 o

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on measures of adjusted profits before income tax. The
measurement basis of segment results excludes the effects of
depreciation, share of profits of investments accounted for using
the equity method, finance income/costs, net and income tax
expense. Other information provided, except as noted below, to
the CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

5 WERSEER ()

L |
Property  Healthcare
management services Others Total
MEEE BRERY Hith “ast
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000
AREBTTT AREFTT AR®TR AR%T®
Year ended 31 December #E_ZT-_—%+-H
2021 =+—HIFE
Revenue from contracts B
- recognised over time —E— R BFE AR 318,690 18,449 17,939 355,078
- recognised at a point — R R PSR
intime 2,563 — 783 3,346
Inter-segment revenue DEREW R - (1,018) (3,079) (4,097)
Revenue s 321,253 17,431 15,643 354,327
Segment results DEEE 63,999 5,414 6,414 75,827
Depreciation e (1,801) (2,184) (545) (4,530)
Operating profits R 62,198 3,230 5,869 71,297
Share of profits/(loss) MR EARRD
of investments accounted B&E&H, (8518)
for using the equity
method 2,167 (22) — 2,145
Finance income/(costs), net ~ BEUWA/ (Fi4) B8 22 (440) = (418)
Profits before listing bR LRI &
expenses and income tax FriSM AR T 64,387 2,768 5,869 73,024
Listing expenses WX (13,753)
Profit before income tax FREFEIR AR T 59,271
Income tax expense FRiSx (19,138)
Profit for the year FENEF] 40,133
Additions to: =
Property, plant Mz~ MERHE
and equipment
- Reportable segment —OERNHEE
assets 3,460 1,746 976 6,182
- Corporate assets —hEEE 26,781
32,963
Intangible assets mivEE
- Reportable segment — D 2WMDEEE
assets — — 2,933 2,933
- Corporate assets —rEEE 1,415
4,348
—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRITEE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

5 WERSEER ()

[
Property  Healthcare
management services Others Total
MEEE RERT Hith “ast
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000
AREBTTT AREFTT AR®TR AR%T®
As at 31 December 2021 NZEZ—%+-A1
=+—H
Reportable segment assets A2 BEE 269,194 60,156 25,643 354,993
Corporate assets rEBE 34,348
Total assets BEE 389,341
Investments accounted for BREmEAANRNEE
using the equity method 3,360 48 — 3,408
Reportable segment liabilities AJ2I|RDIPEE 150,653 13,895 15,064 179,612
Corporate liabilities MEES=L 47,495
Total liabilities = 227,107

J
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

5 WERSEER ()

L |
Property  Healthcare
management services Others Total
MEEE RERD Hith HmEt
RMB 000 RMB' 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AR®FT ARETT AREBTT AR®TT
Year ended 31 December HE_Z-EF+°H
2020 =+—HLEFE
Revenue from contracts B
- recognised over time —1E—ER PSR SR 213,971 — = 213,971
- recognised at a point — B R RERE ST
intime 7,639 — — 7,639
Revenue W 221,610 — — 221,610
Segment results DEPEE 57,698 = = 57,698
Depreciation e (841) - - (841)
Operating profits ESS—apil 56,857 — — 56,857
Share of profits of DGR EARD
investments accounted wE R
for using the equity method 913 — — 913
Finance income, net BB U A FEE 151 = = 151
Income tax expense FRiSTRR (13,911) — — (13,911)
Profit for the year FRNRF 44,010 - — 44,010
Additions to: hE .
Property, plant M~ BB R
and equipment 1,197 — — 1,197
Investments accounted for BREmEANRNERE
using the equity method 1,226 — — 1,226
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB K E A B
- Property, plant —ME - BEK
and equipment ] 139 21,421 1,343 22,903
- Intangible assets —mLEE 40,722 9,480 98 50,300
- Investments accounted — R mE AR
for using the NE
equity method — 70 — 70
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZEH+ZAH
=+—H
Total segment assets BAEEE 304,649 44227 12,275 361,151
Total assets HEE 361,151
Investments accounted BREEAANRNEE
for using the equity method 1,805 70 — 1,875
Total segment liabilities SR =L 223,426 15,126 2,503 241,055
—
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eI IERRMIEE
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 W Rk aEER (8)
Revenue mainly comprises of proceeds from property W F B EIEESIERT ~ IFxEE
management services, value-added services to non-property IBERTS ~ (T EIRERY « HtEEE
owners, community value-added services, community AR5 B 1T K B8 BE B2 58 AR F5 HY P AS X
healthcare services and IT and intelligent construction services. B -#EZ T —FK_ZE_EHF
An analysis of the Group’ s revenue by category for the years +ZA=+—HLEFE ’ KEERE
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: MBI DM DITAT -
@
2021 2020
—E-— T oTF
RMPB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREFT
Revenue from customer and REERRE—EEBRN
recognised over time: MESRRYU A
Property management services MEEIRARTS 202,099 135,954
Value-added services to FEEFILEARTS
non-property owners 75,033 53,571
Community value-added services HEEERTS 41,558 24,446
Community healthcare services HEEERY 17,431 —
IT and intelligent construction services IT K8 SEIR R AR TS 14,860 =
,,,,,, e, 213971
Revenue from customer and recognised SRR R B R AN
at a pointin time:
Valued-added services to JFEF IR EARTS
non-property owners 2,563 7,639
IT and intelligent construction services IT K8 e s AR TS 783 -
,,,,,,,,, .
354,327 221,610

U
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from Redco
Properties and its subsidiaries and its associates and joint
ventures contributed 32% (2020: 31%) of the Group’ s revenue.
Other than Redco Properties and its subsidiaries and its
associates and joint ventures, the Group has a large number
of customers, none of whom contributed 10% or more of the
Group’ s revenue during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

Non-current assets, other than investments accounted for
using the equity method and deferred income tax assets by
geographical area are as follows:

AR e MR

Wit R S ERE#L (48)

BE_Z_—F+_BA=+—HLHE
B RENSHEKRENBAR &
EhERME NN EEMAER
W B3R (CEZFF 31%) °
BrROBHERENBAR - &8 bx
REE RN AEBBERBAESR
PO REBEE I —FRIEIER
+ZBR=t+—HILFEBESMASE
E U zAY 10% sl E o

PRIz E A BRRIIR B RIEIEFTISIR
BEZINIERBEERMIE RIS
DUWTF

e
2021 2020
B —F TEITE
RMB 000 RMB 000
ARBFT AREFT
PRC R 17,766 75,280
Hong Kong 5B 26,780 —
104,546 75,280

O

Contract liabilities

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related

BHRMR

AEFEDERU T AW AR EH

contract liabilities: afE:
e
As at 31 December As at 1 January
R+ZRA=+—H r—A—H
2021 2020 2020
ZE-—F EBCEHF BCEF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AREBTT ARETFTT ARETF T
Property management services MEEERT 58,723 48,253 31,666
Value-added services to FEEFIBER
non-property owners 9,661 13,166 4,013
Community value-added services HEIEERT 1,729 518 1,157
Healthcare services BERY 3,841 — =
IT and intelligent IT K5 RE R ER AR
construction services 2,373 — —
76,327 61,937 36,836
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Contract liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Significant changes in contract liabilities

Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from
the advance payments made by customers while the
underlying services are yet to be provided. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the increase in contract
liabilities was mainly due to the expansion of business
volume from business development activities (2020: Same).

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue

Wi B S BRE Y (48)
BHREE)

(i)

(ii)

SHE B AL

RAEENEHNEBTERER
FE ISR 1B 15 5k 12 11 8 FF
RE - BHE_ET_—F+_H1
=t+—HIEFE’ 5HEEN
BMINETERREEEFEES
FNEBEBAFRR(CZT -
D AERE]) o

BMEAI BRI
TRETRAFHREEEEN

recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward BERESSNmTEE
contract liabilities.
2021 2020
—EC-F TEBOEF
RMB' 000 RMB' 000

AR®EFT ARET T

Revenue recognised that was included  stAE#EHEELEHDN

in the contract liabilities balances B
at the beginning of the year

Property management services YEEIBRTS

Value-added services to FRE T IZ(ERRTS
non-property owners

Community valued-added services &R ERT

42,652 29,448
13,166 4,013

518 1,157
56,336 34,618

I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5
Contract liabilities (Continued)
(iif)  Unsatistied performance obligations

For property management services, the Group recognises
revenue in the amount that according to the payment
terms. The Group has elected the practical expedient for
not to disclose the remaining performance obligations
for these types of contracts. Majority of the property
management services contracts do not have a fixed term.

For value-added services to non-property owners and
community value-added services, they are rendered in
short period of time, which is generally less than a year,
and the Group has elected the practical expedient for not
to disclose the remaining performance obligations for
these types of contracts.

AR e MR

Wit R S ERE#L (48)
BHAREE)
(iii) KT BHIEE

HRMEBERBMS * &
B AR 45 AR R SRR A &
B AEECEENTEEMR
B UBBANBEZSRES
WBRIRBERTS - AEDY
FEERB LA EEEHRR o

MIFERTIRERB RILEIEE
RHBMS > HIBREHRNRE
it RO —F > &
EEEZERITEREME S UK
BARKBEZFEESIBRIER
BHIERTS

6  OTHER GAINS, NET 6 Hfthkssm
e
2021 2020
—E—F “EBIEF
RMPB 000 RMB 000
ARBFT AREFT
Exchange losses R E1E — (14)
Remeasurement gains on interests RiEm A AR BT
in investments accounted for using Bt EWE (15t 26.2)
the equity method (Note 26.2) — 1,820
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 27) HEMBABMNUE (FIEE27) 415 =
Government grant (Note) BN (B5E) 3,243 1,387
Sundry income, net HEIEWA R 296 272
3,954 3,465
J
Note: PEE

The government grants mainly represent financial subsidies granted
by local government. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attached to these grants.

I 48 B E 2 15 B B 4R H B9 B
M- BiEAMZSEBRE RGN
HMBIAEM -
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eI IERRMIEE
7  EXPENSES BY NATURE 7T BREHISHRX
L 2
2021 2020
—B-—fF  CECSF
RMPB 000 RMB 000
ARBTT ARETFTT
Employee benefits expense (Note 8) BEEEM R (MizE8) 157,858 94,763
Greening and cleaning expenses HIERBE R 33,833 27,477
Maintenance expenses RERA 18,057 8,959
Utility NAEEE 14,869 11,465
Security charges ZIRE 15,745 5,174
Community activities expenses H&EEHFEZ 1,234 587
Uniform expenses AR 817 904
Information technology service fee BB AREE 2,404 —
Entertainment expenses AR 1,380 1,098
Legal and professional fees FEREXE 1,659 956
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 13) &R & E & (fizE 13) 6,047 213
Depreciation of property, plant Mz~ BEKREE
and equipment (Note 14) ITEE (FYsE 14) 4,530 841
Auditor s remuneration VP CIET 18 17
Listing expenses TR 13,753 -
Office expenses YN 10,442 5,164
Travelling expenses =ik 2,185 1,227
Other tax and surcharges H AR 5 Kbt o0 1,782 958
Others Hith 10,637 6,974
Total cost of sales, selling and marketing ~ 4B88E&E A « $HE K= H
expenses and administrative expenses FZ RATE R 297,250 166,777

O
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F BT IRRMEE
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 8 EERFRES
[

2021 2020
k- Tl S S -2
RMPB 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARHEFIT
Salaries and allowances FhE foREE 126,133 76,637
Bonuses TE4L 3,114 5,790
Pension costs RIS 16,225 5,450
Other staff welfare Hh8 TEF 12,386 6,886
157,858 94,763

>

(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) AEmEFMAL
T —FR-BBE

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in HEZ
the Group do not include any directors for the years ended +ZA=+—HLEFE > x&
31 December 2021 and 2020. The directors emoluments ElsReNAZRATIEE
are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 31. The ERES - ELHME R
emoluments payable to the five highest paid individuals E3IFMEFN DT - RBEZ
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as B —FRIEZEFTTR
follows: =+—BLEFE BNEER
= 7 AN ] v
L
2021 2020
—B_—fF “EBTEHF
RMPB 000 RMB 000
AR®BTT ARETTT
Salaries and allowances e R EHMMEERET 3,537 2,193
Bonuses TE4T 989 370
Pension costs IRIRET IR 311 113
4,837 2,676

-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BERRMEE
8  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 8 (EEEMEZE)
(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (a) EBmEHMALEE)
The emoluments of the above individuals fell within the HE_S _—FK_ZE"ZTF
following bands during the years ended 31 December 2021 +ZA=+—HLFE" > Lt
and 2020: ANEHEA T ToIEE -
e
2021 2020
—E_—f “EIEF
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) HoNEsE (Bo)
Nil - HK$1,000,000 £% 1,000,000 87T 3 5
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 BtE
1,500,000 7T 1 —
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 BcE
2,500,000 77T 1 —
9 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9 LB U A e Bl s
L
2021 2020
—E_—fF “EBCEF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AR®BTTT ARETFT
Finance income RMEUA
- Interest income on bank deposits —IRTTERABUA 291 151
Finance costs BB
- Interest expense on bank borrowing —IRTTERF B 261 —
- Interest expense on —REARENF S
consideration payable 231 —
- Interest expense on lease liabilities —HEaENFEMXZ 217 —

709 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and, accordingly, is
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.

Subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC are generally
subject to the PRC enterprise income tax at the rate of 25% for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Same). For certain
subsidiaries qualified as micro and small enterprises, the PRC
enterprise income tax was charged at a preferential rate of 20%
for the years in which they were qualified.

Subsidiaries established in other jurisdictions are for the
purpose of investment holding and therefore have no assessable
profits for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

AR e MR

10 FRISMEAX

ARBHRFEEESEMAILAER
RAMRAT > RILERARENFRSE
SFER -

BE_ S —F+-HA=+—HLE
B RPERI A ENNB AR
AW 25% MW E NP E P
BR(CE-BE  HA) - EER
RAMNCENETHBATMS ’
HEREESERNEREL20%19E
BB PR (DTSR o

REMBEREMIINBE AT ZE8
WhAREER Bt RBEEZT
T—ERTECEE+TRA=+—H
IR EERIEH]

L .
2021 2020
—E-—fF  CETCEf
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREFT
Current income tax BOERPRSHR
- PRC corporate income tax —FRE RS 22,359 14,271
Deferred income tax (Note 20) EEFTISHR (M5 20) (3,221) (360)
Income tax expense FriSiRms 19,138 13,911
P
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRITEE

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

10

The tax on the Group s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to the Group for the years ended 31

December 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

FRSTRR (48)

FABREERRE  AEEEBE"T _—F
RZZ2-EBF+"B=+—HILFE
BYBRPr SR ATE A BIIRIRA B 1218
AR AERE BN FIIMNEKELRIIE
LR BT

Profit before income tax

Calculated at the PRC corporate
income tax rate of 25%
Difference in tax rate applicable to
certain subsidiaries
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Income not subject to taxation
Unrecognised tax losses

Income tax expense

FRPRISAR AT ST

BB R ERSRMRE 25% 518
BERARETHBABTNRNEER
AR

BARBUIA

REEBIRIRE R

PRISMFES

2021 2020
—EB—F B
RMB 000 RMB' 000
AR¥TFIT AR¥TFIT
59,271 57,921
14,818 14,480
728 (398)

2,468 623
(705) (824)
1,829 30
19,138 13,911

o
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basic

(a)

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the respective years. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used for such purpose has
been retrospectively adjusted for the effect of the
issuance of 3 shares of the Company in connection with
the Reorganisation completed on 2 June 2021 and the
capitalisation issue of 149,999,996 shares completed on 31
March 2022 (Note 33) deemed to have been in issue since 1
January 2020.

On 31 March 2022, the Company issued 50,000,000 shares
through initial public offering of shares (Note 33).

AR e MR

11 SK=EF

B

BREXABANTDIRBEAAS
BAEMGRABRUSEERT
ZERINEFEIHEAE - B
RZBENNEERINEFIH
ERMAEAATMN T - —F N
BZHREmMEHEETIRR
BER_E-__F=A=+—
B E AL E1T (P55 33) #
HAEB_ZE-_ZF—H—H
FEE B TR B ELIBEEE o

W_E2__F#=A=+—H"
KRABBBERAREERD
2% 750,000,000 f% P& 19 (P 5
33)

L

2021 2020
T —EIERF

Profit attributable to owners KNBVEB NG EF
of the Company (RMB' 000) (NRIEFT) 32,140 39,612

Weighted average number of BT T8
shares in issue 150,000,000 150,000,000
Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) SREABMN (ARED) 21.43 26.41

O

Diluted (b)

Diluted earnings per share presented is the same as the
basic earnings per share as there was no potentially
dilutive ordinary share outstanding as at 31 December 2021
(2020: Same).

i3]

MRS —F+-A=+—
B it W BTN B
w25 SREER
FREREARAERE (TS
T 4EE) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRITEE

12 SUBSIDIARIES

12 MBAE

(a) The following is a list of subsidiaries held by the Company (a) UTAERRBNEZ—FxR
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020: _EEE+_RB=+—HE
BRNBABRZE :
e
Place and date Principal
of incorporation/ activities/
establishment and kind  place of Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of companies of legal entity operation capital and debt securities  held by the Group (%) Note
AL BIMER IEEH/
ES BEN KR ERER Ep R BEORIRERESNEE SERMSRERES (%)  WH
2021 2020
3 C2°%F
Directly held:
BEEE:
Redco Healthy Living Investments British Virgin Islands, Investment Lordinary share of 100% - ii
Holdings Limited May 2021, limited holding, 1 US dollar each, US$1
liability company Hong Kong
NERREEREERERAT HERYES’ RERR &8 1RERIETNERR1ET
2T —£1f8
BRAE
Indirectly held:
FERE
Weiye International Investments British Virgin Islands, Investment 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
Company Limited October 2012, limited holding, 1US dollar each, USS1 (Note 26.1(c))
liability company Hong Kong ((Pi126.1(c)
BEERRERRAT HERYES’ RERR &4 1RER1IETNEBR1ZR
ZE-CE1R
BRAR
Hong Lee Investment (International)  Hong Kong, Investment 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
Company Limited August 2013, limited holding, 1 HK dollar each, HK$10,000
liability company Hong Kong
BRRE (BR) BRAT &% “2-=F)\B RERR &8 10,000RER 1 %R
BRAT) NE B 10,000 87
Fame Step International Hong Kong, January 2011,  Investment Lordinary share of 100% 100%
Investment Limited limited liability company ~ holding, 1 HK dollar each, HKS1
Hong Kong

ERERRERRAR

B5 2355
ARAT

RESR BE

1RER1IETNERRLER

o

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R EMBIRRMIEE
12 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 12 MBAE(E)
(a) The following is a list of subsidiaries held by the Company (a) UTAERBNEZ—FK
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020: (Continued) —EFEF+"_H=+—H#F
BB ARIZE : (&)
e
Place and date Principal
of incorporation/ activities/
establishment and kind  place of Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of companies of legal entity operation capital and debt securities held by the Group (%) Note
AL BIMER FEEE/
NGES BEN R R E R Hp BETRARERESNH#E  SEBFMSHAEED (%) M
2021 2020
3 C2°%F
Hong Kong Weiye Holdings Hong Kong, May 2017, Investment 1ordinary share of 100% 100%
Company Limited limited liability holding, 1 HK dollar each, HKS1 (Note 26.1(c))
company Hong Kong ((Pi1326.1(c)
BERERRARAT &% “E—tEFRA REER &8 1Bk 1IETNEBR1ER
BRAR
Shenzhen Youjumeijia The PRC, January 2016, Property Registered HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
Property Management Co., Ltd. wholly owned management Paid up HK$2,000,000
foreign enterprise servicein
the PRC
RNEEEFNEREERAR HE ZZ—5-A THERMANZE EE3210,000,000 &5t
HEEELE EERE EH#22,000,000 %7
UG Property Management Co., Ltd The PRC, April 2008, Property Registered RMB50,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability company ~ management Paid up RMB5,000,000
servicein
the PRC
BEEXNERBEREALT HE ZFE)\FEA TRER AR BELARRKS50,000,0007
BRAF EERE B#EAK5,000,0007
Shenzhen Yugao Property The PRC, June 2014, Property Registered RMB500,000 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. limited liability company ~ management Paid up RMB500,000
in the PRC
MITHEEERERAR HE’ ZE-MERA THEERE BREARE500,0007
BRAR B&EARE500,0007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S EMTHIRRMEE
12 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 12 MBAE(E)
(a) The following is a list of subsidiaries held by the Company (@) UTAERBNRIZZI—FkK

as at 31 December 2021 and 2020: (Continued) —EEFF+_H=+—H#F

BEHRBAREE | (B)

156

e
Place and date Principal
of incorporation/ activities/
establishment and kind  place of Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of companies of legal entity operation capital and debt securities held by the Group (%) Note
AL BIMER TEBEE/
EES BEN KR ERER Ep R BEORIRERESNEE SERMSRERES (%)  WHE
2021 2020
3 C2°%F
Yantai Zhongtai Property Management The PRC, May 2003, limited  Property Registered RMB3,000,000 60% 60%
Co., Ltd. (“Yantai Zhongtal") liability company management Paid up RMB3,000,000 (Note 26.3(a))
in the PRC (H5£263(2))
EETHRENEERERAR HE’ “EE=%1A THEERE BETARE3,000,0007
(M2adxR)) BRAR E&EARK3,000,0007
Xianyang Yugao Family Property The PRC, April 2019, Property Registered RMB500,000 60% 60%
Service Co,, Ltd. limited liability company ~ management Paid up RMB il
servicein
the PRC
REHEERNEREERAT HE’ ZE-NEmA TRER MY BEEARE500,0007
BRAT) EERE EREAREST
Nanchang Yonghu Lirui Property The PRC, May 2019, Property Registered RMBL,000,000 51% 51%
Management Co., Ltd. limited liability company ~ management Paid up RMBL1,000,000
servicein
the PRC
BEENRNEREERAT HE’ ZE-NEFE1A TRER AR BELARE1,000,0007
BRAF EERE B#EARH1,000,0007
Nanchang Junyu Meijia The PRC, May 2019, Property Registered RMBL,000,000 35% 35%
Property Service Co., Ltd. limited liability company ~ management Paid up RMBL1,000,000 (Note 16(b))
service in (Fff3E 16(b))
the PRC
HEBERXNERBERAT HE’ “E-NEFL1A TERElR % BEEARK1,000,0007
BRAR BER% E&E AR 1,000,0007
Nanchang Yugao Union The PRC, June 2019, Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
Property Service Co., Ltd. limited liability company ~ management Paid up RMB il
servicein
the PRC
BEfEaHNEREERAT HE’ ZE-NERA TRER MY E BETARE10,000,0007
BRAT) EERE EREAREST

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED

NERBREERRAR



12 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

The following is a list of subsidiaries held by the Company (a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at 31 December 2021 and 2020: (Continued)

AR e MR

12 MiBAE ()
UTFRERANR B _—FR
“EBCEF+_A=+—AF
BNNBAREZE : (8)

e
Place and date Principal
of incorporation/ activities/
establishment and kind  place of Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of companies of legal entity operation capital and debt securities held by the Group (%) Note
AL BIMER TEBEE/
EES BEN KR ERER Ep R BEORIRERESNEE SERMSRERES (%)  WHE
2021 2020
3 C2°%F
Nanchang Yujing Helian The PRC, June 2019, Property Registered RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
Property Management Co., Ltd. limited liability company ~ management Paid up RMB il
service in
the PRC
HEHNRAHNERBERAT HE’ ZE-NERA THERMENE BEEARR 10,000,007
BRAR BER% BAEAREZR
Jiangxi Dingmei Property The PRC, February 2020,  Property Registered RMB5,000,000 51% 51%
Management Co., Ltd. limited liability company ~ management Paid up RMB1,000,000
servicein
the PRC
IRERENERKERAT HE’ ZE°TE°A TRER MY BEZARES,000,0007
BRAT) EERE B#EARE1,000,0007
Zhanjiang Yigao Property The PRC, September 2020,  Property Registered RMB2,000,000 60% 60%
Service Co., Ltd. limited liability company ~ management Paid up RMB500,000
servicein
the PRC
BInREEREERAT HE ZE2EENA TRER AR BELAKE2,000,0007
BRAF EERE B8 ARH500,0007
Wuhu Senlin Property The PRC, February 2004, Property Registered RMB5,000,000 51% 51%
Management Co., Ltd. limited liability company ~ management Paid up RMB5,000,000 (Note 26.1(a))
service (Fff3£26.1(a))
in the PRC
RATAMYEERERAT HE’ “EEME-A THERMENE BB ARKS5,000,0007
BRAR BER% E&E AR 5,000,0007
Jiangmen Yujia Property The PRC, November 2020,  Property service Registered RMB500,000 70% 70%
Service Co,, Ltd. limited liability company in the PRC Paid up RMB500,000
IR HENEREERAT HE ZEZ55+—A TRER M BEEZARE500,0007
BRAT) MERS B ARE500,0007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S EMTHIRRMEE
12 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 12 MBAE(E)
(a) The following is a list of subsidiaries held by the Company (@) UTAERBNRIZZI—FkK

as at 31 December 2021 and 2020: (Continued) —EEFF+_H=+—H#F

BEHRBAREE | (B)

158

L 4
Place and date Principal
of incorporation/ activities/
establishment and kind place of Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of companies of legal entity operation capital and debt securities held by the Group (%) Note
e RIS R ITER/
REER BHMU R EERER e BEMRARERESNFE  REEFRRHERER (%) i1
2021 2020
- S
Shenzhen Juyue Property The PRC, December 2020, Property service Registered RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
Service Co., Ltd. limited liability company in the PRC Paid up RMB nil
I MERBERAT HE ZECRE4CA TErRERE BEZARES,000,0007
ARAHE NERH BAEAREZT
Shenzhen Yuanlian Enterprise The PRC, December 2020, Property Registered RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. limited liability company management Paid up RMB nil
servicein
the PRC
AMITEREEERERAT HE ZECTE4CA BRI BEZARS,000,0007
ARATE i BREAREZ
Shenzhen Yujian Youju Property The PRC, November 2020, Property sales Registered RMB5,000,000 - 100%
Consulting Co., Ltd. limited liability company planningin Paid up RMB il (Note 27)
the PRC (Mz£27)
AMIEREEESAIERAT HE ZE2RE1-A e BETZARES,000,0007
BRAE BERE BREAREER
Shenzhen Redco Healthcare & The PRC, July 2017, Provision of Registered USD1,430,000 70% 100%
Nutrition Holding Co., Ltd. wholly owned foreign healthcare Paidup USD nil  (Note 26.3(b)) (Note 26.1(c))
enterprise service in (t26.3(b))  (RizE26.1(c)
the PRC
AMINEREEEERERAT HE Z53—t%tA e EF51,430,000%7
SEEERE BERY BHREZER
Shenzhen Redco Kangan The PRC, July 2017, Provision of Registered RMB5,000,000 70% 100%
Health Management Co., Ltd. limited liability company healthcare Paid up RMB nil (Note 26.1(c])
service in (Btz£26.1(c))
the PRC
HINEEZREEEERAT HE Z5-t4tA e BEZARS,000,0007
BRA BERE BREAREZ

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED

NERBREERRAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IIERRMEE
12 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 12 MBAE(E)
(a) The following is a list of subsidiaries held by the Company (a) UTAERBNEZ—FK
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020: (Continued) —EFEF+"_H=+—H#F
BENNBAREZE | (&)
L 4
Place and date Principal
of incorporation/ activities/
establishment and kind  place of Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of companies of legal entity operation capital and debt securities held by the Group (%) Note
ML/ B R TEBEE/
ARER AR ERERER e BEORIRERESNEE SERMSRERES (%)  WHE
2021 2020
—E_-F B°EF
Shenzhen Redco Zhangzhewu The PRC, August 2017, Provision of Registered RMB29,400,000 70% 100%
Health Investment Development limited liability company  healthcare Paid up RMB18,000,000 (Note 26.1(c))
Co., Ltd. service in (Fff3£26.1(c))
the PRC
MINERERRERERBERAT FE’ Z2—tE)\A TEHRElR BEEARR29,400,0007
BRAR BERS B&E AR 18,000,000
Shenzhen Redco Hean The PRC, September 2018, Provision of Registered RMBL1,000,000 70% 100%
Health Management Co., Ltd. limited liability company  healthcare Paid up RMB il (Note 26.1(c))
service in (3£ 26.1(c))
the PRC
MINEEZERERERAT HE ZF—\FNA TRERERER BEZARE1,000,0007
BRAT % BHEAREST
Shenzhen Zhongtian Yunlian The PRC, February 2019, Software Registered RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
Technology Development Co., Ltd.  limited liability company invention Paid up RMB nil (Note 26.1(b))
in PRC (B35 26.1(b)
AP RERHERRERAT HE ZE-n%5ZA THERERHS BELARRK10,000,0007
BRAF BREAREER
Shenzhen Lilan Design The PRC, May 2020, Construction Registered RMBL,000,000 - 100%
Consultant Co., Ltd. limited liability company  activities in PRC Paidup RMB il (Note 27)
(£ 27)
AT NERBERERAT HE Z2Z2%FHA TEHRERREE BEEARK1,000,0007
BRAR BAEAREZR

v
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S EMTHIRRMEE
12 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 12 MBAE(E)
(a) The following is a list of subsidiaries held by the Company (@) UTAERBNRIZZI—FkK

as at 31 December 2021 and 2020: (Continued) —EEFF+_H=+—H#F

BEHRBAREE | (B)

L 4
Place and date Principal
of incorporation/ activities/
establishment and kind  place of Particulars of issued share Ownership interest
Name of companies of legal entity operation capital and debt securities held by the Group (%) Note
ML/ B R TEBEE/
ARER AR ERERER e EETRARGRESNHE FEEFmGMERED (%) W
2021 2020
8- TTCEf
Nanchang Redco Zhangzhewu The PRC, August 2017, Provision of Registered RMBL,000,000 70% 100%
Health Industry Co., Ltd. limited liability company  healthcare Paid up RMBL1,000,000 (Note 26.1(c))
service in (Fff3£26.1(c))
the PRC
HENBRERRREXERACAR TE’ ZE—tE)\A TEHRElR BEEARK1,000,0007
BRAR BERS E&E AR 1,000,0007
Yantai Redco Zhangzhewu The PRC, August 2017, Provision of Registered RMB1,000,000 70% 100%
Health Industry Investment Co., Ltd.  limited liability company ~ healthcare Paid up RMB1,000,000 (Note 26.1(c))
service in (3£ 26.1(c))
the PRC
EEheREBRRELREERAR HE’ ZZ2—tE/\A TRER M BEZARE1,000,0007
BRAT RERE E#EAR1,000,0007
Yantai Redco Kangan The PRC, September 2018,  Provision of Registered RMB2,000,000 70% 100%
Health Management limited liability company  healthcare Paid up RMB2,000,000 (Note 26.1(c))
Company Limited service in (Bz£26.1(c)
the PRC
E2ERZEREEARAT HE ZE-\FAA TEHREIR BELAR2,000,0007
BRAT RERS B&RARK2,000,0007
Yantai Redco He an Elderly The PRC, April 2019, Provision of Registered RMB2,000,000 70% 100%
Service Center Co., Ltd. limited liability company  healthcare Paid up RMB il (Note 26.1(c))
service in (Fff3£26.1(c))
the PRC
E2EBzEERBROERAR  FE ZE-NENA TEHRElR BEEAK2,000,0007
BRAR BERS BAEAREZR
Yuyao Yurun Heilan Property The PRC, April 2021, Property Registered RMB5,000,000 100% - iii
Service Co,, Ltd. limited liability company ~ management Paid up RMB il
service in
the PRC
RKEESHNERBEERAT HE ZF”—4MA TRER M BEZARES,000,0007
BRAT MEBERE BHEAREST

I

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

The following is a list of subsidiaries held by the Company

as at 31 December 2021 and 2020: (Continued)

Note:

(if)

(iii)

On 10 June 2021, the ownership interest of Shenzhen
Redco Healthcare & Nutrition Holding Co., Ltd. held by
the Company is reduced from 100% to 70% (Note 26.3(b)).
Thus, the effective ownership interest of the subsidiaries
held by Shenzhen Redco Healthcare & Nutrition Holding
Co., Ltd. reduced from 100% to 70%, which were Shenzhen
Redco Kangan Health Management Co., Ltd., Shenzhen
Redco Zhangzhewu Health Investment Development Co.,
Ltd., Shenzhen Redco Hean Health Management Co., Ltd,,
Nanchang Redco Zhangzhewu Health Industry Co., Ltd.,
Yantai Redco Zhangzhewu Health Industry Investment Co.,
Ltd., Yantai Redco Kangan Health Management Company
Limited and Yantai Redco He an Elderly Service Center Co.,
Ltd.

The English names of the PRC companies referred to
above in this note represent management' s best efforts in
translating the Chinese names of those companies as no
English names have been registered or available.

The subsidiaries were incorporated by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

AR e MR

12 MBATEE)

(a)

D F: N

—=

A TE T —FR

—eoPE+-A=+—8#
BNHBATLE | (@)

GEE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

RZZEZ—HFA+H’H
KARFAENFRINS®E
BEERBRRABNMEA
HERE R 3 100% 8 /L ZET70%
(Pt 5£26.3(b)) « A It > A
FNNEREEEZRER
NEIFEHNMNBLATNE
PR FT 75 7 21 BB 100% 3 2D
ET70%’ ZEWBRB AR
JNNERZREEERREA
BN FINERERRER
BERBRR2E  FAOE
BEZRREEERRAR &
%ﬂ%%%ﬁfLJ%g%ﬁﬁE
EERE N BEENERER
@Jilz%ﬁéfﬁﬁﬁ@j =
BIEREZREEERRER
BIRESNBBEEEERY
FLERAR °

MR AEE A _ A B E 8
WHEEMIABZESE
B BRI A B2 18
HEEBH AT RNZEN
= o

BE_ZET_-_—F+_A4
=+—BHLEFE’> x&EEE
MR IIZERB AT ©
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|
’ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR S MR IIEE

12 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(b)

Set out below is summarised financial information for
subsidiaries which have NCI that are material to the Group.
The amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-

company eliminations.

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”)

12 MBATEE)
(b) FEIERGHERS (TIEITRGAERS )

TXHIEEHAERMS B
RERNIFEREDHNEA
BNMBENBRE - KB
BB EAERANAE M

HIHFINEEE
Summarised balance sheets BEEBEAREE
L
Nanchang
Junyu Meijia
Property Wuhu Senlin
Service Property
Co., Ltd. Management
(“Nanchang Co., Ltd
Junyu (“Wuhu
Yantai Zhongtai Meijia”) Senlin®)
ma
BEER
MERT BHATHEM
BIRAT MEER
== BIRAE
EadR BEER)) (TENZMD)
2021 2020 2021 2021
B TEZTEF ZEZ—HF ZETHF
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETRT ARETT ARETT AR%ETR®
Current piii )]
Assets HE 50,815 40,783 5,294 30,243
Liabilities =Y | (27,856) (24,370) (3,270)  (17,259)
Total net current assets RBEEFERE 22,959 16413 2,024 12,984
Non-current JETRED
Assets BE 693 983 6,935 20,292
Liabilities =V — - (1,734) (3,886)
Total non-current net assets JERBEEFEMRE 693 983 5201 16,406
Net assets FEE 23,652 17,396 7,225 29,390
Accumulated NCI Rt IEERRER 9,461 6,959 4,697 14,401

v

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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12

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

(b) Non-controlling interests (“NCI’) (Continued)

12 MBATEE)
(b) FEIEZRRHERS (TIEHERRHERE))

(&)
Summarised statements of profit or loss BEREE
L 2
Nanchang
Junyu Wuhu
Yantai Zhongtai Meijia Senlin
Eahik HAEEEEX B
2021 2020 2021 2021
T EZTCTHF T "TTHE
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB 000 RMB’ 000
ARETR AREBTT AERETRT ARETR®
Revenue s 47,513 30,032 3,534 46,900
Total comprehensive 2EIKALREE
income 6,254 7,100 822 9,198
Profit allocated to NCI DEFIEERERN
| 2,502 2,840 534 4,507
Dividends paid to NCI I F IR AR
H’R‘ll%\ - - 1,185 -
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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" NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R A MBBERRMEE
12 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 12 MBAE(E)
(b) Non-controlling interests (“NCI’) (Continued) (b) FEEERRMEZS (TIEIERGHEZR D)
(&)
Summarised statements of cash flows HERERME
o
Nanchang
Junyu Wuhu
Yantai Zhongtai Meijia Senlin
EadR MEEEEXR FORBM
2021 2020 2021 2021
T F ETIZF TT—HF ZIBITE
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB 000 RMB’ 000
AREBTT ARETT ARETRE ARETR®
Cash flows from REKEEHN
operating activities BERE 8,915 7,146 3,283 5,922
Cash flows used in WEEETA
investing activities RWEmE (2,203) (5,696) — (1,966)
Cash flows from/(used in) BEEEFELE, (FrA)
financing activities REne 2,709 2,364 (1,825) (108)
Net increase in cash and RERREEEBY
cash equivalents b I DT 9,421 3,814 1,458 3,848
The Group acquired two subsidiaries during the year ended BHE_ZZEHF+__A=+—
31 December 2020, Wuhu Senlin Property Management BIEFE > AEBWET WHE
Co., Ltd. and Nanchang Junyu Meijia Property Service Co., WEAE > FATRMYEE
Ltd., which have non-controlling interest to the Group. BERABDMNEEEEERY
Information about the acquisitions details can be referred E=RBERAR S HEFAE
to Note 26. BERFEIERERD - BRAZEW

FBRVERE2RAMEE26 -
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13

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F BT IRRMEE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 EBREE
L |
Property
Customer management Service Goodwill ~ Computer
relationship contract  contracts  (Note 26.1) software Total
nE G
BRI BEAN RBEa%  (HE26.1)  tEE&HE fazt
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
AREFT ARETR ARETR ARETRT AREFT ARETR
As at 1 January 2020 RZBZEE—B—H
Cost A& - - - - - -
Accumulated amortisation B £ - - - - - -
Net book amount REFE - - - - - -
Year ended 31 December BE_Z-EBE+-P
2020 =+—BHLEE
Opening net book amount ENREEE = = = = = =
Acquisitions of WEEH B A3 (M7 26)
subsidiaries (Note 26) 17,080 7,689 1,299 24,232 - 50,300
Amortisation i (102) (107) (4) - - (213)
Closing net book amount FREETE 16,978 7,582 1,295 24,232 = 50,087
As at 31 December 2020 RZBZFF+ZH
=+-H
Cost [y 17,080 7,689 1,299 24,232 - 50,300
Accumulated amortisation Rty (102) (107) (4) = = (213)
Net book amount REFE 16,978 7582 1,295 24232 = 50,087
Year ended 31 December HE-_Z-_-51-8
2021 =t+-ALEE
Opening net book amount ERESE 16,978 7,582 1,295 24,232 - 50,087
Additions HE - - - - 4,348 4,348
Amortisation e (2,439) (2,563) (691) - (354) (6,047)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 14,539 5,019 604 24,232 3,994 48,388
As at 31 December 2021 RZE--£+ZH
=+-H
Cost A 17,080 7,689 1,299 24,232 4,348 54,648
Accumulated amortisation EE- 6 (2,541) (2,670) (695) - (354) (6,260)
Net book amount BEFE 14,539 5,019 604 24,232 3,09 48,388

v

Except for the computer software, the Group’ s intangible assets
were acquired as part of business combinations during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. See Note 26 for more

details.

BRI EE 26 ©

BRet EIEEIN  EAREBE_S_—4F
FR_E_EFE+_A=+—HIEEEER
EHHN—ED AEENEFEEE K
B ELHIERES

BBERZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13 EREEE)
Notes: FE
(a) Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to the (a) EBRGEe2EWERMNINRAERY
consolidated statements of comprehensive income as follows: BE®HE WA
e
2021 2020
B % —BCTH
RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETT AREFT
Cost of sales HE AR 6,011 213
Administrative expenses THRZ 36 =
6,047 213
(b)  An independent valuation was performed by an independent (b) WIUHEMBETEILGENEE
valuer to determine the amount of the customer relationship, FEBREE_E_TF+_8
property management contracts and service contracts recognised =+—HIFERBESNE R
by the Group during year end 31 December 2020. Methods and REE -MEEEBESORRESE
key assumptions in determining the fair value of the customer Yo MEREG  MEEEEOR
relationship, property management contracts and service IRBEEAZENNERR > BER
contracts as at respective acquisition dates are disclosed as ENRNTENFERERBRFEE
follows: mr:
L 4
Expected
life of the
Valuation technique Discountrate  intangible assets
EREERR
fhER BAIR R fEFERR
Customer relationship Discounted cash flow 16.59% - 17.00% 7 years
ERR% BIRIRER &
Property management contracts Discounted cash flow 16.00% - 16.09% 3 -4 years
MEBESH BRIRIRER 3-4%F
Service contracts Discounted cash flow 13.70% - 15.20% 1-2years
BRFBE4 BEIRIRE IR 1-2%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

Impairment tests for goodwill arising from business combinations

The goodwill arose as part of business combinations (Note 26)
and were determined at the respective acquisition dates, being
the differences between the purchase considerations and the fair
values of net identifiable assets of acquirees.

As at 31 December 2021, goodwill of approximately RMB15,953,000
(2020: RMB15,953,000) and RMB8,273,000 (2020: RMB8,273,000)
are monitored by the management at the level of Wuhu Senlin
Property Management Co., Ltd. in property management segment
as a cash-generated unit (“CGU”) standalone and level of
Healthcare service segment respectively.

The following table sets forth each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill as at 31 December 2021:

AR e MR

13 EBREE &)
MisE - ()

(c)

EBOHEERE ZRENR

EREBEHN SO MELENS
& (M5E 26) RS B RIS B HRE
T BB R IR AT
FEEATERNEZE -

RZEZ—F+"HB=+—H"
AR 159530000 (B2 -F
F: AR¥15,953,0007T) R AR
#8273,000(ZTE_TFE: AR
8,273,000 7T) AP 293 B FH #40
MHEMEEEBERATEAER
HeErBEU(REEEBMUNN
MEBEBOBEEREERE DS
EBENEEEEITEE -

TREIINR B _-_—F+_A4
—t+—HEEBHBSBETRER
SNBSS HREBAMKIENSIEE

2B -

L
Weiye
International
Investments
Wuhu Senlin Company
Property Limited
Management and its
Co., Ltd. subsidiaries
FHTHHRM REEERF
MEERE KERRAT
BIRATR REMHBAT
Revenue - 2022 to WA-—ZZTZZFFE
2026 (% annual growth rate) TEIRE
(FIBRZE %) 3.0% 3.9%-60.2%
Gross margin (% of revenue) EF = (U %) 29.7%-30.4% 61.0%
Long-term growth rate RER R 3.0% 3.0%
Pre-tax discount rate FRARATALIRZ 20.7% 18.3%
—
>
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13

AR S MR IIEE

Notes: (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

13

(c)  Impairment tests for goodwill arising from business combinations

(Continued)

The following table sets forth each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake

impairment testing of goodwill as at 31 December 2020:

B EE (B
BisE @ ()

(c)

ENaHmEESEZRENS

FRENR B -FE+ A
=+ RERENERETREN
HIRERE B RN E BT
RS

Weiye

International

Wuhu Senlin Investments
Property Company
Management Limited and its
Co., Ltd. subsidiaries
FOMTHHRM REERE

MEEE REAMRAE
BRAH REKBAE

Revenue- 2021 to 2025

(% annual growth rate)

Gross margin (% of revenue)

Long-term growth rate
Pre-tax discount rate

WA~ B —EE
—EonE
(EHER %)

EFIE (1513 %)

EHER

R ATBE IR

3.0% 7.9%-64.2%
39.4% 61.0%
3.0% 3.0%
20.5% 18.0%

(O

Management determines growth rate of revenue and gross margin
based on past performance and its expectations for the market
development. The terminal growth rate applied beyond the budget
period is estimated based on industry forecast. The discount rate
used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the CGUs.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

Impairment tests for goodwill arising from business combinations
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the recoverable amounts of the CGU in
Wuhu Senlin Property Management Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries
and Weiye International Investments Company Limited and its
subsidiaries are estimated to exceed the carrying amounts of
the CGUs by approximately RMB4,654,000 (2020: RMB1,204,000)
and RMB3,867,000 (2020: RMB280,000). Such recoverable
amounts of the CGUs are determined based on value-in-use (VIU)
calculations. The VIU was determined by applying discounted cash
flow model on pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period. The
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from each CGU or groups of CGUs and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. By reference
to the result of such VIU calculation in the impairment assessment,
management determined that no impairment provision on
goodwill was required as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Impact of possible changes in key assumptions

Management has undertaken sensitivity analysis on the
impairment test of goodwill.

AR e MR

13 m\mmEEE)

BisE @ ()

(c)

EBAEEREZRENR

RIE-_—H+"A=+—H" %
MM EERERAT REM
BRAKRBEBERKRERRAR R
HINBARMIREEEEMZ I
OB BHIREEEBEUR
IREBEYO AR 4,654,000 (=2
—ZF: AR®1,204,0007T) &
AER#¥53,867,0000 (22 F !
AR5280,00070) - HEAREE
EEAZPIRRIEEREERE
EtEETE - EREEREEERE
HENFBEERBRRAIRESRM
ERAFRFESREREMETE
HHBESE - AFEEREER
GRS EE BN 4R
TELBUREEZ RRFERE
REBEZIEEE  DIFtHIREE - &
2ERENETHERERBESE
NER BEBRAEN T -—F
+TZR=+—ABEEARFHRE
BHECZTEF 8

T ERRASELTHNTE

EEEEHBERENAETTH
RUEDHT ©
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13

AR S MR IIEE

Notes: (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

13

(c)  Impairment tests for goodwill arising from business combinations

(Continued)

Impact of possible changes in key assumptions (Continued)

The following table sets forth possible changes to the key
assumptions of the impairment test and the changes taken in
isolation in the VIU calculations that would remove the remaining

(0 X®BaftPMEEBEZRENR

B EE (&)

MisE - ()
(&)
TERROIBEE

BT E (&)

TERHEIIWN _E-_—F+_A4
=+— B2 R EEREIRERIR
FTEBRWIEEF AN ERER

headroom respectively as at 31 December 2021: STEAEREESENES)
Weiye
International
Wuhu Senlin Investments
Property Company
Management Limited and its

Co., Ltd. subsidiaries
FEMTHHRM RERERE
MEEE KERRAT
BIRAT] REHBAT

Revenue - 2022 to 2026 WA—ZZZ_FF

(% annual growth rate) TETRE

(FIEEZEY) -1.4% -6.3%
Gross margin (% of revenue) EFIE (U %) -1.1% -1.3%
Long-term growth rate RHIEEZ -2.1% -2.3%
Pre-tax discount rate FRIGAIARIREE +1.4% +1.4%

O
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

Impairment tests for goodwill arising from business combinations
(Continued)

Impact of possible changes in key assumptions (Continued)

The following table sets forth possible changes to the key
assumptions of the impairment test and the changes taken in
isolation in the VIU calculations that would remove the remaining
headroom respectively as at 31 December 2020:

AR e MR

BRI EE (8
BisE : ()

() EBAHimEEHEZRENR
(&

ITERBAELINTE ()

TREIWNR _F_TEF+A
=+ —B2RIREEREEBERNE
TERERRVIELHRNEREE
STEAEREES ENEE)

L

Weiye
International
Wuhu Senlin Investments
Property Company
Management Limited and its
Co., Ltd. subsidiaries
FEMTHHRM RERERE
MEEE KERRAT
BIRAT] REHBAT

Revenue - 2021 to 2025 WA—ZZZ—FF

(% annual growth rate) —EREF

(FEEXY) -0.1% -0.1%
Gross margin (% of revenue) EFIE (U %) -0.6% -0.1%
Long-term growth rate RHIEEZ -0.7% -0.2%
Pre-tax discount rate FRIGAIARIREE +0.5% +0.1%

J
Management have considered and assessed reasonably possible
change for other key assumptions and have not identified any

instances that could cause the carrying amount of the CGUs to
exceed its recoverable amounts.

EEEEERRTHAEMERRR
WEEn]EEs > AWEHR TS
RIRTEEEREEBHEAK
ClBERERSEMS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRITEE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 W% - BER=HE

[
Furniture,
Leasehold ~ fixtures and Motor Right-of-
improvements  equipment vehicles Buildings  use assets Total
HEME AL WEY
(e Kkt AE BEY  FREEE )
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AR%ETT  ARETR
As at 1 January 2020 RZE°%F-FA—-H
Cost PR - 3,837 1,694 - — 5531
Accumulated depreciation Rt - (2,231) (1,149) - - (3,380)
Net book amount REFE - 1,606 545 - - 2,151
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE_E_ZE+-R
S+-HLEE
Opening net book amount EREEE — 1,606 545 - - 2,151
Additions HE = 578 619 = - 1,197
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note WEEHBAT (Hf326)
26) 6,721 4991 2 - 11,183 22,903
Disposals e - (214) (3) - - (217)
Depreciation & - (654) (187) = = (841)
Closing net book amount FREAFE 6,727 6,307 976 = 11,183 25,193
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-F5+-RA=1+-H
Cost 7 6,721 11,440 2,252 - 11,183 31,602
Accumulated depreciation BiE - (5,133) (1,276) - = (6,409)
Net book amount RETE 6,121 6,307 976 - 11,183 25,193
Year ended 31 December 2021  HE-E--%+-R
S+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FRETE 6,727 6,307 976 - 11,183 25,193
Additions 78 406 3,253 1,265 26,112 1,47 32,963
Modification B - - - - 2,579 2,579
Disposals e - (46) (1) - - (47)
Depreciation & (803) (2,132) (960) = (635) (4,530)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 6,330 7,382 1,300 26,772 14,374 56,158
As at 31 December 2021 AZRZ-%£+-A=1+-H
Cost S 7,133 14,504 3,328 26,772 15,009 66,746
Accumulated depreciation RiE (803) (7,122) (2,028) - (635) (10,588)
Net book amount EE3E 6,330 7,382 1,300 26,112 14,374 56,158

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

15

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the consolidated

14 M - BER&E (E)

ERGEE2EEm RATRIITER T

statements of comprehensive income as follows: S G
L |

2021 2020
—E_—fF “EBCEF
RMB 000 RMB 000
AR®BTTT AREFTT
Cost of sales THE AL AR 2,698 520
Administrative expenses THRAX 1,832 321
4,530 841

o

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

15 B KREMEBWRIAEREMNRIE

L .
2021 2020
—B_—fF “ETEF
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AR®BTT AREFT
Trade receivables (Note (a)) B S rEWEIE (M3 (a)
- Related parties (Note 25(b)) — R 75 (M35 25(b)) 60,820 53,863
- Third parties —%5=5 76,020 40,420
136,840 94,283
Less: Loss allowance B ESIREE (7,448) (3,681)
o el . U0
Deposits & 3,358 2,852
Receivables due from property FEWZE 7RI (5T ()
owners (Note (c)) 6,111 4,789
Other receivables HAthEWRIE
- Advance to employees —BRTREE 467 6,108
- Others —H 3,087 4,343
Less: allowance for impairment of A B MREGRIER R E
other receivables (92) (213)
12,931 17,879
Prepaid listing expenses TEf LB 5,792 —
Other prepayments HAFAIRIE 2,682 414
,,,,,,,,, R 414
Total trade and other receivables B2 R EMBUEIER
and prepayments TR FIE 150,797 108,895
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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” NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIMRME

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(c)

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management service
income, value-added services as provided to non-property owners,
community healthcare services and IT and intelligent construction
services.

Property management services income are received in accordance
with the terms of the relevant services agreements. Service income
from property management service is due for payment by the
residents upon the issuance of demand note.

The carrying amounts of other receivables and deposits
approximate their fair values and are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the Group’ s trade
and other receivables and deposits are denominated in RMB.

It mainly represented utilities costs of properties paid on behalf of
property owners.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the ageing analysis of the
trade receivables based on invoice date were as follows:

15 B KREMEBWRIEREMNRIE

(#&)
sk ©
(a)

(c)

BERERIEIEELBYEER
IRFBUA ~ IR T IFXE T HVEERR
B HBEERERITREEER
AR o

M EEIRB WA KRR IR 1%
FEAVFRULER - EREEESE D
BB BRI EERE
BRFFUEA °

S A URE R 2 BRI (SR L
ATEARE > 1A RBR
ARBREE  AEBERREN
B RS HIRE AU R
B8

FTEEAREFEIZANRAAEE
% o

ATET—ERTETBE+ A
=+—B’ ERBUREREEAN
FESRRAREC DTN

L |
2021 2020
B —F TEITE
RMB’ 000 RMB 000
AR®BTTT ARETFT
0 - 30 days 0ZF30%k 67,181 66,890
31 - 60 days 31260XK 10,618 6,174
61 - 90 days 61E90K 7,208 4,042
91 - 180 days 91E 180Kk 24,480 6,347
181 - 365 days 181 & 365% 22,773 8,572
Over 365 days #B8iB 365K 4,580 2,258
136,840 94,283

(O

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9.

174
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS 15
(CONTINUED)

The movement of provision for impairment of trade receivables
is as follows:

AR e MR

8% R E thEWTRIE KR TR (IR IE
(%)

B RIERRERHEESNT

[

2021 2020
—B-—F CZ-%E
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARETT
At 1 January R—A—H 3,681 2,475

Provision for impairment charged to RExE8mHINFRAIRERE
consolidated profit or loss 3,767 1,206
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 7,448 3,681

o

Net provision for impairment losses of trade receivables has
been included in net provision for impairment losses of financial
assets of the consolidated statements of profit or loss. Amounts
charged to the allowance account are generally written off when
there is no expectation of recovering the amount. Information
about the impairment of trade receivables and the Group's
exposure to credit risk can be found in Note 3.1.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 16

The carrying amounts recognised in the consolidated balance

B S RIGERN R EBRFEBE

AN RIRmRNEREERERRN
FHEME o ST ARER BN TR
RO SRR - BRAB S B
MIERERAEEFEEEEEEN
B F2REMES3 L

RS A RIS
M A EES EEARRNIREED

sheet are as follows: ‘F :
[

2021 2020
—T— & T TE
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARETT
Associates B A ] 1,458 1,070
Joint ventures G 1,950 805
As at 31 December R+=ZB=+—H 3,408 1,875
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRITEE

16 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

(CONTINUED)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss are as follows:

BEREARNRE (B)

PARERmAANERIHEERNT

[
2021 2020
BT —F T TE
RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETT AEEFIT
Share of results of associates L NI 388 307
Share of results of joint ventures FELEEhEEE 1,757 606
2,145 913
(a) Interests in associates (a) MEZEATIRIRER
L
2021 2020
T —EIERF
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARHEFIT
At 1 January nw—A—H 1,070 527
Additions wE — 1,226
Transfers to subsidiaries (Note 26.2) BEBENBE AR (MiEE26.2) — (1,060)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 26.1)  UBEHMIBAE) (s 26.1) — 70
Share of profits, net PE(mF) P EE 388 307
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 1,458 1,070

The directors of the Company consider that none of the
associates were significant to the Group and thus the
individual financial information of the associates was not

disclosed.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

16 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 16 HREEARIIEE (B)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Nature of interest in associates (b) MEEATMNE=MEE
L 4
Principal
place of
Name of entity business % of ownership Principal activities
BREAE TEERME FREH % TEEH
Indirectly held: 2021 2020
miEE e
Nanchang Junyu Meijia Property The PRC — — Property management
Service Co., Ltd. (Notei) servicein the PRC
AEREEZMERBERAS lEd (FfizEi) TEPERMYEEIERES
Gongging City High-tech Zone Chuangxin The PRC 49% 49%  Property management
Redco Property Service Co., Ltd. service in the PRC
HEHh MR NIEYMERBEIRAS lEd TEHER MY EE IR
Gongging City Gold Medal Property The PRC 49% 49%  Property management
Service Co., Ltd. service in the PRC
HEWHEEMERBEBRAS FRE EHBR Y X E AR
Anhui Huali Property Service Co., Ltd. The PRC 20% 20%  Property management
service in the PRC
THENMERBERAS lEd EHERMYEEIRIRT
Love Care Redco (Shanghai) Elderly The PRC 20% 20%  Provision of healthcare
Service Co., Ltd. service in the PRC
BRENS (LB BERBFBRAT lEd TEHER MY EEIERT
Yantai Aicare Redco Elderly Service Co., Ltd. The PRC 20% 20%  Provision of healthcare
service in the PRC
BEEERENSEERBARAR alE BRI E E AR

q

The associates held by the Group have share capital REEMFHEADERENKRAES
consisting solely of ordinary shares. All of the associates HEEBR - IEMEABIRMAR
are private companies with no quoted market price B HRMHIEmISERE

available for their shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIMRME

16 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(b) Nature of interest in associates (Continued)
Note i:

On 14 December 2020, the Group entered into an acting-in-
concert agreement with another shareholder which holds 33%
interest, whereby the said shareholder and its appointed director
will follow decisions made by the Group and directors appointed
by the Group in shareholders meetings and directors meetings
respectively. Effectively, the Group has obtained 68% voting rights
in aggregate in shareholders meetings and is able to appoint
three out of five directors. As resolutions of directors meetings
only require a simple majority approval, the Group considers it
has obtained control over Nanchang Junyu Meijia. Accordingly,
Nanchang Junyu Meijia has been derecognised as an associate
and classified as a subsidiary since 14 December 2020 (Note 26.2).

16 #EE=EARNRE (B)

(b)

REFE AT EEEE (&)
PysEi

MNIZZTFE+ZH+EE &%
EHE—FE3B%EHEMNKRET
T—BTENGE  HRIL  ERARER
REZFEEFERAEDRAE
BEZEEEDIRREAERES
FEREHIARTE - KEBBERES
BREAEEH68% IR AJRA
ABREFETN=RESE - HRNE
EEEMNAZREEEHELHM
B MAEERAHDESESE
EERNESI#E - FIL B2
TE+_FB+MBERE 5 E2EEE
REHR ILEDAHE QAT WD
saAM AT (MI5E26.2) ©

(c) Interestsin joint ventures (c) MEELEMNER

L 2

2021 2020

—E-—&F  CECTE

RMB' 000 RMB 000

ARETT AREFT

At 1 January w—A—H 805 199

Dividends received B E (612) =

Share of profit, net P a3 %8 1,757 606

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 1,950 805

v

The directors of the Company consider that none of the
joint ventures were significant to the Group and thus the
individual financial information of the joint ventures was
not disclosed.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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16 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(d)

Nature of interest in joint ventures

AR e MR

16 #EE=EARNRE (B)

e
Principal
place of
Name of entity business % of ownership Principal activities
BREaE FTEEFEME FREH % TEXEH
Indirectly held: 2021 2020
MERE B "ZT°THF
Jiangxi Province Guogao Property The PRC 51% 51% Property management
Services Limited service in the PRC
IREESYERBERAE R TERER MY E EIERTS
Nanchang Yingmei Property Co., Ltd. The PRC 51% 51% Property management
service in the PRC
AEREMERRAE FE TERBER MY R EIERTS
Shijiazhuang Lanting The PRC 51% 51% Property managementin
Property Management Co., Ltd. the PRC
AREHEEYMEEERRRAF FRE EHEREEYE
Xixian New District Qinhan New City The PRC 50% 50% Property managementin
Junyue Family Property the PRC
Management Co., Ltd.
ARMTER EMRE M R EEE FRE TEREEEYE
BRAF
Foshan Aimeijia Property The PRC 49% — Property management
Service Co., Ltd. (Note i) service in the PRC
BUTEERMERFERAE R (PtsE i) TERER MY E EIERTS

&

The Group has joint control over the above entities under
contractual agreements, and unanimous consent is
required from all parties for all relevant activities of the
entities.

FEBRRBESOGEN LHERARAR
BEERE  MAAASINARAE—RE
B ETRERNPIAERMEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

16 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD 16 HREEARIIEE (B)
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature of interest in joint ventures (Continued) (d) MEEtEMEREE ()
Note i: 5T

ZRELEALEEN T —5F
NBEEMRIA2ERBAR 8
ZERBEMIMUR—BEENIFES
REE o ZAEBPR S —F+"4
T=ZHUEHERZERES1% 8K
HHEFAERNEIE =56
HEBERMERFZERAF o

\ZB-—G+ZH=+—
A EREMBEADRAHE
CENEAFBRRARM

(ZEZZF 1 |)

The joint venture was incorporated by the Group as a wholly-
owned subsidiary in September 2021 and such entity has been
inactive since then. The Group disposed of 51% equity interests
in this entity to Foshan Aimeijia Property Service Co., Ltd., an
independent third party to the Group, at nil consideration on 13
December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, there were no material
commitments or contingent liabilities in respect of
associates and joint ventures (2020: Nil).

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17 BERESZEY

[

2021 2020

—E--—&F T EE

RMB 000 RMB’ 000

ARBFT AREFIT

Cash at banks RITIRE 122,848 134,626

Cash on hand FERE 804 2,713

Cash and cash equivalents ReEMKRTEEY 123,652 137,339

The carrying amounts of the Group’ s cash and cash equivalents FEENRERIREEFEYNRES

are equivalent to their fair values and are denominated in the BMEHANTEBEZFLUATIEES
following currencies: & :
[
2021 2020
—E-— TETEF
RMPB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARETF7T
RMB AR 121,616 136,973
Hong Kong dollar (“HKS”) Bt (M8l) 1,951 322
United States dollar (“USD”) FEm(M%Eml) 85 44
123,652 137,339

J

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

The cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB are
deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance of such
balances out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

17

AR e MR

RERREEEY (&)

DARBSHENRERREFEDZ
BENRERIERIT - EPEIRINEHE
IBE) A AR 52 P ST 9 £ B9 7 BEE 5 1P
BIRGEFRIR ©

SHARE CAPITAL 18 B&#s
[ 2
Number Par value
of share per share HKS 000 RMB 000
BOEE BRER TiEn ARETTT
Authorised: HE
At 10 February 2021 (date of incorporationof ~ RZ2Z—EZF+H
the Company) and 31 December 2021 (KRB EMALIL B R
“E_-#+"RB=+-H 3,800,000 HKS0.1 7t 380 316
Issued and fully paid: BETREERA .
At 10 February 2021 (date of RIEZ—#ZF+H
incorporation of the Company) (&KpEIEHRRL AL B ) HKS0.1387¢ - -
Issuance of shares upon reorganisation BARBBIRG HKS0.1# 7T - =
At 31 December 2021 RZZ2Z—4+-A=1+-H HKS0.1 %7t — =
5
The following movements in share capital happened BHEZT—F+A=+—HItF

subsequently to the year ended 31 December 2021:

Pursuant to the resolutions of the shareholder passed on 14
March 2022, subject to the share premium account of the
Company being credited as a result of the issue of the offer
shares under the Global Offering, the directors are authorised
to allot and issue a total of 149,999,996 shares credited as fully
paid at par to Top Glory International Holdings Ltd. by way of
capitalisation of HKS$14,999,999 standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company.

On 31 March 2022, the Company issued 50,000,000 shares at
HKS$4.1 each through an initial public offering of shares and
raised gross cash proceeds of approximately HK$205,000,000
(before listing expenses). The Company s shares were listed on
the Main Board on 31 March 2022.

ERRAFERNSEHNT !

BREBEARIRENR _E__F=1
THRBBNRERE > RIEBRES
KEELXTEERMMAKRNAE
NERMGEERME > EFEXRE
MEXRERABTRMD EEBRAVER
%814,999,999 M H =’ @ Top
Glory International Holdings Ltd.
B8 ke 35175 $£ 149,999,996 fe % ®E
BEARLTERUERD

AR TEZHA=+—H " &RT
BREEBNARZTERDIZERLLE
75 & 4750,000,000 B & 19 * W £ 15
RE SR Ia48%849 205,000,000 74
TR EMREZA c KRABMWEKHS
A TE T TE-B=+—HRERE
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS MFFIRRMIEE
19 RESERVES 19 f#fE
e
Statutory Retained Exchange Other
reserves earnings reserve reserve Total
R RERH ER e At st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AEETR  ARETR AEETR AE¥TR  ARETR
At 1 January 2020 RZZZ2E-F—H 3,547 51,183 (24) = 54,706
Profit for the year FERiEA = 39,612 = = 39,612
Currency translations differences ERERESR = - 13 - 13
Transfer to statutory reserve BETLTHE 871 (871) - - -
Change in ownership interests EEHERZBNERT
in subsidiaries without change of REEABMAEER
control (Note 26.3(a)) (%8 (M1 26.3(a)) - - = 576 576
At 31 December 2020 RIZZEF+°A=+-H 4418 89,924 (11) 576 94,907
At 1 January 2021 RZBZ—%—F—H 4,418 89,924 (11) 576 94,907
Profit for the year FREA - 32,140 - - 32,140
Currency translations differences SRERER - - n - n
Transfer to statutory reserve BETATRE 1,169 (1,169) — — —
Change in ownership interests TEGIREZHNERT
in subsidiaries without REBABIMEEER
change of control (Note 26.3(b)) foEy (M 26.3(b)) - - - 2,408 2,408
At 31 December 2021 WoE--—£+-B=1+-R 5,587 120,895 361 2,084 129,827

O
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets
against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes related to the same tax authority.

The balances shown in the consolidated balance sheet, after

20

IEIEFRISHE

BEFMSREERBBRERGETR
BURER S B AR IR S E ARV TR e
REMEN ° BIELEPISRAR—K
FEIR BRI 75 B ELAR RSN o

REEERBRRMTER(KEER

appropriate offsetting, are as follows: HE) W
(@
2021 2020
—_E_—F —ECE
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARETT AEEFIT
Deferred income tax assets EILFRSMEE
- to be recovered after more than — B 12@ A & U]
12 months RIEIEFTSMEE 6,938 5,245
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFRSIRaE
- to be recovered after more than — B 12{@B & Ukl
12 months WIEIEFTSRaE (5,683) (7,211)
- to be recovered within 12 months —#& 121@ B (el
HIELLFTEREas (1,529) (1,529)
Net deferred income tax liabilities REFRSIR A& R (274) (3,495)

o

The movements in the net deferred income tax assets/

EIEFFEREE /(B SHENED

(liabilities) are as follows: wr
[
2021 2020
—E-— T oTF
RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARBTT ARHEFIT
At 1 January n—A—H (3,495) 653
Credited to consolidated statement of STAGREETmR
profit or loss 3,221 360
Acquisition of subsidiaries WK A Bl — (4,508)
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H (274) (3,495)
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MIERRMEE
20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 20 RIEFRISHR (48)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities BE_E-—F+A=+—HIF
during the year ended 31 December 2021, without taking into B REMSNEEREENEH
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax (REt R E—MRBENERE &I GERE
jurisdiction, are as follows: )W
Deferred income tax liabilities IEEFRISIREE
L |
Fair value
adjustment on
acquisition of
subsidiaries Total
g
Mt B A TR
REEFE “act
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARET T
At 1 January 2020 RZE2ZZEFE—HF—H = =
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE KB A ) (8,740) (8,740)
At 31 December 2020 RNIZTZ2FE+"HA=+—H (8,740) (8,740)
At 1 January 2021 W2 —F—F—H (8,740) (8,740)
Credited to consolidated SR ERTEER
statement of profit or loss 1,528 1,528
At 31 December 2021 W2 —F+"HB=+—H (7,212) (7,212)

J
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

20 RMEFRIGIR (4)

Deferred income tax assets IRIEFRISIREE
L
Provision Tax losses Total
BE RIEESE 4Est
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB 000
AREFT AREFT ARETT
At 1 January 2020 R_ZE"ZF—HA—H 653 — 653
Credited to consolidated FFAGEIB@mR
statement of profit or loss 360 — 360
Acquisition of subsidiaries G-l =YN=] 1,131 3,101 4,232
At 31 December 2020 NIE-EHF
+—-—A=+—H 2,144 3,101 5,245
At 1 January 2021 S = 2,144 3,101 5,245
Credited to consolidated statement  stA#iREIEHE
of profit or loss 872 821 1,693
At 31 December 2021 A TE T —
+=-g=+—8 3,016 3,922 6,938
P

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of approximately RMB1,714,000 (2020:
RMB50,000) in respect of losses incurred by the Group’ s PRC
subsidiaries amounting to approximately RMB6,856,000 (2020:
RMB198,000), that can be carried forward for one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable income.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and
regulations, deferred tax on withholding tax is imposed on
declared dividends in respect of profits earned by the Group's
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008. The Company controls
the dividend policy of its subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2021,
the Directors do not have an intention to distribute the retained
earnings of certain subsidiaries such that deferred income tax
liabilities of approximately RMB13,555,000 (2020: RMB9,005,000)
have not been recognised for the withholding tax and other
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of these
subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2021, the Group s unremitted
earnings totalled approximately RMB135,549,000 (2020:
RMB90,050,000).

BEFTSMEET N A RERE R RIE
RiBH SIRE A mER TS
BIRER B o

NW_EBE_—F+"A=+—H’&&
B R AEENTENBATPE
EREIRHNAR6,856,0007T (ZF
ZZ4F 0 AR 198,0007T) HESAEILE
FISMEBEEMN AR T714,0007T (=
TTETF 0 ARWES50,0007T) * ZE51E

B4 E—E 1 F LUK IR R FERIR UK
Ao

RIFEEREPECEMERRAIRE
o A EENTERBARRE _E
ZN\F—A—BHEMSENME KN
QB BEMNTEIIRIEILR o NATE
HEMNBAEMNKREREK  R_E
T—HF+TZR=+—H’ EFEED
TRETHBABTNRERM ° Fitw
AMZENB LB REHBFEN
EU%%D%%&EMQIH@;LLFE’E i

BELHARK13,555000T(ZF =
;ﬁfﬁ © AR#9,005,0007T) c =
T +TZR=+—H>> KEBXE
HZBF4EEE4 A A\ R 135,549,000 75

(== 1 AR®90,050,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRITEE

21 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

21 EBFEMARIE - Bt ERAREMAE

IE/SE]
e

2021 2020
RMB 000 RMB 000
ARBFT ARETFT
Trade payables BB ENTIE 18,513 9,790
Accruals and other payables FEST & A R PR (I TR IE 41,711 34,400
Accruals for listing expenses FEST EREZ 3,631 —
Consideration payable FEIRE 2,155 18,142
Other taxes payables HAENIRIE 4,550 5,181
Salary payables Eft#E 5,003 7,124
57,050 64,847

Less: non-current portion B IERENER D
Consideration payable FETRE (2,155) (1,924)
54,895 62,923

o

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of the Group's
trade payables approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities (2020: Same).

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of trade and
other payables were mainly denominated in RMB (2020: Same).

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice dates

RIE-—F+"R=+—H'%&
H & Z I TIRRREERER SR
REFMEREATEEE(CEZF
F 1 HER) o

KRB —F+"A=+—H' 8%
REMEMRIBERNREETEUAR
KAHE(CZTZE D HR) -

B 5 R RIERE R HRRE DT

is as follows: e
O

2021 2020
T —Z2TEHF
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARBTT ARHEFIT
0 - 30 days 0E30Kk 12,350 4,408
31-60days 31260k 550 1,399
61 - 90 days 61E90K 1,431 2,566
Over 90 days BB 90X 4,182 1,417
18,513 9,790

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R aMBERRMEE
22 BORROWINGS 22 {8
[
2021 2020
k- Tl S -2
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREBFT
Total bank borrowings HEIRTTIERR 10,231 4,550
Portion of due for repayment within R—ERNEIHBEER
one year or contain a repayment EEREREZEFERE D
on demand clause (10,231) (400)
Non-current portion SERENE D = 4,150

O

As at 31 December 2021, the effective interest rate of bank
borrowing was 1.50% (2020: 6.09%).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’ s bank borrowing was
charged with interest rate of 1-month HIBOR plus 1.3% per
annum (2020: 6.09% per annum).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group s bank borrowing was
secured by the pledge of certain properties (note 14) with a
carrying amount of RMB26,772,000 and guaranteed by the
Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group s bank borrowing was
secured by the pledge of properties provided by a director of
a subsidiary. Such bank borrowing was fully repaid during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the borrowing
approximated its fair value and was denominated in HKS (2020:
RMB).

\Z®-—f+A=+—8 #
SR EIERIE A 1.50% (Z B2
F 16.09%) °

W_EB_—F+_B=+—H’&&
BIRITERIZ 1E S EBRITAER
EMN13%MWEFR(CT-ZF | F
FIZ6.09%) &t & ©

AZE_—F+ZRBA=+—H’ 4%
EENIRITERUE TYWE G
1) IEBEER REEAARE
26,772,000 7T * WHAABER ©

ATETTFE+_H=+—H "’ &&
EWIRITERU—ENBARN—3
ERRBIYEIRIFEER - BRI
RTERNBEE_B2_—F+_1
=t+—HILFEREEHEER o

MN_B_—F+_B=+—H"’EX
FEREEHREAFERSE > WLUET
FHE(CEZEF  LAREE) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

22

23

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The amounts based on the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreement and the maturities of the Group's total

22 {EF(E)

FEERSEESERABOEER
ST (ERERHEFRETERD

borrowing at the respective balance sheet dates are shown HA) R e mEARR &SI T
below:
e
2021 2020
—E-— T oTF
RMB' 000 RMB 000
AREBTT ARETFT
Amounts of borrowing that are repayable: B TNIIHAREENEREEE
- Within 1 year —15R 962 400
- Between 1 and 2 years —1E2fF 969 4,150
- Between 2 and 5 years —2E5%F 2,996 —
- Over 5 years —iBi 55 5,304 —
10,231 4,550

O

As at 31 December 2021, the Group have total bank facilities
of approximately RMB10,231,000 (2020: RMB4,550,000) and the
Group utilised all bank facilities as at both year end.

LEASES

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following

W_BE_—F+_HA=+—H" K
EEMNRTRELBEBLAARE

10,231,000 0 (Z& =

THE:ARE

4,550,000) 7T B A& ZmEE
FEUBEBAMARITME o

23 fHE

(a) MEREEEBRRAMERD

L]

mOEEARXREBTRUTAR

amounts relating to leases: HENEEE .
L
2021 2020
—EBC—F —EBIEF
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT ARETT
Right-of-use assets EREEE
- Properties (Note 14) — 2 (M5t 14) 14,374 11,183
Lease liabilities HEaR
- Current — &N 366 —
- Non-current —3EmE 3,569 =
3,935 -

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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23 LEASES (CONTINUED) 23 &

(a)

(b)

()

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet (a)
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
acquired the right-of-use assets through acquisition of a
subsidiary (Note 26.1). Additions and modification to the
right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 December
2021 were RMB1,247,000 and RMB2,579,000 respectively.

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31
December 2021 was RMB2,172,000 (2020: RMB830,000).

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of (b)
profit or loss

The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

AR e MR

(4&)

RiFEEERRARABEIN
EE(R)

BE_T_ZHFE+_A=1+—
HIEFE> ~&EEBBWE
—ENBRARNSERAEEE
(f5E26.1) c BE_FT — —
F+ZRA=+t—HLEFE " f&
RREENAERELDHA
ANFRH1,247,00070 & A R #
2,579,0007T °

HE-S-—F+-A=+—
HIEFENEERESRH4EEE

AAR¥E2,172,0000(ZEZ
=& AR¥E830,0007T) ©

RiREHRmRARERNEEE

FEERRBTIUTEBES
%8 -

[
2021 2020
—E-—F  C—2-FfF
RMB' 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREBFT
Depreciation charge of right-of- FHREEEITEWE
use assets
- Properties (Note 14) — 4% (M5t 14) 635 —
Interest expense (included in FERZ GTARE )
finance costs) 217 —
Expense relating to short-term ARG
leases (included in cost of sales (5t ABHE A BATERES)
and administrative expenses) 2,064 830
Qo
The Group’s leasing activities and how these are (c) *EBMWBEFSRETE
accounted for BERSN

The Group leases various offices. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 2 months to 26 years.

FEBEEZERAE - HE
BHBEER2ERE260EME
TERARR °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIMRME

23 LEASES (CONTINUED)

(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for (Continued)

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

24 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash

23 FEEGE)

(c) s&EBENEEEHREG
REAR (8

HERRREBEERE &
FEBIBBRRBARM Bk
EHEAFAENEEEENER
Rmo > BE RN ER
Ry - HEBENSRBIEHER
iR o

24 RERERER

(a) PRAFIS TR AN B B ISR

generated from operations is as follows: ERENHERNT ¢
L
2021 2020
—E—F - - =
RMB 000 RMB 000
ARBTT ARETFT
Profit before income tax PREASIRATER A 59,271 57,921
Adjustments for: M TYIEEELEE
- Finance income —RBEEWA (291) (151)
- Finance cost —RBENA 709 —
- Depreciation of property, plant —WE ~ BMERREITE
and equipment 4,530 841
- Amortisation of intangible assets —EBEBEERH 6,047 213
- Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —HERB AR E (415) =
- Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, —HEYE - BEK
plant and equipment REESE, (W) 8 (11)
- Share of profits of investments — DR A AR
accounted for using BE&HF
the equity method (2,145) (913)
- Net provision for impairment —SMBEENERE
losses of financial assets BB FER 3,487 1,441
- Remeasurement gains on interests —EfMstERER AN
in investments — (1,820)
- Exchange losses —EREE = 14
Operating profit before working EESTEEAISE R
capital changes 71,201 57,535
Changes in working capital: CEETEH
- Trade and other receivables — B S EIGRIE ~ Hith
and prepayments FEWFRRIB R BT = I8 (41,842) (35,188)
- Trade payables — B REMRIE 8,723 1,344
- Contract liabilities —aaE 14,390 13,002
- Accruals and other payables — st E A R EMBEARIER 8,305 9,909
Net cash generated from operations REPTSIRE PR 60,777 46,602

U
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b)

AR e MR

24 BZEHRETHRERE)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (b) MEEFHELENEEHREN
is as follows: T
[
Bank Bank Lease Lease  Amounts
borrowing  borrowing liabilities liabilities due
duewithin ~ dueafter duewithin  dueafter  torelated
1year 1year 1year 1year parties Total
LER 158 LER 158
Bk i L L L fEf
Riofem  BiTER HEEE  HEAE  WEARE &t
RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB'000  RMB 000  RMB 000  RMB 000
ABETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2020 RZF_2E-A-H - - = = 12,951 12,951
Advance from related parties REEMARN - - - - 4767 4,767
Repayment to related parties B AER - - — S (347) (347)
Non-cash items: FRLEE
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WENEAT
(Note 26) (GE) 400 4,150 - - 49,879 54,429
Consideration for acquisition of ~ WETZFIERESNERT
ownership interests in KRB ARIMER
subsidiaries without ERmAE
change in control - - - - 120 120
As at 31 December 2020 RIZZEF+°B=1—H 400 4,150 = = 67370 71,920
At 1 January 2021 RZF--5-F-H 400 4,150 - - 67,370 71,920
Advance from related parties REEKAFER - - - - 17,836 17,836
Repayment to related parties BERHATE - - - - (60,423)  (60,423)
Interest paid BfFE (25) (229) 8) 9) - (2711)
Repayment of bank borrowing BRIRIED (400) (4,150) - - - (4,550)
Principal elements of HEMRNAEHS
lease payments - - (91) - - (91)
Non-cash items: FFREER
Additions of property, plant RENE  BREKEE
and equipment 10,224 - - - 16,548 26,772
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - - - - (7,612) (7,612)
New leases e - - 153 1,094 - 1,247
Modification of lease REBN - - 5 2,574 - 2,519
Foreign exchange adjustments EREE - - - - (24) (24)
Other non-cash movements HitJERE2E kY] 229 307 (90) - 478
At 31 December 2021 KB —£+-A=+-A 10,231 - 366 3509 33695 47,861
-
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192

25

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by Top Glory International Holdings
Ltd. (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands), which owns
75% of the Company s shares. The remaining 25% of the shares
are widely held. The ultimate parent of the Group is Redco
Properties (incorporated in the Cayman Islands).

The directors of the Company are of the view that the following

companies are related parties of the Group:
Name Relationship with the Group

Mr. Tang Chengyong
Mr. Huang Peng

Executive Director of the Company
Executive Director of operating
subsidiary

Controlled by the controlling
shareholder

Redco Properties and
its subsidiaries

*

The English name of the related parties represents the best effort
by the management of the Group in translating their Chinese
names as they do not have an official English name.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the following transactions were carried out with
related parties:

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR

25

R 53X 5

FAERBRSERERERARE
RERYBEBEMMIL BEAR
B 75% R 153) #EH o 8F T 25% R 15
WEZFRE - AEBEHNRKZAT
AASHME (RRSESFMMIL) -

EABEERATIADNATER
R 75 -

HwR BB HEAREENRGR

BABRE AADATES

EiEkE EEWBARNNIT
-

NEetER RERKREREZES

HiBAF

PR M BRERAMM S FTRES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

25 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 25 RAARE (&)

(a) Transactions with related parties (a) HIEAEGSEITHRS
[
2021 2020
B —F ZEITHF
RMB 000 RMB' 000
ARETT AREBFT
Provision of property management service RV E SRR
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries Nt EREKE AT 7,619 3,954
Provision of service — Value-added services  $RtARFS —IEE IR ERT
to non-property owners (Pre-delivery (RN EEIER)
property management services)
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries et ERERB AT 69,760 53,656
Associates and joint ventures of NetERERB AT
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries HERNERaERE 6,171 7,554
75,931 61,210
Provision of Carpark sales agency services RIEHESHE RS
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries NEtERENE QS 2,403 2,447
Provision of healthcare service RIBEBERY
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries NEtEREWBAE 14,838 —
Associates and joint ventures of NEtERENBASHN
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries MERBIREERE 27 —
14,865 -
Provision of IT and intelligent REIT RS ERARTS
construction services
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries Nt EREWBAE] 13,879 —
Associates and joint ventures of NEtERERB AR
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries MERNTIREE R 280 -
14,159 -
Maintenance expense HEER
Shenzhen Jindian Design Consulting NetERERBABTN
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of NIENGRS
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries SHFBSREBARAR 1,376 —
All the transactions above were carried out in the normal THMBERZHTEAERN—fRE
course of the Group’ s business and on terms as agreed HBREPET UERZEHME
between the transacting parties. B AORRETT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BERRMEE
25 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 25 FRAWA RS ()
(b) Balances with related parties (b) ERAEHA BIAEER
L 4
2021 2020
B —F T TEE
RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARBFT
Amounts due from related parties - trade R A RIBE—B R ME
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries et EREREB AT 58,709 52,324
Associates and joint ventures of haetEREKRBAEN
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries BERNRAREERE 2,111 1,539
60,820 53,863
Amounts due from related FEWRRE S IE— B S ME
parties - non-trade
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries NetEREKB AR - 18,696
Amounts due from non-controlling FEWGEZER ERRIE—FEZME
interest — non-trade
Mr. Zeng Huanming BIRBRSE — 10,171
Shenzhen Zhangzhewu Investment Shenzhen Zhangzhewu
Development Co., Ltd. Investment Development
Co., Ltd. — 3,650
Jinan Yingli Enterprise Management BRI hEEEES
Consulting Co., Ltd. BRATE — —
— 13,821

O

The balances were unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. The carrying values approximate their fair

values and are denominated in RMB.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A IIERRMEE
25 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 25 RBABARS (E)
(b) Balances with related parties (Continued) (b) ERARTBVEEER (BB)
L 4
2021 2020
=5 BT EAE
RMB 000 RMB' 000
AREBFT ARBFT
Amounts due to related parties - contract FEMI BB A RIB— S EE
liabilities
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries Nt EREKE AT 17,253 12,470
Associates and joint ventures of NEtERERBATN
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries BE AT REERE — 696
17,253 13,166
Amounts due to related parties - Non-trade — FE(JRAB A RIBE—JFEZ1EE
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries Nt EREWBAE] 33,695 66,100
Associates and joint ventures of hetERERBABN
Redco Properties and its subsidiaries ME AR REERE = 1,150
Mr. Tang Chengyong BERBRLE — 120
33,695 67,370
The balances were unsecured, interest-free and repayable ZEGERARIER REREARE
on demand. The carrying values approximate their fair KREER ZEEFNREEEER
values and are denominated in RMB. TEMEEREAREEE ©
All the above balances which are non-trade in nature will THPABEIFE ZHEB AR N AR
be settled prior to the date of this report. & HEARIEE o
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25 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c)

Key management compensation

Key management includes the directors and senior
management who have important roles in making
operational and financial decisions. The compensation
paid or payable to key management for employee services
is disclosed in Note 8(a).

Guarantee

As at 31 December 2020, bank borrowing is secured by the
pledge of certain properties of Mr. Huang Peng. Mr. Huang
Peng was a director of an operating subsidiary as at 31
December 2020 and resigned as director of the operating
subsidiary during the year ended 31 December 2021. It is
released prior to the Listing.

Leases

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has obtained leases
from the subsidiaries of Redco Properties for healthcare
centres. The right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
subjected to such leases amounting to RMB14,279,000
and RMB3,836,000 respectively. (2020: Right-of-use asset
RMB11,183,000).

26 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

26.1 Business combinations

(a) Acquisition of Wuhu Senlin Property Management Co.,
Ltd.

On 31 December 2020, the Group completed the
acquisition of 51% equity interest of Wuhu Senlin
Property Management Co., Ltd. (B HHRMYESE
EABREXF) (“Wuhu Senlin”) from an independent
third party at a consideration of approximately
RMB26,251,000. Wuhu Senlin is principally engaged
in property management services in Wuhu, Anhui
Province of the PRC.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR

25 RAEASRS (B

(c)

FTESEEFHM

TEEEBEANBBREERET
REERUHZRREBENAE
MEREEAS - ENEEN
TEEEEABRERSE
REERCHMIEE 8(a) °

R

A ZETEF+ A=+
H’ RITERUEBLEENS
TYEERERTF - SBLE
W E2_EF+_H=+—H
AEEBEWNB AR ESURNE
EIEZ—F+ZA=+—H
FTFERTEENBRAAE
= o H¥ LRI fRRR o

HE

R _E_—F+"RB=+—
B x&BNEERTOER
NEeMENKBASERE
E-FHEENERAREEE
REEEREZEI S A
K #14279,000k A K ¥
3,836,000 c(ZEZFF .
REEEA AR 11,183,000

ZRE

26 WREKMIBAR
26.1 EHBEH

(a) WEEF SN THARMYEELE
BIRA 5]

RZEZ_ZTE+-A
=+—H’ TEBEURE
# A\ R %26,251,0007T
TERL AL 5 = 77 Wi 4
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26 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

26.1 Business combinations (Continued)

(b)  Acquisition of Shenzhen Zhongtian Yunlian Technology

(c)

Development Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries

On 17 December 2020, the Group completed the
acquisition of 100% equity interest of Shenzhen
Zhongtian Yunlian Technology Development Co.,
Ltd. CRIIPRXREBMBKERB R L F) (“Shenzhen
Zhongtian”) and its subsidiaries at a consideration
of RMB1. Shenzhen Zhongtian is principally engaged
in software development services in Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province of the PRC.

Acquisition of Weiye International Investments Company
Limited and its subsidiaries

On 30 December 2020, the Group completed
the acquisition of 100% equity interest of Weiye
International Investments Company Limited ({&
X¥EEREREARAT) (“Weiye International’) and
its subsidiaries. at a consideration of RMB1. Weiye
International is principally engaged in community
healthcare services in the PRC.

The following table summarises the consideration
paid for the acquisitions, the fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition
date. The non-controlling interests are measured at
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of net
identifiable assets as at the acquisition date.

Goodwill was mainly resulted from the enhanced level
of workforce and the benefits of expanding its scope
of services available to customers as a well rounded
healthy living services provider.

AR e MR

26 UWEEKIBAR ()
26.1 EHAH (&)

(b)

(c)

KRR PR E R %
BB R G RANE L E]

R_T_TE+"A+E
H Z&EBUABAR
& 1 e i R IR R
EMMERERARAT
(MR PR 1) T BB
ABIAY100% R AE © R
PREENRPEERE R
IIHREERAFRERT ©

KEBEESERERRA
BIRENE A E]

RETEF+_"HA=+
B> KNEERTRKERE
EEFEEEBR AR (ME
*ER)) REKEBEAB
NI KBAAR
B1om e BEBERDEE
RHAERETEREER
FE o

TR R B HI UL
BEHEEIRE - Tl
BENATFERIAER
& o IRUEE B HIRYIFERR
T 1% P Bl B A FHE
SBDEEERIEEOINEETE -

BEFEREFHIIKF
RSUREBEAEAEE
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26 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 26 WHEEMIEBAT (8)

26.1 EBAH (&)

26.1 Business combinations (Continued)

[
Shenzhen Weiye
Zhongtian International
and its and its
Wuhu Senlin ~ subsidiaries  subsidiaries Total
XK BEERK
MM HHEAR HItEAE fast
RMB 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB 000
ARETFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Consideration paid as at RkERBREAAE
acquisition date 8,109 — - 8,109
Consideration payable as at RyEaRECSRENR
acquisition date (Note) &) 18,142 - - 18,142
Net assets acquired FrEEESE 26,251 = = 26,251
Recognised amounts of identifiable ~ PI#BIFTUREEE & R &
assets acquired and liabilities EEBENEEIEE
assumed:
Investments in associates REHE AT - - 70 70
Property, plant and equipment R B 139 1,343 10,236 11,718
Right-of-use assets TREEE - - 11,183 11,183
Deferred tax assets BILRIREE 1,131 - 3,101 4232
Trade receivables and prepayments, Z 5 EUWFHIE KRBT &
deposits and other receivables B BEREMERRUE 15,972 2,197 6,921 25,090
Amounts due from related parties R RA A7 IE = 4711 3,930 8,641
Amounts due from non-controlling  FEWRIEERER B
interest — — 3,650 3,650
Intangible assets ®BVE 17,834 92 1,207 19,133
Income tax liabilities AR (2,792) = - (2,792)
Cash and cash equivalents RENRE%EEY 1,481 4,152 5,781 11,414
Trade and other payables B RAMENIEA (3,199) (1,516) (2,177) (6,892)
Amounts due to related parties FEAIRRR 7 7B - (10,962) (38,917) (49,879)
Borrowing &= - - (4,550) (4,550)
Contract liabilities BHEaRE (6,489) — (5,610) (12,099)
Deferred income tax liabilities ELFERaRE (3,885) (23) (3,098) (7,006)

v
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26 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

26.1 Business combinations (Continued)

AR e MR

26 UWEEKIBAR ()
26.1 EBAH (&)

[
Shenzhen Weiye
Zhongtian International
and its and its
Wuhu Senlin  subsidiaries  subsidiaries Total
XK BEERK
BN HIE AR HItEAE act
RMB 000 RMB' 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETFT ARETFR ARETT ARETFT
Total net identifiable assets/ BEGGG =74
(liabilities) acquired (BB)FELE 20,192 (6) (8,273) 11,913
Goodwill (Note 13) BE ([ 13) 15,953 6 8,273 24,232
Less: Non-controlling interest initially & : FUEE B 284D IaHERR
recognised as at acquisition MIEPERR RS
date (9,894) — — (9,894)
Net assets acquired P EESE 26,251 = = 26,251
Analysis of net outflow/(inflow) of  AREYEHBABTINER
cash and cash equivalents in EREEEYRL,/ (OF
respect of acquisition of A) BB
subsidiaries:
Cash consideration paid BARENE 8,109 - - 8,109
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B FEERERREE
acquired BY) (1,481) (4,152) (5,781) (11,414)
Net cash outflow/(inflow) RBERM/ (RN 58 6,628 (4,152) (5,781) (3,305)
>
Note: Cash consideration for acquisition of Wuhu Senlin of Mt WEFRBAMMIRERE

RMB16,218,000 was settled during the year ended 31
December 2021 while the remaining cash consideration will
be settled before 31 December 2023.

A R #16,218,0007t B2
REE_S_—F+_H4
—+—BHLFEHE’
MEGRERERN -2
—=%+"RA=+—8#1

+3=
&EEe
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AR S MR IIEE

26 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

26.1 Business combinations (Continued)

Wuhu Senlin did not contribute revenue or net profit after
tax to the Group for the period from 31 December 2020, the
acquisition date, to 31 December 2020.

If the above acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2020,
consolidated revenue and net profit after tax of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020 would have been
RMB24,862,000 and RMB517,000.

Entities acquired in the transaction in relation to Shenzhen
Zhongtian did not contribute revenue or net profit after tax
to the Group for the period from 17 December 2020, the
acquisition date, to 31 December 2020.

If the above acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2020,
consolidated revenue and net profit after tax of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020 would have been
RMB13,935,000 and RMB2,396,000.

Entities acquired in the transaction in related to Weiye
International did not contribute revenue or net profit after
tax to the Group for the period from 30 December 2020, the
acquisition date, to 31 December 2020.

If the above acquisitions had occurred on 1 January 2020,
consolidated revenue and net loss after tax of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020 would have been
RMB15,562,000 and RMB1,510,000.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
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26 WEEHEBAT (&)
26.1 #7586 (&)

FHBMR _EE2E+ A
=+—HWEERE_ZZ
TE+ZR=t+—HHBLE
AL BB R U @ SRR AR
) o

i EIWBEN — S -2 F—8
—HELE R XEEREZE
TEIEF+Z/A=+—HIE
EENGERGR KRBRBAF
BRI A AR 24,862,000 7T
B ARHE517,0007T ©
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PRI Z R URER BRI &
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AEF) o

i FER 22 F—A
—HEL AXERHRET
“EF+_B=+—HLEFE
YR & U a0 K BRAR R AT & 5
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26 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

26.1 Business combinations (Continued)

Management is of the opinion that acquired trade
receivables arising from the acquisition of Wuhu Senlin
at gross contractual amount of RMB4,523,000 is not
recoverable. They have been written off on acquisition.

The fair value of acquired trade and other receivables,
deposits arising from the acquisition of Shenzhen
Zhongtian and Weiye International approximate the gross
contractual amount.

The acquisition related costs were immaterial.

26.2 Step acquisition

Step acquisition of Nanchang Junyu Meijia

Nanchang Junyu Meijia was a 35% associate of the Group
before the step acquisition. As set out in Note 16(b), upon
entering into the acting-in-concert agreement with another
shareholder to granted that another shareholder would
follow the Group's decision. Thus, the Group has obtained
control over Nanchang Junyu Meijia since 14 December
2020.

The following table summarises the consideration paid
for the step acquisition, the fair value of assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. The non-
controlling interests are measured at proportionate share
in the recognised amounts of net identifiable assets as at
the acquisition date.

AR e MR

26 UWEEKIBAR ()
26.1 EHAH (&)

BEERR > RWRBEHHRM
MR E 7 BURIER S X
88 A R14,523,000 7T & &
EWE] 2 B W B B T LUK

W B R A o K Rk B 2R B PR T UK
FBOVE 5 R HME WA KRR
THNAFERBSOEER
= o

W BB RRE A A IFE K ©

26.2 DRULEE

DRBEFSEEEK

RORWER > MEBEEX
AREEER N EHHNHE
A E) o L 0B 5 16(b) B &
FRE S —REREIIL—RITEW
FE GR—RESTEEL
EEAVRE - WItt° A&EE B
“ECEZF+_/BTHAEY
FMEREEREREHE

TR R B BBl KU
BEMNE  FIRBEENS
FEMAEER - JHERE
m R UK R B B B RSB AT SR
BEEFESROVEEA M E

=
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26 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 26 WHEEMIEBAT (8)
26.2 FRUKEE (48)

26.2 Step acquisition (Continued)
e

Nanchang
Junyu Meijia
MEREER
RMB' 000
AREBFT
Consideration: RE :
Fair value of the associate shares held REEFIFHERTRN A TE
by the Group 2,880
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets Bl RPN IS B B R PR A B ERY
acquired and liabilities assumed: BEFEEEEE -
Intangible asset mEEE 6,935
Trade and other receivables and deposits B 5 R HEMBUERIERIEE 304
Cash and cash equivalents REMRRETEEY 2,976
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMEITIE (253)
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFEMEE (1,734)
8,228
Non-controlling interest initially recognised KUk B BBV ARESR M IEIE AR =
as at acquisition date (5,348)
Net assets acquired Pt s & E 3 ME 2,880
Remeasurement gain on associate (Note 6)  HREF&EABMEFHstE U (Fi5E6)
Fair value of interests in associate REERABINER A TE 2,880
Less: Interests in associate B RS R BRI R (1,060)
1,820
Analysis of net inflow of cash and BRWERBLATINRERIRESE
cash equivalents in respect of acquisition BYIRA PR DA
of the subsidiary:
Cash consideration paid BENRENE =
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B PTEIRERIRESEEY 2,976
Net cash inflow REMAFEE 2,976

o
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26 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
26.2 Step acquisition (Continued)

Nanchang Junyu Meijia did not contribute material revenue
or net profit after tax to the Group for the period from the
acquisition date to 31 December 2020. If the acquisition
of Nanchang Junyu Meijia had occurred on 1 January
2020, consolidated revenue and net profit after tax of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 would not be
materially different.

The fair value of acquired trade and other receivables,

deposits from the acquisition of Nanchang Junyu Meijia
approximate the gross contractual amount.

The acquisition related costs were immaterial.

26.3 Change in ownership without change in Control

(a) Acquisition of 4% equity interests of Yantai Zhongtai

On 18 December 2020, the Group completed
the acquisition of 4% equity interests of Yantai
Zhongtai from the non-controlling shareholder at a
consideration of RMB120,000. The Group recorded a
decrease in non-controlling interest of approximately
RMB696,000 and increase in the balance in reserves
of approximately RMB576,000 upon the completion of
acquisition.

AR e MR

26 WIEMIEAR (4)
26.2 FRULHE (&)

BWEHRE _ S _SF+_
B=+—HILBE m&E%
ERWEOAEESREAR
A RMBALF) o MUEERE S
BEERN _T_ZFE—HF—
HE#4  AIXRERHEZT
CEFE+_RB=+—HLEE
& HW R R BRIR B AT E R
TEEEERER o

Bl EmEREXKMERSHN
BE REMBWRBEREZEZ
AN EEGHBERS -

W BB AERAR A A IFE K o

26.3 AR B EEe

(a) WHBIESFEZEI4%RHE

AEBR_ZEZZHF
+TZA+ N \HBZEMAMAIF
ERERWBES PR
4 KEBARE
120,000 7T ° UK B SE AL
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AR S MR IIEE

26 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

26.3 Change in ownership without change in Control
(Continued)

(b) Addition of registered capital of Shenzhen Redco
Healthcare & Nutrition Holding Co., Ltd.

On 10 June 2021, Shenzhen Redco Healthcare
& Nutrition Holding Co., Ltd. s registered
capital increased by USD430,000 (equivalent
to RMB2,768,000), which was to be paid by an
independent third party. Upon completion, although
the equity interest of Shenzhen Redco Healthcare
& Nutrition Holding Co., Ltd. held by the Company
reduced from 100% to 70%, the Group considers it
still has control over Shenzhen Redco Healthcare &
Nutrition Holding Co., Ltd. The Group recorded a non-
controlling interest of approximately RMB2,408,000
and an increase in the balance of reserves of
approximately RMB365,000 upon the completion of
acquisition.

27 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed
of 100% equity interests in Lilan Design and Shenzhen Yujian
Youju Property Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Yujian Youju’)
to Shenzhen Redco Weili Shiye Development Co., Ltd (& I
TEEHEX£EREABM/AT) at a consideration of RMB1 and
RMB1, respectively, resulting in an aggregate gain on disposal
of RMB415,000. The aforementioned companies are principally
engaged in provision of renovation design and consultancy
services and property sales planning services in the PRC,
respectively. Upon the completion of the disposal, the Group
lost its control over the aforementioned companies and their
financial results are not consolidated with the results of the

Group.
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A E #2,768,0007% ) ’
BH—BBILE=FX%
F o REME > BEAR
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27 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 27 HEMBAT(E)

An analysis on the losses on disposal of subsidiaries is as

HENBATNBIEITAT

follows:
L |
Shenzhen
Yujian
Lilan Design Youju Total
HER FIBRER “ast
RMPB 000 RMB 000 RMPB 000
AREBFRT AREFTRT ARETT
Consideration satisfied by: RBUTHIAHEN !
- Cash consideration —HENE - = =
Less: Net liabilities disposed of: B EEBERE
- Amount due from related — e RA B 75 =R IE
parties (7,217) — (7,217)
- Other receivables — H AW R IE (68) — (68)
- Cash and cash equivalents - RHENRIREEEY (22) (5) (27)
- Other payables —HAERIE 110 5 115
- Amount due to — eI RA G 75 =B
related parties 7,612 — 7,612
415 — 415
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, HEWB AR W > BRIRAT
pre-tax 415 = 415
Less: PRC enterprise income L HEHEA B EBEN
tax payable upon disposal of FREI 2RISR
subsidiaries = — =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, HEWB QB W
net of tax NFRIRIE 415 — 415
An analysis on net outflow of cash BREERBASINRS
and cash equivalents in respect of KRIREZEEWFR
disposal of subsidiaries is as HHDFT -
follows:
Cash consideration HERE - = =
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B PTHEMRE K
disposed of REEEY (22) (5) (27)
Net cash outflow RERH P58 (22) (5) (27)
J
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2021 ERE

205



206

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

28

29

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company or the
companies now comprising the Group during the years ended 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

COMMITMENTS
Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2021, significant capital expenditure
contracted for but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

28

29

g2

BHE_Z-_—HF+"HB=+—H1t
FEARBAHBERAMRAERN
NEMELZNHERKRE (CEZE
FIF)o

RiE

B KIE

A BT —F+_BA=+—H"’'B
SRR ABBNERELRS
HF .

L
As at 31 December
R+ZRA=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-SF
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AR¥ETFIT AEREBEFIT
Acquisition of business G- Ec 4,050 =

In May 2021, the Group has entered into a strategic cooperation
framework agreement to acquire 70% equity interest of an entity
principally engaged in property management business in the
PRC at a consideration of not less than RMB4,050,000. As at 31
December 2021, the Group is still in the process of negotiating
the terms of the acquisition.
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30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

31

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2020: Nil).

(a)

30

AR e MR

HAGE

RW_E_—F+_A=+—H" =K
EETEINEARAGE(CZEZ

T EF) o

DIRECTORS BENEFITS AND INTERESTS 31 EXFMERER
Directors and chief executive s emoluments (a) EBERESITHASME
The remuneration of each director and the chief executive ZEEARSTTHRAEMEE
are set out below: HEnE
Employer's

contributions

Discretionary to a retirement

Fees Salaries bonuses benefit scheme Total
EEHEHR
nsE e BB @Bz S st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT ARETRE ARETE ARETT ARETET
Year ended 31 December 2021  HE-F-—4
+-B=+-H
ILEE
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Tang Chengyong BRBELE = — - - -
Ms. Wong Yin Man EREYL - 81 - - 81
Ms. Huang Yangi ERELT - 53 - - 53
Non-executive director ERTES
Mr. Huang Ruoging BEERE - - - - =
_ 134 - - 134
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-E-EF
+-A=+-H
ILEE
Executive Directors RTESE
Mr. Tang Chengyong BRERLE - - - - =
Ms. Wong Yin Man e — - - - -
Ms. Huang Yangi BRELL - - - - =
Non-executive director ERTESE
Mr. Huang Ruoging BEERE - - - - =
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31

DIRECTORS BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Directors retirement and termination benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or
its subsidiaries undertaking during the years ended 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

No payment was made to the directors as compensation
for early termination of the appointment during the years
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors services

No payment was made to any former employers of the
directors for making available the services of them as
a director of the Company during the years ended 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of the
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors during the years ended 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’ s business to which the Group
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the years ended
31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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31 EFAERiEz ()

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ERREXLBERER

HE_ " —F+°"A=+—
HEEE ' MEMNTAEREE
AARABIRENBATENSE
KEENHEMREmME S D E
WHEREN (T2

=) o

BE_S_—&+-A=+—
HIEFE  MEAEFREAR
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32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR

32 FAREERRRKHHED

L
Note 2021
PEE —E_—F
RMB' 000
ARETT
Assets BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBARNRE 134,454
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments wes= 5,829
Total assets mEE 140,283
Equity R
Equity attributable to owners of TATHEE NGRS
the Company
Share capital &N —
Reserves i (a) 134,683
Accumulated losses RETEIE (14,426)
Total equity “arEs - 120,257
Liabilities =N
Current liabilities mEaR
Accruals and other payables fEstE A R H MR R 3,631
Amounts due to subsidiaries FES I B A B FIE 16,191
Amounts due to related parties FE T BEIE 75 7R IE 204
Total liabilities =R EECEE - 20,026
Total equity and liabilities HEkEEEEE 140,283

O/

The balance sheet of the Company was approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 25 April 2022 and were signed on its behalf:

FE7&E Tang Chengyong
BEZ Director

=S Wong Yin Man

EZE Director

AABNEEEBBEREHESTZHERC
ETCFONB_+HATIE THMUTE
ERREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBIRRME

32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

32 FAREEERRKHEEES(E)

Note: MsE
(a)  Reserve movement of the Company (a) AEREEEES
L
Capital
Exchange reserve
reserve (Note) Total
BAfEE
EREE (FfizE) “azt
RMPB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT
As at 10 February 2021 N2 —FZH+H
(date of incorporation) (FEfM A BER) — = =
Acquisition of subsidiaries U FERT B A ) — 134,454 134,454
Currency translations differences ~ &HSERZ=EE 229 - 229
As at 31 December 2021 RIZ2Z—%
+-—BA=+—H 229 134,454 134,683

O

Capital reserve of the Company represented the difference
between the net assets value of the subsidiaries acquired and the
consideration settled by issuance of the shares to the immediate
holding company pursuant to the Reorganisation.

REDCO HEALTHY LIVING COMPANY LIMITED
NEREEERRAR

FRBNEAREEMEERER
BINEEFEAREBHERERE
RABETRMPAANAEZRE

BIZEHR ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Capitalisation issue

Pursuant to the resolutions of the shareholder passed on 14
March 2022, subject to the share premium account of the
Company being credited as a result of the issue of the offer
shares under the Global Offering, the directors are authorised
to allot and issue a total of 149,999,996 shares credited as fully
paid at par to Top Glory International Holdings Ltd. by way of
capitalisation of HK$14,999,999 standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company.

On 31 March 2022, the Company issued 50,000,000 shares at
HKS$4.1 each through an initial public offering of shares and
raised gross cash proceeds of approximately HK$205,000,000
(before listing expenses). The Company s shares were listed on
the Main Board on 31 March 2022.

Pledged shares

Top Glory International Holdings Limited, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company, has pledged
150,000,000 shares of the Company in favour of an authorised
institution (as defined in the Banking Ordinance) for a bona fide
commercial loan.

33

AR e MR

HREIE
BA(EHT

BRBERABIRBEN _E__F=A
THOHBBNRER RERES
KEELXTEERMMAKRNE
NERMGERME > EFERE
MERERRATRMD G EBRAVER
%814,999,999 st H I’ M Top
Glory International Holdings Ltd.
BC2% R 31T & 3£ 149,999,996 ¥z @
BEARL T ERUE IR

ATET"HF=ZR=+—H"F2F
BREEBNAREERDZERLLE
70 ¥ 1750,000,000 iR i 17 ° I £ 15
RE S RIE4E%E49 205,000,000 7
TR EMREZA c KRABMNEKHS
ATE T TE-RA=+—HRERE
T—E o

Hifkin

N A E R R RTop Glory
International Holdings Limited X
—MEIEO AR (B &R RIRTTEMEE) A
=z A B 150,000,000 f& 24 A B] B
7 DUABNEHEEERR
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS EEEE
[
Year ended 31 December
HE+-A=t+—HILEE
2018 2019 2020 2021
“2)\E “Z-nE “ETRE ZEZ-&
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
NS ST ARETT ARETT AREFT
Revenue frid 124,251 180,775 221,610 354,327
Profit before income tax bRFEREIER 15,263 40,809 57921 59,271
Income tax expense FrfsiRes (4,141) (11,005) (13,911) (19,138)
Profit for the year ERiEH 11,122 29,804 44,010 40,133
Profit for the year attributable to: WU TIBEBEEEREF
- Owners of the Company . YNGit:2=PN 10,586 27,903 39,612 32,140
- Non-controlling interests —IEERER 536 1,901 4398 7,993
11,122 29,804 44010 40,133
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RABEERARE
[
As at 31 December
®+=B=+—H
2018 2019 2020 2021
“2\F “2-NE —TT%E “E--F
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARET T ARETFT ARETT ARETFT
Assets BE
Total non-current assets FERBEELRE 2,671 3,530 82,400 114,892
Total current assets MEEELE 100,840 157,764 278,751 274,449
Total assets mEE 103,511 161,294 361,151 389,341
Equities and liabilities Bakaf
Total current liabilities MESEEE 73,606 101,138 226,241 214,171
Total non-current liabilities FERBaERE - - 14,814 12,936
Total liabilities aaE 73,606 101,138 241,055 227,107
Equity attributable to owners of YNNGy
the Company 26,846 54,706 94,907 129,827
Non-controlling interests e s 3,059 5,450 25,189 32,407
Total equity B 29,905 60,156 120,096 162,234
Total equity and liabilities k& EEE 103,511 161,294 361,151 389,341
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